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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DT

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the fee and commission
income of the Group substantially decreased to approximately HK$31.7
million, representing 47.5% decrease as compared with approximately
HK$60.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2017. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, the interest income of the Group decreased
to approximately HK$2.4 million due to decreased income from money
lending business, representing 13.4% decrease as compared with
approximately HK$2.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2017.
Loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately HK81.6
million, as compared with loss of approximately HK$184.5 million of
the year ended 31 December 2017. Such decrease in loss is primarily
attributable to decrease in staff costs, the absence of impairment
loss on interest of and decrease in loss on share of results of Xinhua
(Daging) Merchandise Exchange Company Limited and without the
provision for settlement of convertible bonds for the year ended
31 December 2018.

In 2018, the global economy continued its growth momentum in the
previous year but faced a more challenging environments. Although
the positive signs remained unchanged, momentum of margin growth
weakened. Meanwhile, the global economy was exposed to increasing
risks and difficulties, including the slowdown of growth of major
economies, rising inflation, beginning of a tightened currency policy
circle as well as pick-up of trading protectionism. Overall, the global
economic condition in 2018 weakened as compared to 2017 due to
increased adverse effects of external environment.

In 2018, dragged by the news of trade war between China and the
US, the stock market in Hong Kong swung downward repeatedly, with
approximately 9,000 points move. The Hang Seng Index had a roaring
start in the first month of the year, beating the 2017 high at one stroke
and recording various new highs. In February 2018, however, as the
attitude of the chairman of the US Federal Reserve toward interest rate
hike gradually became positive and the interest of the US 10-Year Bond
soared, combined with the uncertainties of the trade war between China
and the US, the stock market in Hong Kong fluctuated after a surge.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the total revenue of Sheng
Yuan Financial Services Group Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “SYFS Group”) decreased by nearly 47.6% to approximately
HK$31.7 million (2017: HK$60.5 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEREFNWE D

For securities business, revenue from securities brokerage and
financial services during the year ended 31 December 2018 decreased
significantly by 77.0% to approximately HK$4.1 million (2017:
approximately HK$17.8 million); segment result recorded a loss of
approximately HK$7.8 million (2017: profit of approximately HK$1.9
million). Such decrease in revenue was mainly due to the absence of
income from placement for the year ended 31 December 2018 as
a result of a comparably less active placing market caused by the
repeated downswing of stock market for the year.

For asset management business, Sheng Yuan Asset Management
Limited (“SYAM”) acts as the fund manager or investment adviser for 8
funds and 5 discretionary accounts. The total assets under management
(the “AUM”") of SYAM have decreased by nearly 24.0% to approximately
HK$7.9 billion for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
approximately HK$10.4 billion). During the year ended 31 December
2018, SYAM recorded segment revenue of approximately HK$30.1
million (2017: approximately HK$45.7 million), representing a decrease
of approximately 34.1%; it recorded segment profit of approximately
HK$2.8 million (2017: approximately HK$8.2 million), representing a
decrease of approximately 65.9%. The decrease in profit was mainly
due to the decrease in management fee and investment advisory fee
as a result of the liquidation of some funds upon the completion of their
investment projects. SYAM knows well of the dynamics in the capital
market and owns experienced investment team and unique analysis
and advice. Currently, it manages various investment projects and is
organizing fund-raising activities for funds and special accounts to
maximize the return to its investors after keeping risks under control.

For proprietary trading business, the SYFS Group mainly invests in the
listed shares and private funds in Hong Kong market. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, as no additional investment in proprietary
trading business, the segment loss from proprietary trading business
was approximately HK$31.2 million (2017: HK$30.8) million). Such loss
was mainly due to decrease in the market value of shares and private
funds held by the Group owing to under-performance of the stock
market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DT

As the Group focuses on the development of financial services business
and the recovery of commodity market remains slow, the Group has
continued to suspend its trading business for the year ended 31
December 2018. The segment loss for trading business for the year
ended 31 December 2018 was approximately HK$0.3 million (2017:
segment loss of HK$2.3 million).

SETTLEMENT OF SYFS CBs

On 29 December 2017, the Company, Sheng Yuan Financial Services
Group Limited (“SYFS”) and Team Effort Investments Limited (“Team
Effort”) entered into a deed of settlement (the “Deed of Settlement”),
pursuant to which the Company would issue the convertible bonds
of a principal amount of HK$90,000,000 to Team Effort, bearing the
rate of interest of 8% per annum and at the initial conversion price of
HK$0.35 per share (the “Convertible Bonds”), for the settlement and
release of SYFS’ obligations under the convertible bonds issued by
SYFS on 16 June 2014 due on 15 June 2017 in the principal amount
of HK$45,000,000 (“SYFS CBs”). Details of the SYFS CBs and the
Convertible Bonds have been set out in the circular and announcement
of the Company dated 16 May 2014 and 29 December 2017
respectively.

On 4 June 2018, the issuance of Convertible Bonds in the principal
amount of HK$90,000,000 by the Company to Team Effort was
completed. The approval for the listing of, and permission to deal in, the
257,142,857 Conversion Shares upon conversion of the Convertible
Bonds issued to Team Effort was granted by the Stock Exchange.

On 14 December 2018, the Company received a conversion notice
from Team Effort to convert the Convertible Bonds in the principal
amount of HK$90,000,000 into 257,142,857 shares of the Company at
a conversion price of HK$0.35 each.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEREFNWE D

ISSUE OF SYHL BONDS AND ITS SETTLEMENT

On 23 November 2017, the Company issued 8% interest convertible
bonds (the “SYHL Bonds”) due on 22 November 2018 in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$10,000,000 and HK$100,000,000 to two
individual subscribers (“Subscriber One” and “Subscriber Two”
respectively).

On 22 November 2018, the Company redeemed the SYHL Bonds held
by Subscriber One and paid the outstanding interest accrued thereon to
Subscriber One. On the same day, the Company entered into a deed of
settlement with Subscriber Two pursuant to which the Company would
repay HK$24,032,876.71 to Subscriber Two in cash and entered into a
loan agreement in the principal amount of HK$80,000,000 at an interest
rate of 10% per annum due on 21 December 2018 with Subscriber Two
(the “Loan Agreement”) as a full and final settlement, and released by
Subscriber Two, of the Company from all sums of money, debts, dues,
contracts, covenants, bonds, actions, proceedings, accounts, claims,
demands, liabilities and obligations that may arise out of or in respect
of the SYHL Bonds held by Subscriber Two. A share charge over the
Company’s shares was provided by the single largest shareholder of the
Company in connection with the Loan Agreement.

On 24 December 2018, the Company as borrower entered into a
facility agreement (the “First Facility Agreement”) with an independent
third party lender (the “First Lender”) to borrow a term loan in the
principal amount of HK$80,000,000 from the First Lender at an interest
rate of 24% per annum to be repayable in full on a date falling three
months from the draw down date for refinancing all indebtedness
of the Company under the Loan Agreement. Share charges over
the Company’s shares were provided by various shareholders of the
Company in connection with the First Facility Agreement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DT

Subsequently, on 22 March 2019, the Company entered into a facility
agreement (the “Second Facility Agreement”) with another independent
third party lender (the “Second Lender”) to borrow a term loan in
the principal amount of HK$90,000,000 from the second Lender at
an interest rate of 24% per annum to be repayable in full on a date
falling three months from the draw down date for (i) refinancing all
indebtedness of the Company under the First Facility Agreement; (i)
payment of associated costs and expenses; and (i) general working
capital purposes of the Company. Share charges over the Company’s
shares were also provided by various shareholders of the Company in
connection with the Second Facility Agreement.

PROSPECTS

With the implementation of the “One Belt, One Road” initiative and the
development of Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area,
Hong Kong, as a free and open economy, will further facilitate the cash
flows between Hong Kong and Macau and Mainland China. We believe
the fundamental of Mainland China’s economy remains good and the
People’s Bank of China will maintain its monetary easing policy, which is
expected to have a positive effect on and benefit Hong Kong economy.
Therefore, we expect stable growth to continue.

Looking forward to 2019, Hong Kong will be exposed to increasing risks
and difficulties, mainly from the evolvement of the trade war between
China and the US, greater fluctuations in the financial markets arising
from unclear interest rate policy of US Federal Reserve, the Brexit
deadlock, economic slow down and credit squeeze in Mainland China
and economic downturn in emerging markets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DT

The SYFS Group will focus on strengthen its platform of financial
management service. Apart from the consolidation of its traditional
brokerage business, Sheng Yuan Securities Limited will continue to
develop the intermediary businesses, such as underwriting of IPO,
securities financing and placement of funds and shares, to secure
steady and diversified profits. SYAM will continue to put its efforts in
funds management and discretionary accounts management services,
establish additional funds of various types, develop more financial
products and expand its customer base to keep abreast of the market
trends by focusing on high-valued customers and potential professional
investor groups. Sheng Yuan Capital (Hong Kong) Limited will continue
to expand its financial consultancy businesses including IPO financing
arrangement, merger and acquisition. For proprietary trading business,
given that the investment market is expected to be increasingly
volatile, it is necessary to exercise caution and care in processing each
investment transaction in order to measure relevant risks. Therefore, the
Group will continue to closely monitor market changes, manage and
reorganize existing investment portfolio and, ultimately, achieve balance
between risks and profits.

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

There was no material acquisition during the year ended 31 December
2018.

On 28 June 2018, the Company had entered into an agreement to sell
the entire issued share capital of a subsidiary, Joinbo Holdings Limited,
which indirectly owns 24.975% of the equity interest in Xinhua (Daging)
Merchandise Exchange Company Limited (“XHME”). XHME is an entity
incorporated in the PRC which is principally operating an electronic
merchandise exchange platform for commodity goods trading in the
PRC. Following the completion of the disposal on 28 June 2018, the
Company no longer held any of the interest in XHME and XHME ceased
to be recognised as an associate of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DT

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, cash and bank balances in general accounts
maintained by the Group were approximately HK$47.3 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 46.0% from approximately
HK$87.6 million as at 31 December 2017. Balances in trust and
segregated accounts were approximately HK$45.4 million (2017:
HK$221.6 million). Trade and other receivables and prepayments
were approximately HK$40.1 million as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
HK$69.5 million), which mainly represented decreased receivables from
money lending business and securities brokerage. Trade and other
payables and accruals were approximately HK$54.2 million as at 31
December 2018 (2017: HK$242.5 million), which was due to decrease
in trade payable from securities brokerage.

The Group’s current assets and current liabilities as at 31 December
2018 were approximately HK$140.6 million (2017: HK$418.2
million) and approximately HK$135.1 million (2017: HK$420.3
million) respectively. The borrowings as at 31 December 2018 were
approximately HK$80.4 million (2017: HK$nil). The gearing of the
Group, measured as total debts to total assets, was approximately
53.7% as at 31 December 2018 (2017: 33.2%). As at 31 December
2018, the Group recorded net assets of approximately HK$14.6 million
(2017: HK$12.5 million). During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group financed its operations with internally generated cash flow and
funds from borrowings.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars (“USD”), and Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group has
not implemented any foreign currencies hedging policies. However, the
Group’s management will closely monitor exchange rate movement and
will take appropriate actions to reduce the risks.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEREFNWE D

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year ended 31 December 2018, 257,142,857 shares of the
Company were issued upon conversion of Convertible Bonds.

SIGNIFICANT SECURITIES INVESTMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has no further
investments in held-for-trading securities in Hong Kong. As at 31
December 2018, the Company held an aggregate of 145,294,903
shares of Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited,
a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
8085) at an average cost of HK$0.144 each for a consideration
of approximately HK$21.0 million. As at 31 December 2018, such
securities investment was at fair value of approximately HK$5.2 million
(31 December 2017: HK$37.8 million), accounting for approximately
3.5% of the Group’s total assets and the loss on the change in fair value
for the year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately HK$15.7
million (31 December 2017: HK$16.7 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has a dividend policy, the objective of which is to allow
shareholders of the Company to participate in the Company’s profits
whilst retaining adequate reserves to sustain the Group’s future growth.
The declaration, form, frequency and amount of dividend paid by the
Company must be in accordance with relevant laws and regulations and
subject to the bye-laws of the Company. In deciding whether to declare
any dividend, the Board will take into account a number of factors,
including the financial results, the distributable reserves, the operations
and liquidity requirements, and the current and future development
plans of the Company. The Board will review the dividend policy of the
Company as appropriate from time to time.

BARZEE
REBEZE-_ZE—N\F+-_A=+—ALFE -
A R R AT AR (E 5 i1 £ 8517 257,142,857 IR AR
NapED o

EXEBEHFRE
REBEE-T—/\F+-A=+—HILFE "
Zl»‘%lﬁé%ﬁéﬂﬁi&*iﬂxéﬁﬂ’ﬁx &
Ko RZE—N\F+_A=1+—8 KQ7
HFEEBEGRERNERARAE (—HAR
Bt FTGEM £z A& (R 55 - 8085))
& 145,294,003k tn - FHKARER
0.1447% 7t + R {B#521,000,0007 7T ° A

"f)\iJr A=+—8 BEZEFH%K

N F{EH A5,200,0008 T( —Z T —+tF
+:ﬂ =+—H 37,800,000/ 7T ) * 1h A&
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+ - A=+—BHUHFEATFEEDHEENS
15,700,000 t( —E—+tF+-_A=+—
A : 16,700,000 7T) o

HAREE

RZE-N\F+ZA=+—H AEETE
ERERSAREE -

RS BUR
ARAEHIEREBE  §ESARABE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWmE DM

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any pledged assets.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed 58 employees. The
remuneration policy and package of the Group’s employees are
maintained at market level and are reviewed annually by management.
In addition to basic salary, discretionary bonuses, mandatory pension
fund and medical insurance scheme, share options may also be granted
to eligible employees at the discretion of the Board and are subject to
the performance of the individual employees as well as the Group.

BEHEE

RZEBE-N\F+_A=+—H AKETE
TREHEE -

ADEIR

R_E—N\F+-_A=+—H AE£EBEEH
58%1EE - AEBEEB CHFMBEE RiFBH
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&€ - I - a5l AES REER
BREtElOh  EFENEREBEENEERBRER
REEEE  BBERNAERREERLBRE -



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EEEEHTE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Qiu Bin, aged 51, was appointed as an executive Director and
the chief operating officer of the Company in July 2017 and was
re-designated as the chief executive officer of the Company in May
2018. Mr. Qiu holds a Master of Business Administration Degree
from the City University of Macau. He had worked with various large
corporations in mainland China and been responsible for project
investment, assets restructuring, property development and property
leasing and management. Mr. Qiu has over 15 years of experience
in investment management. Mr. Qiu was the general manager of
China Technology Education Trust Association during the period from
January 2009 to October 2011. Mr. Qiu was the executive director of
Suncity Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Sun Century Group
Limited), the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange, during the period from June 2012 to May 2015.

Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara, aged 47, was appointed as an executive
Director in June 2014 and the chief financial officer of the Company
in August 2014. Ms. Cheng is responsible for the overall financial and
administrative functions and corporate governance of the Group.
Ms. Cheng has over 20 years of professional and senior managerial
experiences in legal compliance, corporate financial planning and
management. Ms. Cheng has been holding senior positions in listed
companies in Hong Kong since 2000. She also worked for First
Shanghai Capital Limited and PricewaterhouseCoopers. Ms. Cheng
holds a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. She is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

HITES

ESESEAE 51 M- —tF L AKRE
RARBZPTESNEERY YR _-F
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LEEAGHERZERER QR (AIERKS
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PABERZ PR 7 e

BROLZL  475R R_TE-—MFEAEZ
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EEEEHTE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Fung Tze Wa, aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in May 2018. Mr. Fung is a certified public accountant
and a director of an accounting firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Fung has many
years of experience in auditing, taxation and company secretarial
practice in Hong Kong. He obtained a master degree in professional
accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2000. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, The Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong and The Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors.
He has been appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Freeman FinTech Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 279) since 2017,
Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited (Stock Code: 256) since
2004 and Imperium Group Global Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 776)
since 2012. These companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Dr. Huan Guocang, aged 69, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in June 2015. Dr. Huan is currently the chief
executive officer of Primus Pacific Partners Limited (“Primus”). Dr. Huan
holds master degrees in arts from the Graduate School of International
Studies of the University of Denver in 1982 and Columbia University in
1983, a PhD degree from Princeton University in 1987 and John Olin
post doctoral fellow from the Centre for International and Strategic
Studies of Harvard University in 1987. Before the set-up of Primus in
2005, Dr. Huan has been the Head of Investment Banking (Asia Pacific)
of HSBC, the co-Head of Investment Banking (Asia Pacific) of Citigroup,
the managing director and Head of China of BZW Asia Limited, a senior
economist and vice president of J.P. Morgan, an assistant professor of
Columbia University and an economist of Deutsche Bank. Dr. Huan is
currently the independent non-executive director of Beijing Development
(Hong Kong) Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

BAFHTES

BFERE 6255 RZTE—\FHAEZE
EERBUIERNITES - B ERBRNESFAD
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EEEEHTE

Mr. Lo Ka Wai, aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in March 2014. Mr. Lo has over 20 years
experience in financial management and corporate finance gained
from working as a chief financial officer and/or a company secretary
for various listed companies in Hong Kong. Currently, Mr. Lo is an
independent non-executive director of Yusei Holdings Limited, the
shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Lo had been an executive director of Han Tang International Holdings
Limited and National United Resources Holdings Limited, the shares
of both of which are listed on the main board. Mr. Lo had also been a
chief financial officer of a company, the shares of which are listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo graduated from the University of
Wollongong, Australia with a bachelor degree in commerce. Mr. Lo is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
CPA Australia.

BEEAE 50 R_T—NF=-A%
EERBIIPTES  BAEENEME
BEMABEBRE BB L KARMWE -
RemEBERPEREFTAREO - TFLK
5o BEABRRETRKIZERBRARZE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TP M \A*ﬁt‘:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain high standard of corporate
governance standards and procedures to safeguard the interests
of all shareholders and to enhance accountability and transparency.
The Company has complied with the code on corporate governance
practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31 December 2018 except
the following deviations:

The Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the role of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. Although the Company does not
have a Chairman, all major decisions are made in consultation with the
Board members and the senior management of the Company. There
are three independent non-executive Directors in the Board. The Board
considers that there is sufficient balance of power and the current
arrangement maintains a strong management position of the Company.

Under the Code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors
and other non-executive directors should attend general meetings. Dr.
Huan Guocang and Mr. Wu Fred Fong, independent non-executive
Directors and former independent non-executive Directors respectively,
were unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 25 May 2018 as they had other business commitments.

ERERER

RRBBOR DK 2 EEERIRENRE
o AREZEERZME - AKRINRAE
REMENMRESERE ARARBE_-T
—N\FE+-A=T—BHILFE-—BHETESE
BERHMABRARRES EMAR (T EHR
Al D MER+mE (R ERFERTAD
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STRMEX B A2 IRRT A E R RITRAE Z
BEERBRES R TEHER— AEE--EE
AN B R T ERAL - B FTA B ARKY
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RREERHIENFE  AREZIRHA
MERAR NP EIEE 2 REHAL -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERRSE

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) of the Listing Rules as
a code of conduct of the Company for directors’ securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code and the
Company’s code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2018, the Board comprised two executive
Directors, three non-executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors.

The composition of the Board’s members during the year ended 31
December 2018 and up to the date of this report is as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Qiu Bin (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Wu Siu Lam, William (resigned on 28 May 2018)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chiu Hau Shun, Simon (appointed on 24 December 2018 and
resigned on 22 March 2019)

Ms. Tang Lai Shan, Jo Jo (appointed on 24 December 2018 and
resigned on 22 March 2019)

Mr. Chen Zhong Min (resigned on 1 January 2019)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Fung Tze Wa (appointed on 28 May 2018)

Dr. Huan Guocang
Mr. Lo Ka Wai
Mr. Wu Fred Fong (resigned on 28 May 2018)

ESETESRINEETAH

ARABCHRMEMRAAE LM BTAES
ETRFRXHHEESTA(RETRIDER
ARRREFETERFR D ZBTER - KR
AERE2RESFHARSEH  SEENH
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TR \Aiﬁi
During the year ended 31 December 2018, thirteen Board meetings REBZ-ZT—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE -
were held. Details of the Directors’ attendance records were as folows:— HEIT+=XAEE2eH - EAEFHEF
BEERINAT -
Meetings attended/
Name Eligible to attend
HESERE
HE EEREEERRH
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Qiu Bin R E 52 4 13/13
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara R0+ 13/13
Mr. Wu Siu Lam, William R FRAE
(resigned on 28 May 2018) (Z2—\FRAZF+N\HEE) 3/3
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Chiu Hau Shun, Simon LA
(appointed on 24 December 2018 and (Z2— ) \F+ZAZ+HHEZER 1/1
resigned on 22 March 2019) —NF=ZAZ+ZHEE)
Ms. Tang Lai Shan, Jo Jo B2+
(appointed on 24 December 2018 and (ZE—N\F+ZAZT+HAEZER
resigned on 22 March 2019) RZZF—hF=A=-+-BET) 1/1
Mr. Chen Zhong Min PRER%A
(resigned on 1 January 2019) (ZE—NF—A—H#T) 5/9
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHITES
Mr. Fung Tze Wa HFERE
(appointed on 28 May 2018) (ZE—\FRAZT+N\BEZE) 9/9
Dr. Huan Guocang EEEEL 13/13
Mr. Lo Ka Wai ERERE 13/13
Mr. Wu Fred Fong HARTE
(resigned on 28 May 2018) (ZE—N\FRAZ=+/\HET) 3/3



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

N 'M\Aﬁi

During the year ended 31 December 2018, one general meeting was REZ-ZT—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE -
held. Details of the Directors’ attendance records were as follows:— HEBIT-RABRRKRE - BRAESHREFEH
BIEAT
Meetings attended/
Name Eligible to attend
HESERE
HE EEREEERRH
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Qiu Bin ER3R 55 4 1/1
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara 1 VN v 1/1
Mr. Wu Siu Lam, William R FRAEE
(resigned on 28 May 2018) (Z2—\FRAZT+N\HEE) 0/1
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Chiu Hau Shun, Simon HEEASAE
(appointed on 24 December 2018 and (ZE—N\F+ZAZT+HAEZER
resigned on 22 March 2019) —NF=ZAZ+ZHEE) 0/0
Ms. Tang Lai Shan, Jo Jo BB+
(appointed on 24 December 2018 and ( T N\E+AZTHREZER
resigned on 22 March 2019)) T-NEFE=AZ+HET) 0/0
Mr. Chen Zhong Min @ﬁﬁ?ﬁi
(resigned on 1 January 2019) (ZE—NF—A—H#T) 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHITES
Mr. Fung Tze Wa HFERE
(appointed on 28 May 2018) (ZE—\FHRAZT+N\BEZE) 0/0
Dr. Huan Guocang EEEEL 0/1
Mr. Lo Ka Wai ERFERE 1/1
Mr. Wu Fred Fong HARTE
(resigned on 28 May 2018) (Z2—\FRAZT+N\HEE) 0/1
The Board is responsible for formulation of the Group’s strategies ZE=& 8 AW TEARNEEZ K LBEEK - 4
and policies, approval of annual budget and business plan, and FEEHERERKE - UREELREEZH

supervising the management of day-to-day operation of the Group % & ﬁké.'i% MOBREBEEEUER -

to ensure the business objectives are met. In addition, the Board has
also delegated various responsibilities to the remuneration committee
(the "Remuneration Committee”) and the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) of the Company. Further details of these committees are

set out in this report.

Jktﬁ’l\ '
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERRE

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board has reserved for
its decisions all major matters of the Group including:—

1. discussion on the Group’s strategies and future development;

2. reviewed the term of appointment of Directors;

3. discussion on and approval of the financial results of the Group
and the recommendation of any dividend;

4. approval of the appointment and resignation of Directors;
5. approval on conversion of convertible bonds;

6. reviewed the interim results of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2018;

7. reviewed the internal control system and risk management of the
Group;

8.  approval on acquisition of a financed leased company;
9.  approval on the grant of share options;
10. approval on the borrowing of term loans;

11. approval on disposal of equity interest in Xinhua (Daging)
Merchandise Exchange Company Limited; and

12. matters as required by laws and ordinance.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory
and regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional
development for Directors will be arranged at the expenses of the
Company whenever necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ST TR \Aiﬁd:

The Directors are committed to complying with the Code provision
A.6.5 on Directors’ training. All Directors have participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided their training records for the financial year ended 31
December 2018 to the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company has not adopted A.2.1 of the Code by appointing
separate individual to take up the roles of the chairman and chief
executive officer. In the absence of a chairman, the executive Directors
will be responsible for the management of the Board and ensure good
corporate governance practices will be implemented.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) are appointed for a specific term subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election as required by the bye-law of the Company (the
“Bye-Law”).

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
specific written terms of reference which deals clearly with its authority
and duties. The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee
include:—

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management;

2. to determine the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and senior management and make recommendations to
the Board of the remuneration of non-executive Directors;

3. toreview and approve performance-based remuneration from time
to time;

EEARBEBTTUKRNEACSIEEBRES
BIlZETE  2RESFHL2HEBER ¥R
B NERTEMENZ MR WE A
NEREEREBE - \F+_A=1+—
B IR EFE 2 153508k -
FERITHEAR
NARWERNTREA2.11E - EEEBE

ANBEFERITHREAE - KRB EE T EE
B T ESKaSEEEeTRER I
BREMBRITEEEAER ©

FHTES
FRTES(RRBULIFNITESR) RIS EE
HEEE YRRBARAZAAMAT R
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERRE

4.  to review and approve the compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management and compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct; and

5. to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

Currently, the members of the Remuneration Committee are Mr. Fung
Tze Wa (Chairman), Dr. Huan Guocang and Mr. Lo Ka Wai. During the
year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration Committee held
one meeting. The attendance of individual members was set out in the
following table.

4. BAMBRHENHTESERSREERE
ZEEENEERT AT EMERIER
EREZRETH &

5. MERBIEEFIETMBRALSER]

EERNG ZHB -

B FMZEEXRERBFELLE(E
7)) EREEEIRERESLLE RNBE_T
—NF+ZA=+—HIFE HFHEES
BRIT-REZH - TRIJEKEHFEEZ

AV

Meetings attended/

Name Eligible to attend

HEEERE

HE EEREESRRH™
Mr. Fung Tze Wa HFERE

(appointed on 28 May 2018) (ZE—N\FRAZ+/\BEZE) 0/0

Dr. Huan Guocang EEEEL 1/1

Mr. Lo Ka Wai ERFERE 1/1

Mr. Wu Fred Fong HARTE
(resigned on 28 May 2018) (ZE—N\FHRAZ=+T/\HET) 0/0
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with specific written
terms of reference which deals clearly with its authority and duties. The
principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

1. to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations for changes as necessary, to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of, individuals nominated for directorships, to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, and to
make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors in particular the Chairman and the CEOQ.
The Nomination Committee should meet at least once a year and
when the need arises.

2. responsible for identifying, recruiting and evaluating new
nominees to the Board and the assessment of the qualifications
of the directors. The criteria adopted to select and recommend
candidates for directorship includes the candidate’s experience,
professional knowledge, integrity, time commitment and other
statutory or regulatory requirements.

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”) to comply
with the Code Provision on board diversity. The Policy aims to set out
the approach to achieve diversity in the Board to ensure that the Board
has the balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, knowledge and skills. In
identifying suitable candidates, the Nomination Committee will consider
candidates on merit and against the objective criteria with due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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The Nomination Committee currently consists of three independent
non-executive Directors namely Dr. Huan Guocang (Chairman), Mr. Lo
Ka Wai and Mr. Wu Fred Fong. During the year ended 31 December
2018, the Nomination Committee held two meetings. The attendance of
individual members was set out in the following table.

RAEZEBSHNA B IENTEE(AIE
BEEBT(EE)  BRELERPRTE)E
e RBE-ZZT—\F+_A=1+—HLF
B RELEEGLRITMAGHE - MR
EXEHFEER BN

Meetings attended/

Name Eligible to attend

HESERE

HE EEREEERRH

Dr. Huan Guocang EREELT 2/2
Mr. Fung Tze Wa RSTEEE

(appointed on 28 May 2018) (ZE—)\FRA-T+/\BEZET) 1/1

Mr. Lo Ka Wai EREXE 2/

Mr. Wu Fred Fong HHRTE
(resigned on 28 May 2018) (ZE—N\FRAZ+/\HEE) 0/0

During the meetings, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
composition of the Board member.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the remunerations payable
to the auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, are set out as follows:

SMAEFENEB ZARK

0

gL REERE

A

R ELET N &

REBE_Z—\F+_A=+—HILEFE "
ENARRZBMBELEERGER
FIBRARZMEEIIWT

Services rendered
Fee payable
RAIRE

ENEA

HK$'000

FET

BRI
FEEAZBRF

Audit services
Non-audit services

1,400
708
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with specific written
terms of reference which deals clearly with its authority and duties. The
principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors, and review
and monitor their independence and objectivity as well as the
effectiveness of the audit process;

2. 1o approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of external
auditors, maintain appropriate relationship between the Group and
the external auditors and develop policy on the engagement of the
external auditors to supply non-audit services;

3. to ensure the integrity of the interim and annual consolidated
financial statements and any significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them; and review the external auditors’
work, including management letter and management’s response;
and

4. to review the Company’s internal control and risk management
systems.

Currently, the members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Lo Ka Wai
(Chairman), Dr. Huan Guocang and Mr. Fung Tze Wa. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee held two meetings and
the attendance of individual members was set out in the following table.

BEREEE

ARBERUEZZEE Y E@MAIAEA
BREGE SEHAEBELEE - F%
ZEG7IBREBRAE

1. BOMNERBEI 2 ZRE  EMZERER
MEEFROHEEBER TR RER
SNERZ BRI ER B EE  UREZE
J_\_ﬂflzlﬁ)d('

2. HOEINEZEET M REERIGE - #
N5 [ B HNIEAZ EHAM 2 i B R 2
EZIEINEZ AR IERZ RIS 2 I
&

3. MWRTHRFERAMBHRRLETH
HAREMMERRIBEARR ZTE
1 ARERBIMNER AN 2 TIE - B
EEERTREEEZRE &

4. BIEARREZNEREE &R R E IR H
g o

B BEZZEeXREBERERRELE(E
B EREEEIRSTFESLSLE RBE_T
—NF+ZA=+—HIFE E%ZESg
BRITMAEH  TRIAJEKELFEEZE
AV

Meetings attended/

Name Eligible to attend

HESERE

®E EEREESRRH™

Mr. Lo Ka Wai BRERE 2/
Mr. Fung Tze Wa BFERE

(appointed on 28 May 2018) (Z2—)\FRAZT+N\HEZE) 1/1

Dr. Huan Guocang EEEBHL 2/2

Mr. Wu Fred Fong AR LS
(resigned on 28 May 2018) (ZE—N\FHRAZ=+T/\BET) 2/2
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board had no
disagreement with the Audit Committee’s view on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Or Wing Keung, the Company Secretary of the Company, is a
full time employee of the Group and has day-to-day knowledge of
the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary reports to the Chief
Executive Officer and is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company Secretary has duly complied with the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is directly responsible for internal control of the Group and
for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board conducts a review on the
internal control system of the Group on an annual basis and has the
responsibility to maintain an effective internal control system. The Board
also reviews and monitors the effectiveness of the internal control and
risk management systems on a regular basis to ensure that the systems
in place are adequate.

The Group’s internal control system is comprised of a system of
controlled management wherein various authoritative limits are placed
to ensure that the Group is able to supervise, control and assess
various functions within Group. The system further permits the Group to
safeguard its accounting records to minimize material errors in order to
provide as accurate as possible financial information.

During the year under review, the Company engaged an external
independent consultant to conduct a review on the internal control
system of the Group in order to maintain high standards of corporate
governance. The Board has also reviewed the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programs and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function. Based on the
above, the Board is of the view that the Company has established a
proper internal control system which is effective and adequate.
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The Company have formulated an inside information policy providing
guideline on handling inside information. The Company regularly
reminds the Directors and employees about compliance with all policies
adopted by the Company regarding inside information including the
Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules in relation to
dealings in securities of the Company.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
statement of the auditor of the Company, Messrs. BDO Limited,
about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the independent auditor’s report
on pages 74 to 84 of this annual report. Saved as disclosed in the
independent auditor’s report under the heading “Material Uncertainty
Related to Going Concern”, the Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern as at 31
December 2018.

The Directors wish to make the following statement with regard to the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern in the Independent
Auditor’s Report:

The Group had incurred loss after tax of approximately HK$82 million
and net operating cash outflows of approximately HK$14 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018. As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s
liabilities included borrowings with principal amount of approximately
HK$80 million (2017: Nil) which is repayable within three months from
31 December 2018 and the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$47 million (2017: HK$88 million) and net assets of
approximately HK$15 million (2017: HK$13 million). These conditions
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and therefore that,
it may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.
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Notwithstanding the above conditions, the financial statements were
prepared based on the assumption that the Group can be operated as
a going concern after taking into consideration of the following plans
and measures:

° subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group had
entered into an agreement with an independent third party for
borrowings of HK$90 million due in June 2019, approximately
HK$84.8 million of which was applied for the settlement of
borrowings as at 31 December 2018 with the remaining
approximately HK$5.2 million being applied as general working
capital of the Group;

o the Group is soliciting for further financing arrangements which
include placing of new shares to new potential investors, for the
future repayment of borrowings of HK$90 million due in June 2019
and general working capital purpose;

° the Group shall continuously review and monitor its receivables in
order to ensure the receivables are recovered on time; and

° the Group shall expand its existing business from the proceeds
received from the additional financing and shall continue to apply
various measures to tighten its operating expenditures in order
make improvements in cash inflow from its operations.

The Directors are of the view that the Group and the Company will be
able to continue as going concern and that the financial statements
have been prepared on that basis.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS

The Board is committed to providing clear and full performance
information of the Group to Shareholders through the publication
of interim and annual reports. In additional to dispatching circulars,
notices, financial reports to Shareholders, addition information is also
available to Shareholders from the Group’s website. Shareholders are
encouraged to attend the annual general meeting for which at least 20
clear business days’ notice is given. The chairman and Directors are
available to answer question on the Group’s businesses at the meeting.
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Pursuant to the Bye-laws, Shareholders holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the secretary of the Company, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition.

Pursuant to rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll. Accordingly, all the
resolutions put to vote at the annual general meeting will be taken by
way of poll. The chairman of the annual general meeting will explain the
detailed procedure for conducting a poll at the commencement of the
annual general meeting.

Shareholders who have enquiries to put to the Board may write to the
company secretary of the Company at the principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Suites 4301-5, 43/F., Tower 1, Times Square, 1
Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries. For the avoidance of
doubt, the Shareholder(s) must provide their full name, contact details
and identification in order that the Company can give them a reply.

The Group values feedback from Shareholders on its effort to promote
transparency and foster investor relationships. Comments and
suggestions are always welcomed.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has not made
any changes to the Bye-laws. An updated version of the Bye-laws is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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RIS - B RERHRE

INTRODUCTION AND APPROACH TO ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE AND REPORTING

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”)
summarizes the initiatives, programmes and performance of the Group
as well as demonstrating its commitment to sustainability.

The Group principally engages in securities brokerage, financial
services, asset management services, and proprietary trading services
in Hong Kong.

The Group believes that environmental protection, low carbon footprint,
resources conservation and sustainable development are the key trends
in society. In order to follow the key trends and pursue a successful and
sustainable business model, the Group recognizes the importance of
integrating Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) aspects into
its risk management system and has taken corresponding measures in
its daily operation and governance perspective.

REPORTING SCOPE

Unless stated otherwise, the ESG Report covers the Group’s business
activities in Hong Kong, which represent the Group’s major sources of
revenue. ESG Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”) data is gathered and
included within this report. The ESG Report includes the Group’s direct
operational control together with its subsidiaries. The following business
sections are reported:

° Securities brokerage and financial services;
° Asset management services; and
° Proprietary trading.

The Group will continue to assess the major ESG aspects of different
businesses to determine whether it needs to be included in the ESG
Report.
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REPORTING FRAMEWORK

This ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Reporting Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Information related to corporate governance practices of the Group is
included in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 16 to 29 of this
report.

REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG Report specifies the ESG activities, challenges and measures
being taken during the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Reporting
Period”).

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We value our stakeholders and their feedback regarding our businesses
and ESG aspects. In understanding and addressing their concerns,
we maintain close communication with our key stakeholders, including
customers, employees, suppliers, government and regulatory bodies,
shareholders and investors, as well as community and any other
stakeholders in concern.
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EHIRTEERE NIRRT HERERERE
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In forming our operational strategies and ESG measures, we consider
stakeholders’ expectations and strive to improve ESG performance
through mutual co-operation, which require utilizing diversified
engagement approaches and communication channels in creating

32

greater value for the community and others: /% BRE - AR REMAGEE AEE :
Stakeholders Communication Channel and Feedback Approach Frequency
& BRERERREBAR BER
Customers ° Emails and customer service hotline Day-to-day and/or
®P o BEREFPIRBEL irregular
e Meetings H &S E
s B
° Website, annual and interim reports
o . @ ERRTHERS
3
@ Employees ° Training, seminars and briefing sessions Irregular
S (== o I ARG MERE TiEHA
Z o Conference
z . EH
o ° Emails
= =3
§ ° %i“g
% Suppliers ° Supplier assessment exercise Irregular
= HrEm o HIERRTES TiE HA
< ° Business cooperation
o EBAIE
2
,% Government and e  Consultations Irregular
- regulatory bodies e BB NEH
g BT & B E e e Meetings
e ® i
N ° Mails and website
® o  TBIL AL
Shareholders and ° Annual general meeting Annual and/or if
investors s BRREAFKE necessary
RERRIEEE e Investor meetings BFER/HMEE
® KREESZ
o Press releases
o KM
° Annual and interim reports, announcements and circulars
o FHNPTHERE RAEMBXK
Community ° Community services and activities Irregular
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We aim to collaborate with our stakeholders to improve our ESG
performance and create greater value for the wider community on a
continuous basis.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The management and employees who are responsible for the key
functions of the Group have participated in preparing the ESG Report,
assisted the Group in reviewing its operation, identifying key ESG issues
and assessing the importance of these issues to our businesses and
stakeholders. We compiled a questionnaire in reference to the identified
material ESG issues to collect the information from relevant departments
and business units of the Group.

We have considered feedback from relevant stakeholders in determining
the Group’s material ESG aspects to be covered in this Report. These
are shown in the table below, together with the aspects of the ESG
Guide to which they relate:

BZMEEEFHEARS HEFHRMNER
B oaegkEeRE  THAEEZOHHER
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The ESG Reporting Guide The ESG material aspects of the Group Page
RIE - B REARRERES AEERE HEREREZEHE BB
A. Environment
A EE
A1. Emissions Emissions 35
HER e
Sewage Discharge 38
TSIKBERR
Waste Management 38
EEYEIE
A2. Use of Resources Energy Consumption 42
BIR{EA BEIRERE
Water Consumption 43
KIRERE
A3. The Environmental and Natural Resources Indoor Air Quality 45
R RARAEIR EANZEREE
Repair and Maintenance 45
HIERIRE
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The ESG Reporting Guide The ESG material aspects of the Group Page
RiE - HEREARREES AEERE HEREREZERE Hif
B. Society
B. #®&
B1. Employment Recruitment and Remuneration 46
(= RS Ko 5
Work-life Balance 47
TEEATE &
Promotion and Career Development 47
BEARBERR
Communication Channels 48
BRRE
Equal Opportunity and Anti-discrimination 48
® PERE R RIS
z B2. Health and Safety Safety Training 49
> REEZ2 221
g Employee Health Management 49
z EERRERE
c B3. Development and Training Training and Development Management 50
= R R EIRBEEE
‘,f B4. Labor Standards Prevention of Child Labor or Forced Labor 51
= 25 T 4R B IEE T skog |45 T
@ B5. Supply Chain Management Environmental and Social Responsibility of Suppliers 51
HrEREn HERRREIHGEE
z B6. Product Responsibility Customer Service Policy 52
2 EREA PRI EE
= Safeguarding Customer’s Assets 52
i REEFAE
3_%' Data Privacy and Protection 53
S BRI RIRE
® Investor Protection and Education 54
BEEBRERKE
B7. Anti-corruption Anti-corruption 56
k&S REE
Prevention of Money-laundering 56
By IR
B8. Community Investment Community Investment 57
HRRE A
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The recognition of sustainable development, employee benefits
and development as well as environmental protection are the most
fundamental elements to the operation of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group confirmed that appropriate and
effective management policies and internal control systems for ESG
issues are in place and confirmed the information disclosed in the ESG
Report meets the ESG Reporting Guide.

CONTACT US

Comments and suggestions are welcome from our stakeholders.
Stakeholders may provide comments on the ESG Report or towards
our performance in respect of sustainable development.

A.

Al.

ENVIRONMENT
EMISSIONS

General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators (“KPI”)

The Group strives to protect the environment through the
implementation of control activities and monitoring measures
in its business activities and workplace. We are committed to
promoting a green environment by introducing environmentally
friendly business practices, educating our employees to raise their
awareness on environmental protection and complying with the
relevant environmental laws and regulations.

In order to enhance our environmental governance practice and
mitigate the environmental impact produced by the Group’s
operations, we have adopted and implemented relevant
environmental policies and have communicated such policies
to our employees. These policies apply the waste management
principles of “reduce”, “reuse”, “recycle” and “replace” as well
as emission mitigation principle, with an objective of minimizing
the adverse environmental impacts. These policies also ensure
the waste disposal or emission generated is conducted in an
environmentally responsible manner.

Within our policy framework, we continually look for different
opportunities to pursue environmental friendly initiatives, enhance
our environmental performance by reducing energy and use of
other resources.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with environmental laws and regulations
in Hong Kong, including but not limited to the “Waste Disposal
Ordinance”, “Air Pollution Ordinance”, and “Water Pollution Control
Ordinance”, that would have a significant impact on the Group.

Emissions

Since the Group’s major business is securities trading and
asset management in Hong Kong, the Group has no industrial
production or any factory facilities. Therefore, the Group did
not generate notable level of air or water pollutants during the
Reporting Period.

On the other hand, the Group only generated limited greenhouse
gas (“GHG”) emissions mainly arising from the petrol consumed in
business vehicles and electricity usage of the workplace. During
the Reporting Period, the Group’s total GHG emissions amounted
to approximately 140.93 tCO,e (2017: 139.59 tCO,g) and the
intensity was 2.71 tCO_e per employee (2017: 2.85 tCO,e/
employee). The detailed summary of the GHG emission is shown
as below:

GHG Emission Performance Summary:

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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R HIRE - NSRBI R IR AR BIERK
BEAFENERBEERFERER (BEET
IRCEEY R B IERDI) ~ CZ=ROFRE BlED)
Rl AOTRE HIEBD) I

Y
HRAEBEIZNEENFEEFEEREE
EIRHERS - AR E M TR A FE S T
AR o FE UL - R E B AN S B IR E A
BV ZERIKTRY °

S—FHE AfBEELEERAZTRE(R
ERBDERDETEAREHKER G RITIE
SBRAEME - RIRERHB  AEEBRER
BEHRAEN140RBE -_StREE(ZE
—+F 13950 —ELIE=S) - BEEE
REBEB2TE_S(tIEE(ZT—+5F:
285ME—EtiREE ER) - BMERBYNR
SEFAMEN TR -

mERBEHFNRRME -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T+F
Intensity? Intensity
(tCO,e/ (tCO,e/
GHG Scope' tCOe employee) tCOe employee)
T B
Wi = | 1Lk (W = bk WL hx (e &b fix

BEREHE EE

EE/E8) 28 EE/RH)

Direct GHG emission (Scope 1)

- petrol consumption 21.43
BERRERBHNE (HE1)

- hFE
Indirect GHG emission (Scope 2)

— electricity consumption 119.50
ERERBHNE (BE2)

- B

0.41 22.89 0.47

2.30 116.70 2.38

Total GHG emission (Scope 1 and Scope 2) 140.93
BERBHNEE (HE1 REE2)

2.7 139.69 2.85
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Notes:

GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide
equivalent and are based on, but not limited to, “The Greenhouse
Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards”
issued by the World Resources Institute and the World Business
Council for Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an ESG
Report? — Appendix Il: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”
issued by the HKEX, “Global Warming Potential Values” from the
IPCC Fifth Assessment Report, 2014 (AR5), and the Sustainability
Report 2017 published by the Hongkong Electric Company.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 52 employees
in Hong Kong office. The data is also used for calculating other
intensity data.

Electricity consumption accounts for a major source of our
greenhouse gas emissions. We have adopted various green
measures in our offices to improve our operational efficiency
and to reduce the greenhouse gas emissions as well as energy
consumption of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has performed the
following measures relating to mitigating emissions:

Adopted lighting control based on actual needs;

Replaced energy-inefficient light bulbs to energy efficient
LED lightings by phases;

Utilized higher energy-efficiency office equipment in our
workplace;

Arranged regular examination of the business vehicles on the
exhaust gas emission;

Encouraged our staff to utilize teleconferences and video
conferences, to reduce air and carbon emissions related to
transportation needed for meetings;

Publicised environmental protection messages and green
tips to our staff on the message board, staff newsletters or
emails regularly; and

Encouraged our staff to participate in activities relating to the
promotion of green environment.

Despite the Group’s energy efficiency and emission performance
being improved in long term, our colleagues’ sense of
environmental protection and emission mitigation has been
continuously fostered and awareness of their responsibility in
achieving energy saving in workplace has been strengthened.
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(ARS) 1y [ 2Bk FHREREE] - RBE
BEREARARTIEH - —LF0#F
BERBENERBREFE -

2. HEZZE-NFF+ZA=t+—H &K
EEEEMAERELEBS2A © %
HERITARFTEEMZZEIE -

ERARAEBAERBYMNTIER
R e BB R AZT RN S ARREE
AR E AP 2 E e MR R E RS
BERUA R ANER B BERE -

R EHIRE - NEB 3T MBI
BEfE R -

o IRBERFT RKEMBARIES]

« INREEESEENEAERASN
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Sewage Discharge

As aforementioned, we do not consume significant amounts of
water through our business activities and therefore our business
activities did not generate material portion of discharges into
water. The water supply and discharge facilities of the offices are
managed by the property management company.

Waste Management

Due to the business nature, we also did not generate significant

amount of hazardous wastes and only generated limited non-
hazardous wastes during the Reporting Period.

The non-hazardous wastes generated by the Group’s operations

JTIKBEA

o ECFrAt - BAPIR E AR E P T
FEXERK - Bt - B EFEEL
REERETK » PRENHKMBEK
REHYEEENREE -

BERYEE

EBEEEA  RBREHE - BATK
EEAREREEEY MMEELEARE
EEEY

AEHLEELNEZRERNEZ AR

(92 iy =
z mainly consist of paper. During the Reporting Period, the ok o RIEHAME - ASBERKESOTAT
5 consumption volume generated by the Group is shown as below: K
=
>
i 2018 2017
o —E-N\F —T—tF
% Intensity Intensity
& Non-hazardous Quantity (Pages/ Quantity (Pages/
=
= waste category (Pages) employee) (Pages) employee)
o B T

BEBRZEYESR gE2(R) (RMEE) HE(R) (GRMEE)
2
)% Paper 183,976° 3,538 182,6114 3,726.76
% AR
3
E The Group adheres to waste management principle and strives to REBERTEMERRE > MHEER
2 properly manage and dispose wastes produced by our business BREEBMOESSEBELNMEREE

activities. Wy o
Notes: P%E -

3. Equivalent to 0.8 tonnes.
4. Equivalent to 0.8 tonnes.
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Non-hazardous waste handling method

Our staff and the assigned administrative staff in the workplace
collectively take the responsibilities for the waste management, in
reference to the established environmental policies, including but
not limited to the following measures:

o Organized, maintained and cleaned the garbage and waste
recycling areas;

° Sorted recycled wastes into appropriate containers;

° Placed appropriate signage on walls and bins, indicating the
types of wastes to be recycled; and

° Ensured that no garbage is to be placed on building
colonnade areas.

Under the waste management principles of “reduce”, “reuse”,

“recycle” and “replace” established in the relevant guidelines, the

Group has taken the above measures.

Usage of paper

During the Reporting Period, the Group has performed the
following measures relating to efficient use of paper:

° Minimized the paper usage at our workplace by recycling
used papers regularly and using double-sided printing;

° Encouraged our staff to use electronic communications for
directories, forms, reports and storage when possible;

° Recycled and reused papers, carton boxes, envelopes and
folders which have been used, including all non-confidential
documents from the Group; and

° Explored the opportunity of using Forest Stewardship
Council certified paper.

With the aim of minimizing the environmental impact of generating
non-hazardous wastes from its business operation, the Group
recycled approximately 738 kg (2017: 671 kg) papers, which
are equivalent to reduce the greenhouse emissions amounted to
around 3.54 tonnes (2017: 3.22 tonnes).
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A TIESFfRERE

o TEETEWEMAE KB K
S RFEFRAETBAT

o  TEREMTMBHMAR  HHE
BRXMR - BEARENA I
B R

s BRHMEEARMEEZRESRA
HARGR ©

AEEREAEEEKEEEEANESE
BEEVHIRBNFE  ASED EKRY
738 F R (ZE—+HF : 671 F ) 4K -
HERBADREREBYEMAIS54HE (=
T—+tF : 322MF) o

39



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HBRERRS

Maximizing the lifespan of office stationary BEARR N m & FEm

The procurement and disposal of office stationary serves another WARMNKBEREEERMB NER

focus of our operational sustainability efforts. The office stationary LEARFENNS —EZ2HHE - WAR

has a great hidden environmental and social impact across its mEEERSTPREZERANIRER

product life. The impacts arise from its production and use to HEerE ERFEREGRELE @

eventual disposal. We have launched the following measures: RN EZERE - RPIEHLATE

B

e Maximized every stationary lifespan (such as plastic binding o FEREWMPHARMEAITERTE
ring, paper clip, etc.) by searching opportunities to reuse and RIERRE AR EITREMNE
refurbish them internally whenever feasible; T BRELERSHRS(INBEE

£ HKRZ)NEASS

e Purchased reusable stationary whenever it is possible, such o HRUEHBEVEEFEANAR W
as refillable rollerball pens and correction type paper; A ETE R SEES

e Avoided single-use disposable items; and o WHRERA—XUAR: K

e Used rechargeable batteries where applicable. o IMEREMAAZEENM -

Enhancement of awareness EEHRIRE

The Group has enhanced general awareness of importance ASEBEBBETHEHBERARKET -
of reducing waste generation and disposal through green HEFEREFETIEIIWMEERE - RS
procurement practices and by training and promotion to our staff, A EEVIES KRB EZ R ©

suppliers and customers.
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Despite the Group’s waste disposal being reduced in long run, our & E RHARBEAEENEMRIEE R - K
staff's awareness of their responsibility in reducing the wastes in £ E & TR QISR D REEEMNEEER
workplace has been strengthened. BEELAR

On top of complying with the general disclosure requirement of ~ FRESFATEEH —MEEZ I - K2 &
Aspect A1, we have complied with the KPI requirement which is ~ SFRASRAE IR < B3k - BT -
summarized below:

8102 1HOd3Yd IVNNNY
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A2,

“Comply or explain” Provisions

[ NP | R

KPIA1.1
R IR AL

KPIA1.2
FRRAEIEIRAL2

KPIA1.3
FARAARUSIRALS

KPIA1.4
FRRERIEIRAL4

KPI A1.5
FARAESIEIRALS

KPIA1.6
FARERUIEIRALG

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BER TR AR R ARRA B DB -

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity.
RERBARE (UBEETE) R (WER)BE -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity.
FIEEBEREEDRE (UEHE) R (WER) ZE -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity.
FRELEEREYAE (LETE) E(ER) ZE -

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results
achieved.

WU PR B e MR AR -

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.

MR A ENBFTEZYN L  RIEELENERLFARS
PSR o

USE OF RESOURCES A2. EREH

General Disclosure and KPI

The Group is committed to optimizing the use of resources in all
of its business operations. Therefore, we have taken the initiatives
to introduce resource efficiency and eco-friendly measures to the

Group’s operations on a continuous basis.

The Group has established relevant policies and procedures in
governing the efficient use of resources, including petrol, electricity
and office consumabiles, in accordance with the objectives of
achieving higher energy efficiency and reducing the unnecessary

use of materials.

Disclosed
2t
Disclosed

gt

Not applicable
TEA

Disclosed
2t

Disclosed
sl

Disclosed
2t

— R BEMERE ISR

AEEBNOREEMBERBEETERL
MAEIR - Bt - NEBE—mEEE K ES
EEMRRESBMAREBLED -

AEBECRBERE SERBE RS
FEVEMRERNER - HIEHEBBR
LEFEBBRMNBER  SFTUMH -
BN RFEN o
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Energy Consumption BEIRBEAE
Due to the business nature of the Group, the volume of petrol ERAEBMNEBKME - NEEMBRAERA
consumption and electricity consumption are considered as ~BEMHEEIK o

relatively low.

RERRE - AEESHEEENEEE A

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s consumption in petrol
and electricity were:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Intensity Intensity
(Unit/ (Unit/
Energy Type Unit Consumption employee) Consumption employee)
z BRE g
z R B EHER (BREE) EER (B RE)
<
z Petrol® Litre 8,057.98 154.96 8,453.21 172.51
5 YU 7+
g Electricity kWh 151, 271 2,909.06 147,727 3,041.84
o E-W) T ELRF
=
= Note: sE -
© 5. In reference to the conversion provided on U.S. Energy Information 5 &BEEXHB RS BmTE
Administration Energy Conversion Calculators, gasoline AT E’JL}@—,D 2R N\F
’é consumption equivalent to 75,147.55 kWh and 78,833.41 kWh in MZTE—+FABEREINBEER
S 2018 and 2017 respectively. 75,147 55 F ELFF )2 78,833.41 F FL B ©
>
o)
g On top of the energy saving measures disclosed in Aspect A1, the B A1 BT TR ERREFE BESN - AN B TR
E Group has also conducted the following actions to improve the BT NIERIRSRERNERR - B1E
2 energy efficiency performance, including but not limited to: BRERR
e Placed reminder stickers next to the power switches and o RERFABE - ERZHELIETE®R
power buttons and reminder posters in order to encourage ZoRANIZEEIZES EHMMET
our staff to take initiatives in energy saving; PREREBETEHE
e  Encouraged employees to turn off idling equipment, s HEITFEFANTIE - *ﬂ%béil
computers and lightings, when not in use or after working HERERE WEKKRBAR
hours; &
e Monitored the energy usage on a monthly basis, along with o THERBRREREBER WEHEE
investigating significant variance noted; ERETHE
e Utilized natural light where possible; . AIREFIFA B A
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Adopted power-saving features for office equipment and
computers;
Performed vehicle and equipment maintenance on a regular
basis to prevent inefficient fuel consumption or abnormal
operations;

Tmﬁﬁ#)#“‘“ﬁ& MRIERE DAL

TFHPE B MR BT TIRE - AR
IHESURELE RS EE R 1E



HERERRE

° Supported the Energy Saving Charter in 2018 imposed by

the Building Department, including taking below measures:

0 Maintained an average indoor temperature between
24-26°C during the summer period;

o) Switched off electrical appliances when not in use
from; and

0 Procured energy efficient appliances only upon
replacement of old appliances or due to new business
needs.

Throughout adopting different energy conservation measures,
the Group believes it has set a role model for corporate social
responsibility as well as has enhanced its green and low-carbon
image. More importantly, the Group strives in cost reduction in
terms of less electricity consumption in workplace in the long run.

Water Consumption

The Group has not consumed significant water in its business
activities. During the Reporting Period, only 8.75 tonnes (2017:
8.82 tonnes) of drinking water were consumed by the Group and
the drinking water consumption per employee was 0.17 tonnes
per employee (2017: 0.18 tonnes per employee).

The Group recognizes the growing concern of the public regarding
water conservation and is committed to promoting awareness of
water conservation amongst its staff.

Green messages and labels of water conservation are posted to
remind staff to avoid unnecessary water consumption, including
encouraging them utilize hand dryer instead of paper towel in
toilets.

Due to the Group’s business nature and operation mainly based
in Hong Kong, the issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose is
not relevant to the Group.

Use of packaging material

In addition, the Group has no industrial production or any factory
facilities. Therefore, we did not consume significant amount of
package materials during the Reporting Period

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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o iﬁ)ﬁ?gﬁ/\: T — \FHITHED
BEAIE - BFEREREUA &M
o EFHEFERNTIRER24-
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o MK TARBHER: &

o ENFEHEZSRAHFENE
BEERREEERS -

BB SR RERE - AKRERER
ERtETEsERYEE  YERS
HEE 1&1%511£W&E’]¢%ﬁ/% FEE
M2 REIME » AEERDFETE
SGFTE R R EAA

KB FE
REBEEKTHRTISRERAK - B
HwERB AEBEHA TS5 (=
—+t 4 : 8.82W8) BRAK - BREEH
HOKEROITHE RBRE(ZZ—CF:
0.18MWF fE8) °

AREBEEHRERNREE ’7FH7J<E’JE| & 2
E o WERSEE THIETVKE# ©

SRAGETHIRKIRIRIE B IR HIEEEE T
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On top of complying with the general disclosure requirement of BREFAEEN —MBEE RN &K
Aspect A2, we have complied with the KPI requirement which is MEBFRREIIEE 2 EK - #atm
summarized below: T

“Comply or explain” Provisions
[ TESFRUBRRE | RS

KPI A2 1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type and intensity.  Disclosed
BRERUERA21 RELESHNEER SHEEREEREE o gt
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Disclosed
BRERIEIZEA22 BREKEREE - Bt
KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results Disclosed
BSEBUIEIZA2.3  achieved. Bt
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KPI A2.4 Description on whether there is any issue in sourcing water Issue in sourcing water —
FASRAENIEIRA2.4  that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results  not applicable due to its
achieved. business nature;
i UK EGE R AOR E Rl B ERIERE - ARIRARKSEETEI& Remaining - disclosed
FR1SBCR o SKEUKRE 8 - T A
(AxEBME): Hih -
gt
>
z
S KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products. Not applicable due to its
% BRERUEZA25  BERMAREMRNRE - business nature
3 NEm (BXEBIEE)
=
S
®
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A3. ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES A3. BRERAAELHR

General Disclosure and KPI

Although the Group has remote impact on the environment
and natural resources, as an ongoing commitment to good
corporate citizenship, the Group endeavours to minimize
negative environmental impact of our business operations and
our investment portfolios, in order to achieve a sustainable
development for generating long-term values to our stakeholders
and community as a whole.

We regularly assess the environmental risks of our businesses,
and adopt preventive measures as necessary to reduce the risks
and ensure the compliance of relevant laws and regulations.

On top of considering the sustainability element in its investment
portfolios, we have also carried out the following measures to
mitigate any adverse impact, including but not limited to:

Indoor Air Quality

Indoor air quality in our workplace is regularly monitored and
measured. By adopting air purifying equipment in the workplace
as well as conducting regular cleaning of air conditioning system,
these measures resulted in maintaining indoor air quality and
filtering out pollutants, contaminants and dust particles.

Repair and Maintenance

From time to time, our offices may undergo repair and
maintenance work. To lessen the disturbance of these activities
on our staff and customers, our suppliers are requested to use
materials or equipment with less emissions and noises when
performing such repair and maintenance work.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
non-compliance with laws and regulations in respect of the
environment and natural resources.

—RIKEBENERANIER

EEAREYBERRAARYEE
W IEBRITOEARMIBERE - A
EEBNBEBLERREEE WER
MEEYERESIE  ATRTHER
B ARMOEHEREEBELR
(B -

BAEMFERMERGORERR - I
PRAN A 22 1O b7 015 1 AR D LR B B AR
BT AR MRS -

GHEBERBEAAANAKELERE
S TAVIRE BT 538 e AR E T AA
BEmEE  BRENRR

)
I

EHEZENAETESFNERNZERE
= ANEBBRBEIESAFRAZERF
{ERBE AR TEBB R R LS
NEHERTEREZU BRI R
IREE o

P

HERRE

BTN E R BE T R ETT S S AR
BTF- RREZFEDHRMNET
REFHNTE BETEBRERRE
TERS - ERIPIMHERE AR DB
RN RS O SRR A

REHRE - AEBY TNEFERRA
RIBRAARBERITEOEAATE AR
ERRIER
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B1.

On top of complying with the general disclosure requirement of
Aspect A3, we have complied with the KPI requirement which is
summarized below:

“Comply or explain” Provisions
[ TESFRUBRRE | RS

BRESTA3EmEA —RIMEESRIN - HMIEE
SRABERIEIR 2 B3 Btk

KPI' A3.1

manage them.

B AE IR

A3.1 BREAZENTTH -
SOCIETY
EMPLOYMENT

General disclosure

Human resources are the foundation in supporting the
development of the Group. Hence, we established the Human
Resources Management Policy to fulfill our vision on people-
oriented management and realizing the full potential of
employees. The captioned policy and procedures are formally
documented in the Staff Handbook, covering resources planning,
performance evaluation, training, recruitment, resignation, transfer,
compensation and welfare and employee satisfaction survey, etc.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with employment-related laws and
regulations (i.e. “Employment Ordinance”) in Hong Kong that
would have a significant impact on the Group.

Recruitment and Remuneration

The Company hires employees through open recruitment, fair
competition and strict appraisals, and recruits staff on a selective
basis in accordance with the standard of “having both ability
and integrity”. Employees of the Group are remunerated at a
competitive level and are rewarded according to their performance
and experience. The promotion and remuneration of the Group’s
employees are subject to review regularly. Remuneration packages
include holidays, annual leave, medical scheme, dental scheme,
group insurance, mandatory provident fund, yearend double pay
and discretionary bonus.

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to

B1.

Disclosed
2t

AR ARDURBERRABERNEAZE RO IRREE

o

4/

—RIKE
ANEBRRIFBAEEERZER - B
- BAIHE T ANBERERBER - A
BERUAAR/ARZ EERS  BEREZ
EEpERE - LHBUR MR FER T
PALEALE  BEERHE - KB
fl ~ 53 HHES - BEE - SABE  FrEME
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Work-life Balance

We value the importance of maintaining a healthy lifestyle and
work-life balance of our employees. The Group actively engages
its employees through social, employee bonding, outing, volunteer
works and charity activities. We have organized work-life balancing
activities for employees:

o Buffet;

o Christmas party;

o Spring tea;

° Longer lunch hour to enhance productivity: 12:30 pm-2 pm
(1.5 hours);

° Birthday celebration for every employee; and
° Celebration of festivals.

Promotion and Career Development

The employee promotion is subject to review regularly. The
Group has established objective performance indicators for
annual performance evaluation. In facilitating an effective two-
way communication, every supervisor has to discuss the work
performance with their subordinates regularly. Based on the
assessment result, we offer rewards to employees in encouraging
their continuous improvement.

We strive to develop an efficient human resource management
mechanism to serve for the development strategy for the Group.
Therefore, we offer chances of learning, training, practice and
improvement to our talents according to their ability, quality
and personal development with combination to their career
path. We also implement track inspection and position dynamic
management to help our talents to improve their comprehensive
ability.
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Communication Channels

To understand the work satisfaction of our employees, we have
established various channels to communicate with them, including
briefing sessions for new joiners, mailbox for recommendation,
and employee satisfaction survey. On semi-annual basis, survey
forms are distributed to collect employees’ opinions on work
responsibility, working environment, organization and employee
relationship, compensation and benefits, etc. The management
reviews the result of the survey and implements corresponding
improvement actions.

Equal Opportunity and Anti-discrimination

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and does not
discriminate on the basis of personal characteristics, gender
or age. The Group has Staff Handbook outlining the terms and
conditions of employment, expectation for employees’ conducts
and behaviours as well as employees’ rights and benefits. The
Group has also established and implemented policies in order to
promote a harmony and respectful workplace. With the aim of
ensuring fair and equal protection for all employees, the Group has
zero tolerance on sexual harassment or abuse in the workplace in
any form.

The proportion of employees by gender:
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B2. HEALTH AND SAFETY B2. @#FEflz s

General disclosure

The Group prides itself on providing a safe and effective work
environment as we believe that employees are the valuable assets
of an enterprise and regards human resources as its corporate
wealth. To maintain a safe working environment, the Group has
established safety policies on the prevention and remediation of
safety accidents, and detection on potential safety hazards in
workplace.

The Group follows the occupational health and safety guidelines
recommended by Labour Department and Occupational Safety
and Health Council, and regularly encourages employees to attend
relating workshops or training courses. The Human Resources
and Administration Department also takes responsibilities for
offices’ occupational health and safety and relevant promotions
and monitoring.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with the laws and regulations relating to
health and safety (i.e. “Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance”)
in Hong Kong that would have a significant impact on the Group.

Safety Training

Employees should attend the trainings organized by the Group,
in relation to occupational safety. Emergency and evacuation
procedures were established to response timely and orderly in
any major safety accidents. Employees are also free to provide
feedbacks on improving the workplace safety.

Employee Health Management

The Group offers comprehensive health care coverage for our
entire employees, including medical benefits and dental benefits.
The Group has also continued to organize work-life balancing
activities for employees and carry out other activities to promote
healthy living practices. Health and safety communications are
provided to employees to present the relevant information and
raise awareness of occupational health and safety issues.
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General disclosure

The Group regards our staff as the most important asset as
they help to sustain its core values and culture. The Group is
committed to providing comprehensive on-the-job trainings, which
collectively serve as a platform to encourage staff to develop
potential and self-improvement.

Training and Development Management

The Group has developed relevant training policies and
procedures to enhance the training effectiveness. A training plan is
developed by respective management based on the requirements
from various departments and employees. Employees are
granted training for acquiring the related licenses such as license
of the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”) if necessary.
Management examines the effectiveness of training programs, and
provides improvement plans.

The Group has also organized workshops, seminars, and
training programmes for employees covering various aspects to
improve their level of skills and knowledge and maximize their
potentials. Employees are also encouraged to enroll in external
study opportunities and job-related courses to enrich themselves
through acquiring higher professional skills and qualifications.

During the Reporting Period, we organized in-house training
classes, and invited external trainers to deliver training classes.
Categories of the training classes included language proficiency,
operational management, leadership skills, occupational health
and safety, Continuous Professional Training of professional
qualifications, and professional license examinations preparation,
etc., for enhancing employees’ awareness, skills, knowledge and
leaderships.
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B4.

BS5.

LABOUR STANDARDS
General disclosure
Prevention of Child Labor or Forced Labor

Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited during the
recruitment process as defined by the laws and regulations. The
Group strictly complies with local laws and conducts recruitment
based on the Hong Kong “Employment Ordinance”. Personal
data are collected during the process to assist in the selection
of suitable candidates. The Human Resources Department also
ensures identity documents are carefully checked. If violation is
involved, it will be dealt with in the light of the circumstances as
clearly stated in the Group’s Staff Handbook.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with the laws and regulations relating
to child and forced labour (i.e. “Employment Ordinance”, etc.) in
Hong Kong that would have a significant impact on the Group.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
General disclosure

The Company recognizes the importance of green supply chain
management in mitigating the indirect environmental and social
risks. In view of green supply chain management, we are aware of
the environmental and social practices of the suppliers, and strive
to engage suppliers with responsible acts to the society.

Environmental and Social Responsibility of Suppliers

We actively share green practices with our suppliers, and
deliver the importance of sustainable operations to them. In the
supplier selection process, suppliers’ environmental and social
performances are considered as a selection criteria for establishing
long-term relationship. Suppliers should not violate the relevant
environmental and labour laws, and substantial violation may incur
the termination of supplier relationship.

On the other hand, we have also formulated rules to ensure our
suppliers competing under an open and fair mechanism. We do
not differentiate or discriminate certain suppliers and we also
strictly monitor and prevent all kinds of business bribery.
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General disclosure

The Group is committed to provide reliable products and services
by offering sustainable and responsible platform and services as
well as protects the interests of clients.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with customer services, asset protection
and data privacy-related laws and regulations (i.e. “Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance”, “Securities and Futures (Client Securities)
Rules”, etc.) in Hong Kong that would have a significant impact on

the Group.

Customer Service Policy

The Group strives to provide excellent services in supporting
our customers. Customer service personnel offers the required
assistance to customers on the application of services with their
professional knowledge.

Customers are free to provide feedback on our service delivery.
If customer is dissatisfied on the service quality, they can raise
a complaint to the Group, and we have established complaint
resolution procedures and logs for settling complaints. Complaints
are summarized regularly for the review of management in
designing remedial actions for major deficiency. On annual
basis, the Group performs a customer satisfaction survey in
understanding the customer opinions.

Safeguarding Customer’s Assets

Certain subsidiaries of the Group are licensed and regulated under
SFC. As a custodian of customers’ assets, we strictly comply with
the relevant laws and regulations on handling and safeguarding
of customers’ assets. We implement the necessary controls
to ensure customers’ assets are accounted for properly and
promptly, and adequately safeguarded.
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Segregated accounts are maintained in keeping customers’
assets. Transactions should only be executed when customers’
consent is received, or customers’ obligation is required to be met
on agreed contracts. Adequate audit trail is maintained to enable
investigation of suspected irregularities. Regular compliance
reviews and audits are conducted to detect any non-compliance
with regulatory requirements. Any irregularities should be
immediately reported to management.

Data Privacy and Protection

The Group strictly adheres to regulatory requirements on data
privacy, through fulfilling high security and confidentiality of
personal data privacy protection. We are committed to maintaining
and protecting personal data.

Internal policy has been established to govern the collection and
handling of personal data received from a data subject.

Under our data protection principles, a Privacy Policy Statement
is acknowledged to enable our clients to understand our general
policies and practices in relation to the collection, holding and use
of individual personal data.

Furthermore, in accordance with our data protection principle,
whenever there is collection of personally identifiable information
from individuals, a Personal Information Collection Statement is
acknowledged to notify clients for certain matters in relation to
specific collections of personal information from them. The Group
will not use or provide personal data to any person for use in direct
marketing unless we have obtained the clients’ consent in writing.
Meanwhile, the Group maintains secure measures to prevent
unauthorized use of personal data.
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Investor Protection and Education

The Group has also established procedures relating to the services
and products provided. After the “Know Your Clients” procedures
and assessment processes are performed, the financial services
or products provided to clients are thus based on their financial
background, trading experience and risk tolerance level to suit the
their needs.

We are committed to provide clear and balanced information
to clients. The Group established a classification system that
classifies the capability and intentions of investors. The Company
divides clients into professional investors and retail investors
based on the standard of financial knowledge of investors. It will
especially protect the retail investors, conduct risk evaluation for
retail investors, classify and grade the investors according to the
results of risk tolerance evaluation.

The Group adopts appropriateness tests for different financial
products. We have adopted risk assessment for different
financial products to evaluate their risk level according to gained
information of them. We have established a matching principle
between product and clients’ risk tolerance ability to fully reveal the
product risks and ensure appropriate products are recommended
to appropriate clients.

Moreover, the Group has set standards for advertising and sales
literature which require information contained in all advertising and
sales literature must be factual, and we have also prohibited the
use of false, misleading or inaccurate statements in any form of
communication.
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B7. ANTI-CORRUPTION B7. RE'S
General disclosure — R E
The Company strives to achieve high standard of ethics in our RARMENRBEBLENRIREER
business operations. Fraudulent acts such as corruption, bribery, IKF - BRERBAREMN - BRAMAGEER
and collusion are strictly prohibited. Employees should comply FEM - EEERITERRBNEEST

with the Code of Conduct in performing business activities,
and they should consult the management if they suspect any
professional misconduct. Employees should also declare any
conflict of interest under their job responsibility which may impair
the integrity on work.

We have established a whistle-blowing mechanism for reporting
any potential fraudulent cases. The management is responsible
for the investigation and resolution. To further mitigate business
frauds, internal audit function is established for continuous
evaluation of the Group’s internal control effectiveness, detecting
potential deficiency, and identifying areas of improvement. Internal
audit report is distributed to the responsible department for the
timely remediation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has strictly complied
with all applicable laws and regulations, as well as guidance from
various regulatory bodies, including the SFC. The Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and regulations
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money-laundering that
would have a significant impact on the Group. The Group provides
clear guidance for its employees and business partners regarding
misconduct reporting and investigation regulations, ensuring that
its employees can inform their matters of concern through different
channels in an absolutely confidential manner. The Group ensures
that all reported matters of true concern will be investigated and
handled as required.
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Anti-corruption

We believe that fairness, honesty and integrity are important
business assets of the Group. Our employees must ensure that
our corporate reputation would never be compromised by fraud,
deceit or corruption. Anti-corruption has its own dedicated section
within our Staff Handbook, which defines and restricts the code
of conduct of our employees in this regard. Compliant with the
“Prevention of Bribery Ordinance” (“POBO”) enforced by the Hong
Kong Independent Commission Against Corruption (“ICAC”),
the Group bans all employees from receiving any benefits for
personal gain. This prevents any negative impact or disruption
to our business operations. Any report of suspected behaviors
would lead to disciplinary action, dismissal or reported to ICAC or
relevant agencies. Employees are also given briefings organized by
the Group or seminars on anti-corruption organized by the ICAC.

The Group strives to create a clean culture. Therefore, we
launches law and discipline observation education, compliance
and duty competence education and professional ethics
education for employees to let them deeply understand the laws
and disciplines, hold out the bottom line of laws, regulations and
ethics, and reject bad habits consciously.

Prevention of Money-laundering

The Group has formulated policies and procedures in governing
Know Your Clients (“KYC”) and Anti-Money Laundering (“AML”).
A robust review program on KYC and AML and compliance
department have been put in place to ensure the Group in
compliance with all the regulatory rules.

A designated staff as Money Laundering Reporting Officer is
appointed to hold responsibility for investigating AML issue and
reporting if necessary. Induction training as well as annual training
is provided to ensure all the staffs within the Group keep abreast
of the knowledge and regulatory update in respect of KYC and
AML.

We have also developed Anti-Money Laundering Guidance Note
(“AML Manual”) to assist employees in identifying the types of risks
and their relevant major characteristics.
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BS.

The Group tried its best to implement the anti-money laundering
management rules during the progress of establishing business
relationship with clients or handling the services, including
client identification, filing of clients’ identity materials and
transactional records, carrying out client identification, checking
identity certification documents of clients, registering the basic
information of clients’ identity, getting aware of the clients
and transaction nature through KYC policy, strengthening the
adequacy management of clients, identifying and evaluating the
money laundering risks, and actively improving the prevention,
management and control of clients’ money laundering risks.

The Group has carried out the monitoring and report work on
large-amount and suspicious transactions strictly. We have
designed monitoring model for suspicious transactions actively
and independently, made efforts to improve identification capability
of suspicious transactions, and positively helped the clients to
prevent money laundering risks based on the characteristics of
security industry and the actuality of the Group.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
General disclosure

The Group is committed to embolden and support the public by
way of social participation and contribution as part of its strategic
development, and to nurture the corporate culture and practices
of corporate citizen in the daily work life throughout the Group.
To sustain our corporate social responsibility, we focus to inspire
our human resources towards the employee relations and social
welfare concerns. We encourage our staff to donate to recognized
charitable institutions in order to help the under privileged and
those in need. Employees are also encouraged to suggest areas
of contribution based on their experiences in the community.
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“Comply or explain” Provisions
[T TR X
Aspect B1 General Disclosure Disclosed
B1EHE Information on: g2t
(@ the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
antidiscrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
— MR EE
BRAF N R - IR BT - TIERE - B - FEHRE -
Zitft ~ RIBR AR E 8 RARFEY :
@ BER: Rk
b) ETFHETABERZENEMERZNAOINESR -
Aspect B2 General Disclosure Disclosed
B2 [E®E Information on: [
(@ the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
—ARIFE
FHERELZ2TEREMREREREBELEEN
@ BoR: Rk
b) ETFHETABERZENEMERZNADINESR -
Aspect B3 General Disclosure Disclosed
B3[EH Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for il

discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

—RRIREE
BRARHREETT TIERE M E L REENBUR - flE A
) o



ENVIRONMENTAL,
RIR - HERE

“Comply or explain”
[ TEFRAERE | 1R

Aspect B4
B4 [EHE

Aspect B5
B5[EH

Aspect B6
B6 B H

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
aWwE

Provisions

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labour.

—fRIER
B RN IEE T M og kg5 TrY -
(@ BE: Rk

b) BTFHBTABEAZENMEREREMROINER

General Disclosure
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.

—RRIEE
BIEHERARE ML SRR

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.

—MHEE
EAFREERMRBHRRALS BS  SEELBER
LA R FRUT AR -

@ HE: X

(b) BTFHEHEITABEATEMNEEERBROIFER

Disclosed
sl

Disclosed

gt

Disclosed
=S
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ENVIRONMENTAL,
Bl HBRE

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
aWE

“Comply or explain” Provisions
[ TEFRAERE | 1R
Aspect B7 General Disclosure Disclosed
B7 EHE Information on: g2t
(@ the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.
—RRIREE
BEEBIERERE - R - HGRFROERER ¢
@ BER: Rk
b) ETFHETABEARZENEMERZNAOINES -
Aspect B8 General Disclosure Disclosed
B8 [EmH Policies on community engagement to understand the needs 2t

of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests

—fRIWFE
BRAHRSERTHEEMELEFTEMEREXE LSS
Z Bt M BUR



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEGHREE

The Directors present their report and audited financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40
to the audited financial statements. Further discussion and analysis of
these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance,
including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the group and an indication of likely future developments in the group’s
business, can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set
out on pages 4 to 12.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the state
of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the audited financial
statements on page 85 to 227.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last four financial years and the year ended 31 December
2018, as extracted from the audited financial statements and restated
as appropriate, is set out on page 228. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately
76.8% of the Group’s total turnover and the largest customer accounted
for approximately 54.7% of the Group’s total turnover. The Group is
a provider of financial services. In the opinion of the Directors, it is
therefore of no value to disclose details of the Group’s suppliers.

E=EUREHE T/ \Ft+t_A=1—
BLFEZETEREERAEELEZNS
B

FEHEK

RRBZEBEBHAREER - TEMBA
A EEEBRFBHENCEZTBREW T
40 A RRMEBIVREFTMEZZEEK 2
E—TimkoM(REZZERARKEBFE
%ZW%%I%M&Elﬁﬁimﬁﬁﬁﬁ
2w BN ERENRROMELIEI2E °

REERKRE

AEBEE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HLF
EZ%E&$%I%%EZ%%#R%%&
EZUTSIRRESS R 2278

EFEV T EERBEE_T-N\F+ A
=+ —RIEFERNERRE

MBRERBE

AEERBEENEMRFELRHBEE T\
FT_A=tT—HILFEZETIZEL \L/USZ
BENBEHEHNFE 2288 BAERTY
HEERERMBRRACHEHEE 2 &7
2 o R IFEE LI R 2 AR

e

TREFRAHER

AEBRARBEPGAEEEEETELNT6.8%
MEABEFPAMEASBREEELN547% -
AEBASRRBEMERE - At - EERA
WENERBEAREEHRERZFFE -

61



(2]
ac
m
=z
o
<
(=
>
=z
ag
©)
=
=
=z
9]
(2]
=
=
-
m
O

8102 1HOd3Yd IVNNNY

62

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEREE

So far as is known to the Directors, other than those disclosed in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements, none of the Directors, their
associates or substantial shareholders (which to the best knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any interest in the share capital of the Group’s five largest
suppliers or customers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 24 September 2004
(the “2004 Scheme”). Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
special general meeting of the Company held on 15 October 2014, the
Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2014 Scheme”),
the purpose of which is to enable the Group to grant share options to
the eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
to the Group. Particulars of the 2004 Scheme and the 2014 Scheme
are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. No
further option shall be granted under the 2004 Scheme but the options
granted under the 2004 Scheme prior to its expiry shall remain valid
and exercisable in accordance with the terms of the respective grants.
No share option has been granted under the 2014 Scheme and the
movements of the share options granted under the 2004 Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2018 were as follows:

BEREAA - FRERA M mRM LIS IEE
EI BIEBER REIMBEALHIER
RBEEMANEARNRRD BHITRAR
5%) MASE B A RKHER TP 2 BRAH
BT

N

ARABRARFHEHN RS P MAM 28 -

fBRRERT 8

R-_EENFAA-+MEE - ARERA—
E%k%ﬁﬂﬁ_ggmiﬁ%> RIBEA

REANZF—WF+ATRABTZRER
PIAE @Bz —HEBRER - ARAR
M—IAFERERT 8 ([ —F -3 ])
—E-NEFEEEEAKRERSERSE
ERDBRE  (FREE/AEEELER
RO —EENFFFE R TN
FRIEIZFHBHN R A M B RKRMEE29 © B
BRE_TTOFAIE-—SREBRE
HEREBE - ZTHFREIRNEE AR G 2B
P REAR AR AR B IR 2 IR D A e AT T 1T

15 e Fﬁz_ﬁ—ﬂ¢+ A=+—HI1F
€ BERE T - UFF RO EARE

ﬁmﬁ_zzmiﬁﬂ&ﬁ2$k%2“
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SHARE OPTION B R
Exercise
price Outstandingasat ~ Granted during Exercised Cancelled/Lapsed  Outstanding as at
Grantees Date of grant (HKS) Vesting period Exercisable period 1 January 2018 the period  during the period  during the period 31 December 2018
RZB-NE RZB-NE
8 -A-1 REv  +=B=t-H
ARA BB (Bn) BEH s HATE A ERH Rk 17 B /&M HATE
Directors
iz
Mr. Qiu Bin 71912017 0.2400 Ni 7/9/2017-7/9/2020 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000
ifeyita “T-YENALA i “E-rENALAR
“E-TFNALA
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara 71972017 0.2400 Ni 7/9/2017-7/9/2020 12,000,000 - - - 12,000,000
g20ut ZZ-tFNALA £ “E-tENALRE
“ECEENALE
Dr. Huan Guocang 71912017 0.2400 Ni 7/9/2017-7/9/2020 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
BEERL ZE-tENALH Eid “F-tENALRE
ZE-EENALA
Mr. Lo Ka Wai 71912017 0.2400 Ni 7/9/2017-7/9/2020 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
BEREE “T-YENALA i “E-rENALAE
“E-TFNALA
Mr. Wu Siu Lam, William (note) ~ 7/9/2017 0.2400 Ni 7/9/2017-7/9/2020 12,000,000 - - (12,000,000) -
B RAE () ZZ-tFNALA £ “E-tENALRE
“E-EENATE
Mr. Wu Fred Fong (note) 71912017 0.2400 Ni 7/9/2017-7/9/2020 3,000,000 - - (3,000,000) -
ERAE () “T-tFNAtA Eid “E-tENALRE
ZE-EENALA
Employees in aggregate ~ 25/8/2011 0.2800 Ni 25/8/2011-25/8/2021 480,000 - - - 480,000
EEA3 Z5—%/\AZTHR & Z5—%\AZTHAE
ZEC-E/\AZTRA
25/8/2011 0.2800 25/8/2011-24/8/2012 25/8/2012-25/8/2021 720,000 - - - 720,000
“T——F\A=tHA “T——E\BZtRAZ —E-ZEN\A-tEREE
Z2-ZE/\AZtREE ZEC-E)\AZTEA
7092017 0.2400 Ni 7/9/2017-7/9/2020 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
ZT-tFNAtA b4 “E-tENALRE
“ZIRENALR
26/3/2018 0.2400 26/3/2018-31/3/2019 1/4/2019-1/4/2022 - 35,000,000 - - 35,000,000
—Z-\F=A=1/A ZE-\EZAZHARE  ZENERA-AE
ZE-NF=A=t-A  ZI-T4RA-A
Other grantees 71912017 0.2400 Ni 7/9/2017-7/9/2020 50,000,000 - - - 50,000,000
EHEEA ZT-tFNALA Eid “E-tENALEE
ZE-EENALA
97,200,000 35,000,000 - (15,000,000) 117,200,000
Total number of shares available for issue at year end date 97,200,000 82,200,000
RAFEEERTETRAEE
Total number of shares available for issue as a percentage to issued shares 2.73% 2.15%
BEGE (e ORI
Mizr : AP REERPRAER_ZT-NFEA

Note: Mr. Wu Siu Lam, William and Mr. Wu Fred Fong resigned as the directors

of the Company on 28 May 2018.

T N\BEBHEARRES -
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the audited financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2018, no reserves are available for distribution to
shareholders.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTOR’S SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Qiu Bin
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara
Mr. Wu Siu Lam, Willian (resigned on 28 May 2018)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Chiu Hau Shun, Simon (appointed on 24 December 2018
and resigned on 22 March 2019)

Ms. Tang Lai Shan, Jo Jo (appointed on 24 December 2018
and resigned on 22 March 2019)

Mr. Chen Zhong Min (resigned on 1 January 2019)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Fung Tze Wa

Dr. Huan Guocang

Mr. Lo Ka Wai

Mr. Wu Fred Fong (resigned on 28 May 2018)

W% BERRBREREWE
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AEENE  BERRERERZE
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In accordance with Article 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Fung
Tze Wa was appointed as a Director by the Board to fill the casual
vacancies, will hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting
and being eligible, offers himself for re-election.

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Qiu
Bin and Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and being eligible, offers themselves for re-election.

The Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting do not have a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of a compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

The non-executive Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) have been appointed for a specific term subject to retirement
by rotation as required by the Bye-laws.

DIRECTORS’
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year end 31 December 2018.

INTERESTS IN CONTRACT OF

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

At 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares capital and underlying
shares and convertible bonds of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”), as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers, were as follows:

BIBEARRR 2 AEIHRIZE86(2) ik - HFEHEL
HTEEECZTAEENEMBRTHR 1
HEZRERFBEFTFAE  MEGERKKRE
BERET -

RIBAR QB Z R RIABRISE 87(1) 16 - BERXE ST A
REZLZ TR EERRBFAS LS
B MKEFaERNMEREEEE -

BREERRBFASRIEE EEME
B R ol B AR ] B B A R AT SLAN SR B N ]
R—FRRMAEE CEERERIN) FRAK L
ZIRIBEH

FRNTEF(BREBIIIFNTES) EZ IR
EEH - WEREARMAZAERESE

EERNERGNzER

KRR HEEMMERRMET LR RFE
HEHREE—_ZE—-NF+_A=+—H1t
FERNEMKEBNABR  BESREFE
ESHEREEEA R IEREL -

EEER

R_ZE—NFE+-_A=+—H BERKARQ
AIEEITRABRARA RSN EBEEZE (T E
REBEAS LB ([FHRBEEG ) EXV
) 2 B - R, R AT R ESFTEE L
B RN AR RIREBE S KA EGHIE 352
BEAFTHEZECMZERZRAR « HIRIE
FHBETACESETBLFRZHHEESTER]
BRITMERNB BRIz ERRAR N
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LONG POSITION IN ORDINARY SHARES OF HK$0.05 EACH OF THE RAXFREREEGET2EERZ

COMPANY 3}
Percentage of the
Number of issued share capital
Name of Directors Capacity shares held of the Company
HAERT ST
EEng 514 FsEROEE BAB DL
Mr. Qiu Bin (Note) Interest of corporation controlled 10,300,000 0.27%
R 5% A (B EE) R EE
Note: These shares are held by Pacific Assets Alliance Limited which is wholly M 5 : 5% % i& 19 &8 £F Wl 5t 4 2 & ¥ A #) Pacific
owned by Mr. Qiu Bin. Assets Alliance Limited 54 °
LONG POSITION — SHARE OPTIONS He-BRE
Number of Number of
Name of Directors Capacity options held underlying shares
EEng 514 FEEBRESE ARG B E
Mr. Qiu Bin Beneficial owner 10,000,000 10,000,000
ER S 5% 4 EnEEA
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara Beneficial owner 12,000,000 12,000,000
B2+ EnEEA
Dr. Huan Guocang Beneficial owner 3,000,000 3,000,000
EEEELT EnEEA
Mr. Lo Ka Wai Beneficial owner 3,000,000 3,000,000
BRERE EnEEA
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors or chief executive had registered an interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares or convertible bonds of the Company
or any of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the convertible bonds discussed above and the share option
scheme of the Company, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate and
none of their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
right during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2018, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that, other than interest disclosed above in respect of certain
Directors and chief executive, the following shareholders had notified
the Company of their relevant interests in the shares, underlying shares
and convertible bonds of the Company.

BREXHBEEEN R_E—-N\F+_H
=t—H BEEFXTIBTRAECHEE
T RNERAR RS A A AIARBAE 2 i
0~ MR A RRESTEEREERES
KEIRIGRDI 2B 362 16k 2 ME A T ac ik 2 2
FRRERBFEETRBRITAEARR] R
B P2 SR FORR

ESWBERONES 2EF

B £ PR i Al IR AR 25 S AN R AR LR A
50 - NFAERIERRE - ANA 7S AR M
BARBER AENRH - BEEFAER
BARR B SRR E A EE 2 B D &5
@ BRESZRBHTN\FEATZ FRIL &
BEARBEARRRE 7 2R TER
FRITEEAAREER -

FTERRER

R-E-N\F+_A=+—H " REAQF
BRESFNAEGHEIBHFEZTER
RECMAR BEXABREFHEETES
REBITBABMEAR <IN - THIRR
EMEARRRERANRF LA - HHEKD
K AJ R 75 2 AR RARE R o .
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LONG POSITION — ORDINARY SHARES OF HK$0.05 EACH OF THE
COMPANY

HR-ARAFEREMENGETZERE
B

Percentage of the

Number of issued share capital
Name of Shareholders Capacity shares held of the Company
HART BT
RRME 514 FEsERMEE RAEBDE
King Lion Group Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 1,011,000,000 26.47%
King Lion Group Limited (ffzE1) Em#EAA
Mr. Lu Xing (Note 2) Interest of corporation controlled 420,000,000 11.00%
BT A (FIFE2) R A E
Redhead Investments Limited Beneficial owner 300,000,000 7.85%
(Note 2)
Redhead Investments Limited EmEEA
(M5E2)
Mr. Choi Chung Lam (Note 3) Beneficial owner and interest 408,142,857 10.69%
of corporation controlled
ML A ([HFE3) Emli e AR AE kR
Team Effort Investments Limited Beneficial owner 358,142,857 9.38%
(Note 3)
Team Effort Investments Limited EnHEAA
(BF3ES)
Front Riches Investments Limited  Beneficial owner 370,000,000 9.69%
(Note 4)
HEREERAR (M5E4) BB A
Notes: BaE -

(1) King Lion Group Limited is wholly owned by Smart Chant Limited which in
turn is wholly owned by Mr. Gao Yongzhi.

(2) Redhead Investments Limited, Ascher Group Limited and Headwind
Holdings Limited, all are wholly-owned by Mr. Lu Xing, beneficially owns
300,000,000 shares, 100,000,000 shares and 20,000,000 shares of the
Company respectively.

(8  Team Efforts Investments Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Choi Chung
Lam.

(4)  Front Riches Investments Limited is a corporation controlled by Mr. Hu
Yishi.

(1) King Lion Group Limited 8 Smart Chant
Limited 2 & %4 + 1 Smart Chant Limited 8]
i Gao Yongzhi L £ 2 E A -

(2) Redhead Investments Limited » Ascher
Group Limited }2 Headwind Holdings Limited
HHETEER2EBEE 252050 ER
#5752 71 300,000,000 f% + 100,000,000 &%
120,000,000 A&z 15 °

(3)  Team Effort Investments Limited f £% & 7k 5t
EREWER -

4) WMERABRAGRAMARRLEEN X
o
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Other than the interests disclosed above, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO discloses no other person as having a notifiable interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares and convertible bonds of
the Company as at 31 December 2018.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Saved as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group has not entered into any other connected transaction or
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 December
2018 which should be disclosed pursuant to the requirement of Chapter
14A to the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY ‘S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, neither the Company,
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance report is set out in pages 16 to
29 of this report.

B E XTI E 2 b - IRIBARQA
7MY fﬂﬂﬁﬂ%SSGMﬁEZEKHx%
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS
EMPLOYEES

Employees are one of the valuable assets of the Group and the Group
regards the personal development of its employees as highly important.
The Group aims to continue to be an attractive employer for committed
employees and strives to motivate its employees with a clear career
path and opportunities for advancement and improvement of their skills.
The Group provides on-the-job training and development opportunities
to its employees and considers all valuable feedback from its employees
for enhancing workplace productivity and harmony.

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages to its employees.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics. The emolument
policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.
The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The customers and suppliers of the Group are independent third parties
to the Group. The Group is committed to maintain good relationships
with its customers and suppliers in the long run by adopting various
means to strengthen communication channels with them. During the
year ended 31 December 2018, there were no material and significant
dispute between the Group and its customers and suppliers.

EZERE
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BER/AEEZREENYEZ — AEER
EERHEENBEAZR AEEEEHEE
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ELAEREBIRMER - ARSI 2B
IR E B IRRMITE29 ©

EE KRR

AEBEFPRERAAEEZBIE =
7o AEBEANBEBEELAMEREE
FRHEEEENGEE  U@EFRREZRIR
HEFR BE_T-/N\F+_-_A=1+—HI
FE - ARBEEEERS R ER 2 H 8%
EEABEBRREBML -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEGHREE

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme as disclosed above, the
convertible bonds as disclosed in note 26 and share options granted
to a consultant as disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2018 or subsisted at the
end of the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified by the Company out of the assets of the
Company against all costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which he/she may sustain or incur or about the execution and discharge
of his duties or in relation thereto. The Company has arranged
appropriate Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
Directors and officers of the Company during the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural resources.
The Group strives to minimise its environmental impact by saving
electricity and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other
materials.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the subsidiaries of the
Company in Hong Kong and the PRC while the shares of Company (the
“Shares”) are listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group’s establishment
and operations shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in
Hong Kong, the PRC and the respective place of incorporation of the
Company and its subsidiaries. In addition, the Company is required to
comply with the Listing Rules and SFO.

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this
report, as far as the Company is aware, there was no material breach of
or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that has a significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.
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APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2018.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group did not make any charitable contributions.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established in
accordance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial reporting
process and internal controls. The audited results for the year ended 31
December 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee comprises three members namely Mr. Lo Ka Wai (Chairman),
Mr. Fung Tze Wa and Dr. Huan Guocang. All of them are independent
non-executive Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has been set up with written term of
reference in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors namely, Mr. Fung Tze Wa (Chairman), Dr. Huan Guocang and
Mr. Lo Ka Wai.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee has been set up with written term of
reference in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors namely, Dr. Huan Guocang (Chairman), Mr. Fung Tze Wa and
Mr. Lo Ka Wai.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018 were audited by BDO Limited. A resolution will be submitted to
the annual general meeting to re-appoint BDO Limited as the auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Qiu Bin
Director

29 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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IBDO

EEE 1 +85222188288
{858 @ +8522815 2239

Tel : +8522218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
BETHER11155
JKRHI2518

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sheng Yuan
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 85 to 227, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters
described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section of our report,
the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
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BDO Limited, a Hong Kong limited company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,

and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

The Group had disposed of a subsidiary, Joinbo Holdings Limited
(“JHL”), which indirectly owned the equity interest in an associate and
had recognised a loss on disposal of subsidiaries of HK$2,919,000
for the year ended 31 December 2018. The Group also recognised
its share of associate’s loss of HK$1,723,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018 using the equity method of accounting prior to the
disposal of JHL. The associate had an investment in a PRC company
(“Investee Company”) which was included in the Group’s interests in
an associate under the equity method of accounting during the year
ended 31 December 2018. The Investee Company was acquired by
the associate in prior years at RMB18,000,000, in which the Group
had an effective interest of HK$5,114,000 and a full impairment loss
of HK$5,114,000 was recognised by the Group as part of the Group’s
share of loss of the associate of HK$31,937,000 during the year ended
31 December 2017.

The Investee Company was not a listed entity in the PRC and we were
unable to obtain relevant financial and other information of the Investee
Company which we considered necessary and there were no alternative
procedures which we could carry out to assess the carrying amount
of the associate’s investment in the Investee Company prior to the
disposal of JHL. As such, we were unable to determine whether the
Group’s share of associate’s loss of HK$1,723,000 and loss on disposal
of subsidiaries of HK$2,919,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018
was fairly stated. The Group’s share of loss of the associate and loss
on disposal of subsidiaries for the year was also qualified due to the
matter explained in the paragraph below.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (Continued)

Our audit opinion on the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 was qualified as there were
insufficient audit evidence available to us relating to the impairment
review of the Group’s interest in associate as of 31 December 2017 and
we were unable to obtain relevant financial and other information of the
Investee Company which we considered necessary. Accordingly, we
were unable to assess the carrying amount of the associate’s investment
in the Investee Company and therefore the Group’s share of results of
an associate and the impairment loss on interests in an associate for
the year ended 31 December 2017 and interests in the associate as
of 31 December 2017 as set out in our report dated 21 March 2018.
The limitations leading to our qualified opinion remained unresolved
during our audit of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018 and may have consequential
impact on the Group’s share of associate’s loss of HK$1,723,000
and the loss on disposal of subsidiaries of HK$2,919,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2018. Our audit opinion on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018 is also qualified because of the possible effect of this matter on
the comparability of the related 2018 figures and the 2017 figures in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 3.1 in the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that the Group had incurred loss after tax of
approximately HK$82 million and net operating cash outflows of
approximately HK$14 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.
As stated in note 3.1, these conditions, along with other matters as set
forth in note 3.1, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described in the
“Basis for Qualified Opinion” section and “Material Uncertainty Related
to Going Concern” section, we have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF TRADE RECEIVABLES

The carrying amount of the Group’s trade receivables as at 31
December 2018 amounted to HK$36,716,000 as set out in note 20 to
the consolidated financial statements. Management have assessed the
amount of the expected credit losses that would result from all possible
default events within 12 months after the reporting date or over the
expected life of the receivables according to the accounting policy as
set out in note 3.11(A). Based on management’s assessment, no loss
allowance has been recognised in respect of these receivables as the
amount of expected credit loss as estimated is insignificant.

We consider this a key audit matter because the management’s
impairment assessment of trade receivables requires the use of
significant judgments and estimates and because the receivables are a
significant item in the consolidated financial statements.

Refer to note 3.11(A) for accounting policies, note 4(l) for critical
accounting estimates and notes 20 and 35(B)(l) of the accompanying
financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Our response:

Our work included, but was not necessarily limited to, the following
procedures:

o understanding the established policies and procedures with
respect to the estimation of expected credit losses;

° substantively validating the accuracy of the ageing of trade
receivables as at the reporting date, by agreeing a sample of data
to the underlying documents;

° assessing the reasonableness of the management’s estimate on
loss allowance by examining the information used to form such
judgement, which include testing the accuracy of the historical
default data and the existence and fair value of collateral,
evaluating whether the historical loss rates are appropriately
adjusted based on current economic conditions and forward-
looking information and assessing whether there was an indication
of management bias when recognising loss allowances; and

° inspecting cash receipts from customers after the financial year
end relating to trade receivable balances as at 31 December 2018
on a sample basis.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not included the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. As described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section
above, we were unable to obtain sufficient evidence about the Group’s
share of loss of the associate and loss on disposal of subsidiaries for
the year. Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not the
other information is materially misstated with respect to this matter.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair value in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objective are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

EERGAMBBRRAREZERE

ERREFRAARRBEEL ST ASHEM
ZEBEMBREENRBBRBEE 2 HE
RERMBRAMBERR - USHEEMB®ME
EHEEMAF 2B LEEER SRR
REVBRRAVBEZNEIES - UEHRE
BRI FEARNRFFRERMER 2 E
RERERERAL

EmEsEMBHRERE  EXAEFE &
SEFERLE 2N UEEBRBRATHRE
HERECERMcEH  URERFERLE
SEETER KRIEFEER EEEBR
HFILEE - APIEEMBERZERR -

EENEEEE SEEYHBRELE-F
BEREEHPEFETHERE TR IBE

BB ERRESUBRREAREZE
£

BEZEBRDHEBRAMBRRES T
HEHREFRRRME R 2 EREAHERR
AREAERE  YHABREEEER 2%
eI HRE - AREDNRBERE-NN—F
RAVEFNIRZATE - EREZERRRS -
MAEEMBAR - BEETERAREZAR
FEAEMA LB B IAEEEFEE -

81



(2]
ac
m
b4
o
<
(=
>
=z
ag
©)
-
=
=z
9]
(2]
=
=
-
m
O

8102 1HOd3Yd IVNNNYV

82

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY ZBE RS

IBDO

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY ZBE RS

IBDO

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY ZBE RS

IBDO

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chiu Wing Cheung Ringo
Practising Certificate No.: P04434

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meEsEkAMEZEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

2018 2017
—E-)N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BaE FET FHT
Fee and commission income & A MEs WA 6 31,699 60,420
Interest income FEMA 6 2,447 2,827
34,146 63,247
Other gains and losses H bl s K E518 7 (33,987) (28,625)
Other income HAKA 8 211 63
Staff costs BTA 10 (29,524) (56,148)
Depreciation e (237) (418)
Finance costs BLE R AR 9 (28,277) (27,508)
Reversal of provision/(Provision) BERE (B 26 4,394 (33,708)
Other expenses HuEM 10 (25,327) (26,358)
Share of results of an associate Db —RHEE R E FEE (1,723) (31,937)
Impairment loss on interests R — & R R 2 s
in an associate ZREEE 18 - (40,791)
Loss before income tax I REE - i 10 (80,324) (182,183)
Income tax expense FrB iRz 11 (1,330) (2,341)
Loss for the year FREE (81,654) (184,524)
Other comprehensive income Hp 2 mEUk =
ltem that may be reclassified HigEnEHoEs
subsequently to profit or loss = IAHE
— Exchange differences on translating — MEBINERESE
foreign operations ZIEHERR
Exchange differences arising FAMEE
during the year 2R =R (424) 2,488
Reclassification adjustments FRNEBLE
relating to foreign operations BINERG 2
disposed of during the year E DT 6,528 =
Other comprehensive income FREMEEKES
for the year 6,104 2,488
Total comprehensive income FREEKRBEE
for the year (75,550) (182,036)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meEskAMEZEKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BaE FET FAT
Loss for the year attributable to: UT&EERMFERNESSE :
— Owners of the Company — ARaEHmAE A (81,646) (184,507)
— Non-controlling interests — FEIERR RS @) (a7)
(81,654) (184,524)
Total comprehensive income DT EEEMFER
for the year attributable to: SEWEEE
@ — Owners of the Company S YNEIEZ =N (75,542) (182,019)
z — Non-controlling interests — FEIEAR MR (8) (17)
2
> (75,550) (182,036)
T
S
g HK cents HK cents
o) B Al
C Loss per share BRER
=8 - Basic — &R 13 (2.28) (6.19)
lw)
_ Diluted — (2.28) (5.19)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
i a BRI &

As at 31 December 2018
R=ZF—N\F+=-A=+—8

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
(b= F#ExT THIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERARE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R 15 352 527
Trading rights BEER® 16 - 3,322
Goodwill RS 17 7,000 7,000
Interests in an associate A i1 ENCI 18 - 1,863
Other assets B &E 19 1,730 1,730
Deferred tax assets FRIEFIAE = 27 - 144
9,082 14,586
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H A I ER SR
and prepayments VAR FBAS /08 20 40,145 69,481
Held for trading investments HIEEBERABRKE 21 6,828 39,616
Current tax assets BIHATR 18 & B 938 =
Trust bank balances held on REEFFEE 255
behalf of clients FATRER 22 45,407 021,581
Cash and cash equivalents He MREERIBH 23 47,262 87,556
140,580 418,234
Current liabilities REaE
Trade and other payables and accruals B 5 R EMEMERR
KR ERTE R 24 54,219 242,453
Borrowings 5B 25 80,421 -
Convertible bonds AR EH 26 - 143,517
Provision Bt 26 - 33,708
Contract liabilities aRaE 450 —
Current tax liabilities BNHATE 1B & (& - 606
135,090 420,284
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (BE)FE 5,490 (2,050)
Net assets EEFE 14,572 12,536
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR R R

As at 31 December 2018
R=FB-—N\F+=A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BaE FET FAT
EQUITY REx

Share capital fi& s 28 190,985 178,128
Reserves i 31 (176,413) (183,381)

Equity/(Capital deficiency) attributable Z~2 T#H A FEL
to owners of the Company % (BARELR) 14,572 (5,253)
Non-controlling interests RS - 17,789
Total equity e 14,572 12,536

On behalf of the Board

Qiu Bin
BBYE
Director

EE

RREZE

Cheng Kit Sum, Clara
BRI
Director

EF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEmSER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z—)\Ft+_A=1+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company Non-controlling interests
LGN FEREE
Shareof ~ Convertible
Capital ~ Convertible Share  Currency net  bond equity
Share Share Shareholder's  redemption  bond equity option translation Accumulated assetsof reserve of Total
capital  premium* contribution* reserve* reserve’ reserve’ reserve* losses* Total subsidiaries  a subsidiary Total equity
-EHE
2z
g5 TERES R g% AEKRAT  TERES
Rt REEE* RREE  RERR  REGE B AERET  ZiEE B  EERE  RERE gt EREE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$000
ThT THL TR T T Thn TR v T ThT TiR TR TR
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
At1 January 2017 R-B-tE-5-A 177,128 241,082 7,83 417 34,408 4001 (9,925) 306,342) 148,633 14 17,792 17,806 166439
Eouty-settid share-based payments RELERAR = = = - - 952 o o 9520 o = = 9520
Issue of convertble bonds by the Company ~~ AREIRTAR(ER - - - - 13718 - - - 13718 - - - 18,713
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options - FEETRIEE T EM %7 1,000 5333 - - - (1,433) - - 4900 - - - 490
Transactions with owners BEEAZRS 1,000 533 - - 13713 8087 - - 813 - - - 2,133
Lossforthe year EMER = - - - - - - (184507 (184507) (1) - (1 (18452
Other comprehensive income AfprEkE
- Exchange difierences on translaion of - BEBEBIERR
financial statements of oreign operations EEERER - - - - - - 2488 - 2488 - - - 2488
Total comprehensive income for theyear ~ ER2HKEHER - - - - - - 2488 (18450 (182,019) {17 - {7 (182,036
Transfered {o accumulated losses on R-T-MEHRIRES
2014 SYHL Bonds Matury Date HHRERE 2R - - - - (34,408) - - 34408 - - - - -
Forfgture of share options RbdERE - - - - - 2369) 5 2,365 o o = o o
At 31 December 2017 R-B-t§+-A=1-A 178,128 246,385 783 41 18713 9723 (7.431) (454,076) (6,259 §] 17,792 17,789 12,53
At1 January 2018 H-§-NE-B-R 178128 246385 784 am 13713 912 (1430 (@54076) (5,259) B m 11,789 12536
Shares ssued upon exercse of convertle bonds B AREAEERZARE 12857 73,085 - - 967) - - - 575 - - - 71575
Transactions with owners BEEALRS 12,857 73,985 - - (9,267) - - - 1515 - - - 1515
Loss for the year EpgEiE - - - - - - - (81.646)  (61,646) ® - [
Other comprehensive income AfprENE
- Exchange diferences on translaton - BEENEREHER
of finencal statements of oreign operations EEVERER - - - - - - (424) - (424) - - - (424)
- Reclassiication adjusiments - BtERNEEL
on disposal offoreign operations EffiAERE - - - - - - 6528 - 6,528 - - - 6,528
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ EA2EkHME - - - - - - 6,104 81,646) (75,542) ® - ® (75,550)
Disposal of subsicries HENBAA - - - - - - - - - 11 - 1l 1l
Setflement of 2014 SYFS Bonds by way EAREEEREEG
ofssuing 2018 SYHL Bonds under the 23 \FRRARES
deed of setflement FREECE-MESSER - - - - 967 - - 852 11,792 - (17,792 (17,19 -
Transfemed o accumulated losses REE-CERRRRERIER
on 2017 SYHL Bonds Maturity Date BREZIER - - - - (13,719) - - 13,713 - - - - -
Forfgture of share options PUE D - - - - - (1,266) - 1,266 - - - - -
At31 December 2018 W-8-NETZRzt-R 190965 320370 784 am - 8457 (1339 (G228 14pT2 - - - 14572

These accounts comprise negative reserves of HK$176,413,000 (2017:  * ZERBAER=ZE—\F+=-A=1+—H
HK$183,381,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position at 31 RE MR NER 2 B 176,413,0007% T
December 2018. (ZZ—+4 : 183,381,000/ 7T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

meERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z—)\Ft+_A=1+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BaE FERT FH&T
Cash flows from operating activities &&EHFERESRE
Loss for the year FAEE (81,654) (184,524)
Adjustments for: T -
Income tax expense FriSHi s 11 1,330 2,341
Changes in third party interests in SREREEZ
collective investment schemes E=HHEEREE) 7 - (5,325)
Depreciation of property, Mz - HE K&
plant and equipment BB E 237 418
Equity-settled share-based payment A EE R R X
expense 10 - 9,520
Finance costs BB AN 9 28,277 27,508
Impairment losses on interests in S )N W
an associate 2 REEE - 40,791
Impairment losses on trade receivables = 5 W IR FUREE B 7 - 637
Impairment losses on trading rights BERZRBAERBE 7 3,322 —
Interest income from banks and others R1T R EMFE U A 8 (211) 27)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENE AR 2 EiE 7 2,919 =
Net losses on disposals of property, HEME  HE K&
plant and equipment Bl o=V 7 - 2
(Reversal of provision)/Provision for HEEABRESZ
settlement of convertible bonds (BEBE) BE 26 (4,394) 33,708
Share of results of an associate o —EE R A EAE 1,723 31,937
Operating loss before working LEECEER 2K EEE
capital changes (48,451) (43,014)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and B 5 R E A REUERTA K
other receivables and prepayments TR EIER D, (35m) 28,830 (38,672)
Decrease in held for trading investments ~ #{1EE & &K & R 32,788 192,541
Decrease in trust bank balances held REBFPIHFAEZEFRIT
on behalf of clients REERRD 176,174 79,564
Decrease in trade and other B 5 REMBERNRRAR
payables and accruals FEFTE AR (191,842) (117,052)
Increase in contract liabilities AHEEEN 450 -
Cash (used in)/generated from operations 4% (FTH) /P83 & (2,051) 73,367
Interest paid BRFLE (9,503) (11,467)
Interest received from banks and others & URER7T K H A Fl & 211 27
Income tax paid EFER (2,730) (356)
Net cash (used in)/generated from AEETE (BT ), FTis
operating activities B FEE (14,073) 61,571




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z—)\Ft+_A=1+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-)N\F —T—+F
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
BaE FET FAET

Cash flows from investing activites REZEFERESHKE
Purchases of property, BRI - WE &

plant and equipment (63) (382)
Proceeds from disposals of property, MEME « BE K& E

plant and equipment Z P18 5K3R - 13
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZFERIE 30 3,982 =
Net cash generated from/(used in) KL TE AR (AT

investing activities B FEE 3,919 (369)
Cash flows from financing activities BEFERERLSTE
Proceeds from other holders of SRIRERTEIHMEE A

collective investment schemes Z P18 5KIA 23 - 2,000
Payments to other holders of MBI ARSI EM

collective investment schemes BB AR 23 - (56,719)
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds F1TAIRARESH 2 FTIS5KIE 23 - 110,000
Proceeds from issue of shares upon H RS AR i T M B 1 TAR (D

exercise of share options Z TS R08E - 4,900
Proceeds from loans advanced from —ZEERR - AQF

a substantial shareholder, a director of —BEER—XKEERA]

the Company and a related company BNERZFEHIEA 23 160,000 5,000
Redemption of convertible bonds fB B IR (&S 23 (110,000) (135,000)
Repayments of loans advanced from EE—REXTERE -

a substantial shareholder, a director of KRa—RBEER

the Company and a third party —HREZFBNFZER 23 (80,000) (31,040)
Net cash used in financing activities BE ZE TS % FEE (30,000) (100,859)
Net decrease in cash and ReRBESEREBERRD FE

cash equivalents (40,154) (89,657)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning RE¥Z2H e MR EREH

of the year 87,556 126,461
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [EXREEE TR G 2 FE

on cash held (140) 752
Cash and cash equivalents at end RERZEEREESEREH

of the year 47,262 87,556
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sheng Yuan Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an exempted
company with limited liability incorporated and domiciled in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and its principal
place of business is Suites 4301-5, 43/F., Tower 1, Times Square,
1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in provision of securities brokerage and
financial services, asset management services, proprietary trading
and trading business.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 were approved for issue by the board of directors
on 29 March 2019.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

2.1 NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs EFFECTIVE FOR ANNUAL
PERIOD BEGINNING ON OR AFTER 1 JANUARY 2018

In the current year, the Group has applied new standards,
amendments and interpretations which are effective for the
Group’s financial statements for the annual period beginning
on 1 January 2018. HKFRSs include all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). Except as explained below, the adoption of new
or amended HKFRSs has no material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.1

NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs EFFECTIVE FOR ANNUAL
PERIOD BEGINNING ON OR AFTER 1 JANUARY 2018
(Continued)

HKFRS 9, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” and the Group has
applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the transition
provisions. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for (i)
the classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities and (i) impairment for financial assets that
is relevant to the Group.

The date of initial application (i.e. the date on which the
Group has assessed its existing financial assets and liabilities
in terms of the requirements of HKFRS 9) is 1 January 2018.
Accordingly, the Group has applied the requirements of
HKFRS 9 to instruments that continue to be recognised as
at 1 January 2018 and has not applied the requirements
to instruments that have already been derecognised as at
1 January 2018 in accordance with the transition
requirements. Comparative amounts as at 31 December
2017 continue to be reported under HKAS 39 and have not
been restated.

In addition, as a result of the adoption of HKFRS 9, the
Group adopted consequential amendments to HKAS 1
“Presentation of Financial Statements” which requires
interest revenue calculated using the effective interest
method to be presented separately from revenue. Previously,
the Group presented revenue from contracts with customers
and interest revenue in a single line item.

R NEBT R BRE
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2.1
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ERAEAEE 2 S REERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.1 NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs EFFECTIVE FOR ANNUAL
PERIOD BEGINNING ON OR AFTER 1 JANUARY 2018
(Continued)

HKFRS 9, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Classification and measurement

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets are
required to be measured subsequently at amortised
cost or fair value on the basis of the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
assets. HKFRS 9 basically retains the existing
requirements in HKAS 39 for the classification and
measurements of financial liabilities. Further details of
these new requirements are described in note 3.11 to
these financial statements.

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed
the Group’s existing financial instruments as at
1 January 2018 based on the facts and circumstances
that existed at that date and concluded that the initial
application of HKFRS 9 has had the following impact
on the Group’s financial instruments as regards their
classification and measurement:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)
NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs EFFECTIVE FOR ANNUAL
PERIOD BEGINNING ON OR AFTER 1 JANUARY 2018

(Continued)
HKFRS 9, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

2.1

(@) Classification and measurement (Continued)

financial assets classified as loans and receivables
under HKAS 39 that were measured at amortised
cost continue to be measured at amortised cost
under HKFRS 9 as they are held within a business
model to collect contractual cash flows and these
cash flows consist solely of payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding;
and

there is no change in the measurement of the
Group’s investments in equity instruments that
are held for trading; those instruments were and
continue to be measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

2. RAFRIREERIERMBRSE
ZA(THEMBREER D (&)

21 RZE—NF—HA—H=xz#&
BAth 2 FEHIB & B2 FET
BRI BB BHRELER (&)
BB BEIREERFEIY £t
TA#&)

@ DEEREEE)

o IREBFBZIAERIZE 39
RoEAEER M ERER
AL E BB E TR
KA S - EREER
AREBE4RERE L
*BEEAFFEEZE
RemsmassNAre
RAREERE ZFE
WZEeRmEEREE
1R A% BB B 7% R4 %
BIJ 55 O S 12 4 6 Bk AN 5T
2K

o AKEREEEMRY
BATEREZH 8L
B RS TARY
B AT E AR
ETHE -

7
S
=]
at
wa
5
Il

95



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

21 NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs EFFECTIVE FOR ANNUAL

PERIOD BEGINNING ON OR AFTER 1 JANUARY 2018
(Continued)
HKFRS 9, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

ZA(THEMBREER D (&)

21 RZB-NF-A—HZIZ#E

FRE 2 FE B E R Z #ET
RIBRTERMBREER (&)
BB BHEEREINR £/

TA %)
(a)  Classification and measurement (Continued) (@ DBERIZE(E)

The following table summarises the measurement
categories and their carrying amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 for each class

of the Group’s financial assets as at 1 January 2018:

Measurement category

TEBEAREER=—F—N\
F-A-—HEHEEREER
BEEBEERFEIRLE
BB REERFEORETE
ZETERRIRIREE

Carrying amount

TEER REE
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
EBEER BEMBRERER  HEGHERN FEUBREEL
#39% 2% %395 2o
> HK$'000 HK$'000
z Tt T
')2 _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
% Financial assets
3 SHEE
§ Other assets LLoans and receivables Amortised cost 1,730 1,730
. HiVEE B R RIS 3% BRRA
Trade receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost 64,260 64,260
B AR ER AR B EpR
Other receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost 4,212 4,212
H it FE U BR X B R R EURERR B HAR
Held for trading investments  Fair value through Fair value through 39,616 39,616
profit or loss profit or loss
REEERERE AHER AR® NHE ABR
Trust bank balances held LLoans and receivables Amortised cost 221,581 221,581
on behalf of clients
REZPRHAZERERITHS ERREKEN B HR
Cash and cash equivalents LLoans and receivables Amortised cost 87,556 87,556
RekREERER B R EWERR B R
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2.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs EFFECTIVE FOR ANNUAL
PERIOD BEGINNING ON OR AFTER 1 JANUARY 2018

(Continued)
HKFRS 9, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

2.1

(@)

(b)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

The above reclassifications of financial assets did not
have any impact on the Group’s financial position,
profit or loss, other comprehensive income or total
comprehensive income for the current year.

Impairment of financial assets

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires the Group to
account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition
of the financial assets. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised. Further details of these
new requirements are described in note 3.11 to these
financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

21 NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs EFFECTIVE FOR ANNUAL
PERIOD BEGINNING ON OR AFTER 1 JANUARY 2018

(Continued)
HKFRS 9, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
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(b) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

At 1 January 2018, the directors of the Company
reviewed and assessed the Group’s existing
financial assets for impairment using reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue
cost or effort in accordance with the requirements of
HKFRS 9. The result of the assessment is as follows:

KEREMZE S RN
RFBB R L AERR
ZEBANEE - R
AEBERRZEEPE

° Trade receivables from clearing house are usually °
settled a few days after the execution of relevant
transactions. Trade receivables from asset
management services rarely default, given the
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deposits with the clearing houses which are
governed under the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

>
g Group manages assets worth multiples of any BEAHEBERNERNRE
= outstanding fees on behalf of those clients. NEBRZEE KBE
i ETBRGEZE 5 ER
2 BRI A o
S
® e Trade receivables from margin clients and money s XREHFEREPEENR
lending services are collateralised and have B2 8 S RWARKEE
sufficiently low “Loan to value” ratio. BHETEREHHE
LERIERR o
All bank balances are held with reputable banking FIBIRITHRI BB R
institutions and other assets mainly represented BERNRITHERS -

HEEEZERER
Bz MMIERIEE
B ZFR -
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R NEBT R BRE
ZA(THEMBREER D (&)

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.1 NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs EFFECTIVE FOR ANNUAL 21 R=E-N\F-—A—HAxz#&

PERIOD BEGINNING ON OR AFTER 1 JANUARY 2018
(Continued)
HKFRS 9, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

After considering the potential for default at any point
and using its historical experience, external indicators
and forward-looking information, the directors
considered that the impact of expected credit losses on
the Group’s financial position and financial performance
as at 1 January 2018 was insignificant.

HKFRS 15, REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS

In the current period, the Group has applied HKFRS
15 (as amended in June 2016). HKFRS 15 introduces
a 5-step approach to revenue recognition. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to
deal with specific scenarios. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognised when (or as) the entity satisfies its performance
obligation by transferring promised goods or service to a
customer. A good or service is transferred to a customer
when, or as, the customer obtains control of that good or
service. Furthermore, for contracts that contain variable
consideration, revenue is recognised at an amount to the
extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue will not occur when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.1

NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs EFFECTIVE FOR ANNUAL
PERIOD BEGINNING ON OR AFTER 1 JANUARY 2018
(Continued)

HKFRS 15, REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS (Continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the modified retrospective transitional approach whereby
the cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS 15 for
uncompleted contracts with customers as at 1 January
2018, if any, are adjusted at the opening balance of equity
as at 1 January 2018 and prior period comparatives are not
restated.

In addition, the Group disaggregated revenue recognised
from contracts with customers into categories that depict
how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows are affected by economic factors. The Group
also disclosed information about the relationship between
the disclosure of disaggregated revenue and revenue
information disclosed for each reportable segment.

The Group’s accounting policies for its revenue streams are
disclosed in detail in note 3.6 to these financial statements.
Apart from providing more extensive disclosures on the
Group’s revenue transactions, the application of HKFRS 15
has not had a significant impact on the financial position
and/or financial performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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E-NF+A=+—HILEFE

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.2 NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT
ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements,
certain new or amended HKFRSs have been issued but are
not yet effective. The Group has not early adopted these new
or amended HKFRSs in the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The directors of the Company
anticipate that these pronouncements will be adopted in the
Group’s accounting policies for the first period beginning
after the effective date of the pronouncement.

Information on new or amended HKFRSs that have not been
adopted early by the Group but expected to have impact
on the Group’s accounting policies is provided below. Other
new or amended HKFRSs have been issued but are not yet
effective and not adopted in advance are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 16, LEASES

The HKICPA has published the new lease standard
in May 2016. The new standard will have a significant
impact on many entities across various industries. HKFRS
16 superseded HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.2 NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT
ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)
HKFRS 16, LEASES (Continued)

From the perspective as a lessee, under the existing
standard, leases are classified as either finance lease or
operating lease, resulting in different accounting treatment.
Finance leases are required to be accounted for “On
Balance Sheet” (i.e. lease asset and corresponding liabilities
are recognised in the statement of financial position); while
operating lease is accounted for “Off Balance Sheet”
where no asset or liabilities are recognised and the lease
expenses are recognised on a straight-line basis along the
lease period. Under the new standard, “On Balance Sheet”
accounting treatment is required for all leases, except for
certain short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

From the perspective as a lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially
carried forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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2.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.2 NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT
ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)
HKFRS 16, LEASES (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for accounting period beginning
on 1 January 2019. The Group plans to use the modified
retrospective approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 and
will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application as
an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1 January
2019 and will not restate the comparative information. As
at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$5,905,000 as disclosed
in note 32 for which the lease term ends within 12 months
of the date of initial application. The Group plans to take
advantage of the practical expedients to account for leases
with a remaining term of twelve months or less from the date
of application as short-term leases (i.e. not to recognise on
the statement of the financial position) even though the initial
term of the leases from lease commencement date may
have been more than twelve months. Accordingly, the Group
expects that the transition adjustments to be made upon the
initial adoption of HKFRS 16 will not be material. However,
the expected changes in accounting policies as described
above could have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements from 2019 onwards.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements on pages 85 to 227 have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements are summarised
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption
of new or amended HKFRSs and the impact on the Group’s
financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note 2 to the
financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair value. The measurement bases
are fully described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements.

3.

TEETEERE

3.1

MREE
HNESERTHZHBRERE
BREBEB ST AGREM 2 BB
BIRELEARE - ZEVBEHRERI
FEBEBR NGO R RES L
AR EMmRA]) 2 BREE
T °

REZEWHREMEAZEES
FAERERBIAMNT - R B HAE
o ZEBRDERERNTZR
ZFIBEE - RN KRBT E
7B T i i Y R e SR S (B B 75 e
RZFENE) RUBHRERME2
KEE -

M MERCIRE LR AR E RS -
HETURFEFEZSR T AR
i o FFEEER T XEFBERAF

}}lT_o

BREis  mEMBRRKCER
S RRR - BEZFMHFTY
ENEEEHRBEMHRITEZ—
IR R HE - BERERRRAE
HZEEAEMER - WRREH
B SAERE 1t 2 SRS SOS N B B TS R
RBER 2R KM 2 SIS
TSR Mo 4 B5E -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The Group had incurred losses after tax of approximately
HK$82 million (2017: losses after tax of approximately
HK$185 million) and net operating cash outflows of
approximately HK$14 million (2017: net operating cash
inflows of approximately HK$62 million) for the year ended
31 December 2018. As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s
liabilities included borrowings with principal amount of
approximately HK$80 million (2017: Nil) which is repayable
within three months from 31 December 2018 and the Group
had cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$47
million (2017: HK$88 million) and net assets of approximately
HK$15 million (2017: HK$13 million). These conditions
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may
cast doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and therefore that, it may be unable to realise its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.

Notwithstanding the above conditions, the financial
statements were prepared based on the assumption that the
Group can be operated as a going concern after taking into
consideration of the following plans and measures:

3.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEME®)
POLICIES (Continued)
3.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 31 mBEE(E)

subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
the Group had entered into an agreement with an
independent third party for borrowings of HK$90 million
due in June 2019, approximately HK$84.8 million of
which was applied for the settlement of borrowings as
at 31 December 2018 as disclosed in note 25 with the
remaining approximately HK$5.2 million being applied
as general working capital of the Group;

the Group is soliciting for further financing
arrangements which include placing of new shares to
new potential investors, for the future repayment of
borrowings of HK$90 million due in June 2019 and
general working capital purpose;

the Group shall continuously review and monitor its
receivables in order to ensure the receivables are
recovered on time; and

the Group shall expand its existing business from the
proceeds received from the additional financing and
shall continue to apply various measures to tighten its
operating expenditures in order make improvements in
cash inflow from its operations.

RBEHELEERE &%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.1

3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Having regard to the cash flow projections of the Group,
which are prepared assuming that the above-mentioned
plans and measures are successful, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that, the Group will have
sufficient working capital to satisfy its future working capital
and other financing requirements for at least the next twelve
months from 31 December 2018. Accordingly, these financial
statements were prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made in the
financial statements to write down the values of the assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets as
current assets. The effect of these adjustments has not yet
been reflected in the financial statements.

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEME®)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 BUSINESS COMBINATION AND BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION 32 EXREHRGEEES)
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(Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of
disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amount of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 BUSINESS COMBINATION AND BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
(Continued)

Acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued
by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are deducted
from equity. Goodwill is recognised initially as the excess
of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of any acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
any acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree,
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain. Subsequent to initial recognition,
goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and receivable and the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE—

E-NF+_A=+—HLEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.3

3.4

SUBSIDIARIES

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it
has power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights relating to the investee (held by the Group
and others) are considered. For a right to be substantive, the
Group must have the practical ability to exercise that right.
Control is reassessed when facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the elements of
control.

In the Company'’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if
any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

ASSOCIATES

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEXRMEME®)

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 ASSOCIATES (Continued) 34 BENT(E)

In consolidated financial statements, the investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amounts are adjusted for the post-
acquisition change in the Group’s share of net assets and
any impairment losses relating to the investment. The
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the investees, including any impairment losses on the
investments in associates for the year, are recognised in
the consolidated profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income are recognised in other
comprehensive income of the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate, the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess
of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in the consolidated
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEME®)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 ASSOCIATES (Continued) 34 HBtENT(E)
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Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are recognised only to
the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associates.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the associate, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are immediately recognised in
profit or loss.

Where the associate uses accounting policies other than
those of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, adjustments are made to conform the
associate’s accounting policies to those of the Group when
the associate’s financial statements are used by the Group in
applying the equity method.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate.
The difference between the carrying amount of the associate
at the date when the equity method was discontinued
and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEXRMEME®)

POLICIES (Continued)

3.5 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION 35 SMNEBE

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of the
Company. All value are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of the individual entity using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
foreign exchange rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEME®)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.5 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION (Continued) 35 SNBBE (&)
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In the consolidated financial statements, all individual financial
statements of foreign operations, originally presented in a
currency different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into HK$. Assets and liabilities have
been translated into HK$ at the closing rate at the reporting
date. Income and expenses have been converted into
HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates,
or at the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any
differences arising from this procedure have been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in currency translation reserve in equity and attributable
to non-controlling interests as appropriate. Goodwill and
fair value adjustments to identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed through acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On disposal of a foreign operation involving loss of control
over a subsidiary or significant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation accumulated in
currency translation reserve are reclassified from equity to
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

R E MIEIREN - FIBBINER
Z BRI Bk (R AT RN A
SEEREB 2EBEY))E R
RABT - BERAGBRRBHRER
Hiz ERBRE BB - WA K
Fs AR AR 5 B HA 2 [ SR o 7E [
I 8 8 K B MRS B 2 F15
[ERME BB - RAEHEFE
iziﬁamﬁmiﬁw =P RER
PHRZFTRER 2 EERE @G
W A 51) 7% FE 12 AR R 2 FE A (fleh i
) - BRI EINEBETEE 2
%%ﬁ&&%%F2E1zﬁﬁ
NHERBEDERBINEBZE
F&EEE@ WIZR RS BEE
Az EAERETIRNG - EAIE
RERDREMEENEER -

&ﬁi%%%MW%QTZTH%
H—RBEEINEBNBERT
BERTENE  NEEBRERERE
REMZBINER 2 RETER Z5
HERENDERER  (ERLEE
B2 —85D o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEXRMEME®)

POLICIES (Continued)

3.6 FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME 36 BEARAEWA

Fee and commission income is recognised when the Group
transfers control of service to a customer and is measured
based on the consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in a contract with a customer and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer
for more than 12 months, fee and commission income is
measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the effective
interest method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit to
the Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. The Group takes advantage
of the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15
and does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of financing is
12 months or less.

The Group’s recognition policies for fee and commission
income since 1 January 2018 in relation to the following
services are as follows. Fee and commission income for
these services was recognised on a similar basis in the
comparative period under HKAS 11.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEME®)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.6 FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME (Continued)
(A) FUND AND PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT AND

36 BARMEWA
(A) BEZRREMSEEURR
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INVESTMENT ADVISORY SERVICES

The Group earns management and investment
advisory fees from investment funds and portfolio
from managing clients’ assets, at a fixed percentage
of monthly net asset value or invested capital. The
fees are recognised over the period when the related
services are performed as customers simultaneously
consume and receive benefits when services are
rendered. Management and investment advisory fees
are a form of variable consideration because the fees
the Group entitled to is subject to a broad range of
possible outcomes due to market volatility and other
factors outside of the Group’s control. Fees are billed
on a regular basis (typically monthly, quarterly and
semi-annually of a calendar year) and are earned to the
extent that a significant reversal in future is not highly
probable in accordance with specific terms of individual
contracts. Generally, fees are not subject to clawback
when they are billed.

The Group also earns performance and incentive fees
based on fund performance during the measurement
period (generally over twelve-months), subject to the
achievement of high-water marks or hurdle rates,
in accordance with the respective terms set out in
the investment management agreement. The fees
are recognised as revenue when it is probable that
a significant reversal of such fees will not occur.
Performance and incentive fees are recognised as
revenue when the amount of fees is crystallised or is
no longer subject to fluctuations in the market value
of investments held by the fund at the end of the
measurement period and are not subject to clawback
or reversal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.6 FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME (Continued)

(B)

(€

SECURITIES AND FUTURES BROKERAGE
SERVICES

The Group earns commissions from execution of
client transactions in the trading securities and listed
derivatives. The execution of client transactions also
included settlement and clearing services, which are
provided together and represent a single performance
obligation as the services are not separately identifiable
from other promises within the context of the contract.
Commissions are recognised at a point in time on trade
date when the performance obligation is satisfied,
that is when the customer obtained the rights to the
underlying financial instruments.

UNDERWRITING AND PLACEMENT SERVICES

The Group earns underwriting and placing
commissions by providing capital raising services for
corporate clients. Underwriting and placing fees are
recognised at a point in time on trade date (the date
on which the Group purchases the securities from the
issuer) for the portion the Group is contracted to buy,
at which point of time the performance obligation has
been satisfied.

3.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESBR#ME®)
POLICIES (Continued)
3.6 FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME (Continued) 36 BEARMESWAE)
(D) FINANCIAL ADVISORY SERVICES (D) BB AR
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The Group earns financial advisory fee income
from assignments in connection with mergers,
acquisitions and restructuring transactions. The
Group’s performance obligation is generally satisfied
at a point in time upon closing of a transaction, at
which point of time the Group has transferred and
the customer obtains control of the promised service.
Non-refundable deposits and milestone payments are
initially recorded as contract liability in the statement
of financial position and subsequently recognised in
revenue upon completion of the underlying transaction
or when the contract is terminated. However, for
certain contracts, revenue is recognised over time
for advisory arrangements in which the performance
obligations are simultaneously provided by the Group
and consumed by the customers and the fee from
these advisory services are recognised rateably over
the service period. Expenses associated with financial
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)% client. Reimbursements for such expenses are included TZREE B WA ©

- in financial advisory fee income.
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S Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction W - BRIAEEEMNEEREE

PRELZBERA MR EEE
EETHRTEREMEREDRAE
M - FEERAEFED - BF
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or production of any qualifying asset are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use. A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.8

3.9

TRADING RIGHTS

Trading rights represent the eligibility rights to trade on or
through Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited and the
Stock Exchange. Trading rights acquired separately are
measured initially at cost. The cost of trading rights acquired
in a business combination is its fair value at the acquisition
date. After initial recognition, trading rights with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. The useful life of trading rights that is
indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether events
and circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful
life assessment.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs, such as
repairs and maintenance, are charged to profit or loss of the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less their
estimated residual value over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method, as follows:

QOver the lease terms
15% — 20%

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles 20%
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEME®)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 39 W% - BERRE (&)

(2]
ac
m
=z
o
<
(=
>
=z
ag
©)
=
=
=z
9]
(2]
=
=
-
m
O

8102 1HOd3Yd IVNNNYV

120

The assets’ estimated residual value, depreciation method
and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

3.10 LEASES

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit
or loss on straight-line basis over the lease terms except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
over the lease terms as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(A) FINANCIAL ASSETS

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they
are originated. All other financial assets are initially
recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at transaction price. All
other financial assets are initially measured at fair value,
plus, in the case of financial assets not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction
costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when, and
only when, the contractual rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets expire or are transferred and
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred. On derecognition of a financial
asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying
amount of assets derecognised and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets under a contract whose
terms that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established generally by regulation or convention
in the marketplace concerned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-N\F+-_A=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(A) FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
Classification and measurement since 1 January
2018

Financial assets of the Group are classified into (i)
financial assets measured at amortised cost and (ii)
financial assets measured at fair value through profit
or loss. The classification is determined by both the
entity’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset.

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if they
are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold the financial assets and collect its contractual
cash flows; and the contractual terms of the
financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. After initial recognition, these
are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Interest income is recognised using
the effective interest method for debt instruments
measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. Interest income and any gain
or loss on derecognition are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(A) FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
Classification and measurement since 1 January
2018 (Continued)

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost and that are held within
a business model other than “hold to collect and
sell” are measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset.

Classification and measurement prior to 1 January
2018

Financial assets of the Group are classified into (i) loans
and receivables and (i) financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
less any impairment. Interest income is recognised on
time-proportion basis taking into account the principal
outstanding and effective interest rate applicable.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEME®)
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POLICIES (Continued)
3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 311 eMIAE)
(A) FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) A) THEE &)
Classification and measurement prior to 1 January —NF—H—Hiiz
2018 (Continued) SHEREE ()

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling it in the near term,
or on initial recognition, they are part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Fair value gain or loss
does not include any dividend or interest earned on
these financial assets.

Impairment of financial assets since 1 January 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses on investments in debt instruments that
are measured at amortised cost. Expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses, which are measured as the present
value of the difference between the cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive
(i.e. expected cash shortfalls). The expected cash
shortfalls are discounted at the effective interest rate of
the financial assets. The amount of ECLs is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition of the respective financial
instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEXRMEME®)

POLICIES (Continued)
3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 311 €@ T E (&)
(A) FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) A) THEE(E)
Impairment of financial assets since 1 January 2018 —F-NF-—H—HEZ
(Continued) TR EERE ()

The Group always recognises lifetime ECLs for trade
receivables that result from transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 15. Lifetime ECLs represent the
ECLs that will result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial assets measured at amortised
cost, when the credit risk on a financial instrument
has not increased significantly since initial recognition
(i.e. stage 1), the Group is required to measure the
loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs, which represents the portion
of lifetime ECLs that is expected to result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within
12 months after the reporting date. When the credit risk
on that financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition (i.e. stage 2) or when the
financial instrument is a credit-impaired financial asset
(i.e. stage 3), the Group recognised lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(A) FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continueqd)
Impairment of financial assets since 1 January 2018
(Continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. In particular,
the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; or

° significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEXRMEME®)

POLICIES (Continued)
3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 311 ST E(#&)
(A) FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) A) THEE &)

Impairment of financial assets since 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk ratings.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if (i) the financial instrument
has a low risk of default, (i) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations
in the near term and (jiii) adverse changes in economic
and business conditions in the longer term may, but
will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group
also considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of
“investment grade”.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESHHXEHE®)
POLICIES (Continued)
3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3. 11 €mIT A (&)
(A) FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) A) THEEE)
Impairment of financial assets since 1 January 2018 —FE-NF—H—HEZ
(Continued) THEERE (&)
On the other hand, a financial asset is credit-impaired S—HHE B¥E-IHKE
when one or more events that have a detrimental lﬁﬁffﬁﬁﬁ;ﬁ?fﬁ%ﬂi*fﬁ/f
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that MEBETNZE 2 B4 -
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial THMEELREERE  ©
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about BMEEEERBECEERRE
2 the following events: ATNATERR B4
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. XEEHERESE#)
POLICIES (Continued)
3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 311 €@ T E (&)
(A) FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) (A) ZHEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets since 1 January 2018 —F-NF-—H—HEZ
(Continued) TR EERE ()
In addition, the Group considers that an event of oh s REBERR - WEHF
default occurs when there is a breach of financial HERMBRE KRB E

covenants by the counterparty; or information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group). Irrespective of the
above, the Group considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account. The Group writes
off a financial asset when there is information indicating
that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries
made are recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEME®)
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POLICIES (Continued)
3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 311 €@ T E#)
(A) FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) A) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets prior to 1 January R—FE—NF—H—HFIZ
2018 A EERE

At each reporting date, loans and receivables are
reviewed to determine whether there is any objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment of individual financial assets includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events:

()  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

(i) a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

(i) it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(iv) granting concession to a debtor because of the
debtor’s financial difficulty.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the assets in the group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(A) FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

TEETEEME @)

311 eMIAE)
A) ZHEEE)

Impairment of financial assets prior to 1 January
2018 (Continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The amount of the loss is recognised in profit or
loss of the financial period in which the impairment
occurs. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss on loans and receivables decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to
the extent that it does not result in a carrying amount
of the financial asset exceeding what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss of
the financial period in which the reversal occurs.

Where the recovery of loans and receivables is
considered doubtful but not remote, the impairment
losses are recorded using an allowance account. \When
the Group considered that recovery of receivables
is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against the receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account in respect of
that receivable are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(B) FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. When financial liabilities
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value,
less, in the case of financial liabilities not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction
costs.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when, and only
when, the obligation under the financial liabilities is
discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit or loss. Where an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing financial liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as
derecognition of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability, and the difference
in the respective carrying amount is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities of the Group are classified into
financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. Financial
liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using effective interest method. All
interest related charges are recognised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEXRMEME®)

POLICIES (Continued)
3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 311 €@ T E (&)
(C) CONVERTIBLE BONDS (C) FHEKRES

Convertible bonds issued by the Company and
subsidiaries that contain both the host liability
component, conversion option component and other
embedded derivatives components (such as early
redemption option) which are not closely related to the
host liability component are classified separately into
their respective items on initial recognition.

Conversion option that will be settled by the issuer
exchanging a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of its own equity instruments
is classified as an equity instrument. Conversion option
that will be settled by the issuer other than exchanging
a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of its own equity instruments is a
conversion option derivative. Derivatives embedded
in host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives if their economic characteristics and risks
are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the host contract are not held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability, derivative
and equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability component and are amortised over the
period of the convertible bonds using the effective
interest method. Transaction costs relating to the
derivative component are recognised in profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are recognised directly in equity.

ARBERMBER TFﬁ?’*?
BREFETAERD
SATERE D &Eﬁiiféﬁ%ﬁ
I?FMJ&MEF%ZﬁﬁﬂW%?

TAZD (miZATEREE

$&) R RERE R DR D
PFEHZHHEA -

BOTARBBBEREEREL
Redrn—eMEERKRE
BEBEEEE Z2RATAM
1TE 2 A BERE D BRI
ATH - BITAKEBRE
EFeBReRB—CME
EXBERFEEHRAE 2K
ARTERIINZTHITEZ R
BESHMETETA - W
IéﬁWAZﬁilﬂZW
BERBMEAREESOMA
ﬁ%ﬂ?ﬁwmﬁ'ﬂié
MY IEFEBE BRIEER A
FEAARD  IBEBEITE
TERBY 2 ITETEARR -

HBTABRRESFEHE IR
GRS RIAREZ D
EEpflokz=aE T4
TENEmED - BHEEE
WO ZXBRAGHANBEE
DZEEE  TERABEN
FORMN AR (B S AR A 3
%ﬁ HEOATERO AR
X 5 K AN BB 0 48 25 o B
R BRABELD ZRHK
REZN R

133



(2]
ac
m
=z
o
<
(=
>
=z
ag
©)
=
=
=z
9]
(2]
=
=
-
m
O

8102 1HOd3Yd IVNNNYV

134

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(C) CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
Convertible bonds (convertible into ordinary shares
of the Company) containing liability and equity
components and multiple embedded derivatives

Multiple embedded derivatives are generally treated
as a single compound derivative. At the date of initial
recognition, both the liability and compound derivative
components are recognised at fair value. The equity
component is determined by deducting the amount of
the liability and compound derivative components from
the fair value of the convertible bonds and is included
in convertible bond equity reserve within equity.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The compound
derivative component is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. The
equity component will remain in convertible bond
equity reserve until the conversion option is exercised
(in which case the amount included in convertible
bond equity reserve, the fair value of the embedded
derivative component and the carrying value of the
liability component at the time of conversion are
transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares of the Company issued).
Where the conversion option remains unexercised
at the expiry dates, the balance stated in convertible
bond equity reserve will be released to the retained
profits/accumulated losses and the difference between
the redemption amount and the carrying amounts of
the liability and the embedded derivative components
is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESBERBIZE (%)
POLICIES (Continued)
3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3.1 £@MIA®)
(C) CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) (C) HFHRES (&)

Convertible bonds (convertible into ordinary shares
of the Company) containing liability and equity
components

At the date of initial recognition, the liability component
is recognised at fair value. The equity component is
determined by deducting the amount of the liability
component from the fair value of the convertible bonds
and is included in convertible bond equity reserve
within equity.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component
will remain in convertible bond equity reserve until
the conversion option is exercised (in which case the
amount included in convertible bond equity reserve
and the carrying value of the liability component at
the time of conversion are transferred to share capital
and share premium as consideration for the shares of
the Company issued). Where the conversion option
remains unexercised at the expiry dates, the balance
stated in convertible bond equity reserve will be
released to the retained profits/accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(C) CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
Convertible bonds (convertible into ordinary shares
of subsidiaries) containing liability and equity
components

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the proceeds on issuing of the
convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the option for the
holder to convert the bonds into ordinary shares of the
subsidiary, is included in non-controlling interests within
equity.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
represented by the option to convert the bonds into
ordinary shares of the subsidiary, will remain in non-
controlling interests. When the conversion option is
exercised, the carrying value of the liability component
at the time of conversion is transferred to the non-
controlling interests as consideration for the shares of
the subsidiary issued. Where the conversion option
remains unexercised at the expiry dates, the balance
stated in the non-controlling interests will be released
to the retained profits/accumulated losses. No gain or
loss is recognised upon conversion or expiration of the
option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(D)

(E)

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position when, and only when,
the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

3.12 ACCOUNTING FOR INCOME TAXES

Income taxes comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to
the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the
reporting date. They are calculated according to the tax rates
and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they
relate, based on the taxable profit for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-N\F+-_A=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.12 ACCOUNTING FOR INCOME TAXES (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to be
carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit, including existing
taxable temporary differences, will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary differences arise from goodwill or from initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, provided they are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax and changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that are
charged or credited to other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEXRMEME®)

POLICIES (Continued)

3.12 ACCOUNTING FOR INCOME TAXES (Continued) 3.12 FIBSHETRE (&)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow the benefit of part or all of that deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in
net if, and only if, (a) the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts; and (b) intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if, (a) the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities; and (b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either (i) the same taxable entity; or (ii)
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

3.13 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand
deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEME®)

(2]
ac
m
b4
o
<
(=
>
=z
ag
©)
=
=
=z
9]
(2]
=
=
-
m
O

8102 1HOd3Yd IVNNNYV

140

The Group participates in staff retirement benefit schemes for
employees in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”), comprising a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) and a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme. The assets of these schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in independently administered
funds. The retirement benefit schemes are generally funded
by payments from employees and the relevant group
companies. The retirement benefit scheme costs charged to
profit or loss represent contributions payable by the Group to
the schemes.

The Group contributes to the MPF Scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The Group’s
employer contributions vested fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the
Group when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme.

The subsidiaries operating in the PRC are required to
participate in the state-managed retirement benefit
scheme for their employees, organised by the relevant
local government authorities. They are required to make
contributions to the retirement benefit scheme at a specified
percentage of the employees’ relevant income and there are
no other further obligations to the Group.

POLICIES (Continued)
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.14 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)
SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as
at the reporting date is permitted to be carried forward and
utilised by the respective employees in the following year.
An accrual is made at the reporting date for the expected
future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by the
employees and carried forward.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.

3.15 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

All services received in exchange for the grant of any
share options are measured at their fair value. These are
indirectly determined by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. Their value is appraised at the grant date
and excludes the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability and
sales growth targets).

All services received in exchange for the grant of any
share options are ultimately recognised as an expense in
profit or loss over the vesting period if vesting conditions
apply, or recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in share option reserve within equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.15 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

If service or non-market performance vesting conditions
apply, the expense is recognised over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number of share
options expected to vest. Non-market performance and
service conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of share options that are expected to vest. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of share options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share option reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to retained profits/
accumulated losses.

3.16 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Goodwill and trading rights with an indefinite useful life are
tested for impairment at least annually and whenever there
is any indication that they may be impaired. Property, plant
and equipment and interests in associates are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications that the asset’s
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

3.

TEETEEME @)

3.15 RGBT (&)

fiaf AR 765 3 3E T 45 2% 30 55 188 1k 1 3
A ARETE R < R A 2 E
ZREGFTREBHNERRM -
LR RI R B A B B (EHH R
R AEEIEMIBRIN IR 5
- RBEPREER - AEEE
R ESTER A R EBERERAR
ZfhET - BRI RAB T 2 FE (1
B)RBHETER  HRFARAXR
BREERTAET - WHBB AR A
HAREAREE -

TTRERBRER - BERBAERE
R ERREREROIEE - 1
BN B A HRE RN E
HAR R RATRE - RSB ER R ARERE
BHERZ S REBREREEN,
RETEE

3.16 kERMEERE

BE;EAERAERFHCEE
BRLSFETRENRRR G
BEAPRBTNAHEENERE
- EITRERR - % - BB &
RAEA RO E N R 2 s A B
KRERAEZ REER KR
RPETTRERIR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEXRMEME®)

POLICIES (Continued)

3.16 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) 3.16 FEMEERE(E)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less costs of disposal, and value-in-use. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset for which the future
cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent from
those from other assets or group of assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generate cash inflows independently (i.e. cash-generating
unit, “CGU”). Goodwill is allocated to the relevant CGUs
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. As a result, some assets are tested individually
for impairment and some are tested at CGU level. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately
for the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset,
or the CGU to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment loss recognised for CGUs, to which
goodwill has been allocated, are credited initially to the
carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss
is charged pro rata to the other assets in the CGUs, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of disposal, if measurable;
and value-in-use, if determinable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.16 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods. In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed if there is any indication that an impairment loss
recognised in prior periods may no longer exist or may
have decreased, there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of the asset or the CGUs and only to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset or the CGUs does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment loss
been recognised. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

3.17 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the amount of the obligation can be made. Where the
time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the present obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the possibility of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations that arise from past events,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group, are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the possibility of an outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

3.

TEETEEME @)

3.16 IFEMEERE (&)

BEELZREBRTENERY
ERE - MEMEEMS - AT
PR K AR B R R R E &
BIABFEXDED - HABEE
ESReELBEM2AIRESEL
AETEHIRBMNES - RIEERESR
ST ARE - EERRESELE
{7 2 BRE (B NS B 18 i I S FE DR
BERNREEE < REEGEHN
BRITE M) - BIEBERET
BIRSE B ER H ERR

317 BBERAREE

HARERBESFMERERE
EERMERE - MEBITHEER
BRRES RGBSR - WHER
SAtEITERRTIMS Rz ®
B RIERAERE BEERZR
BEELBEX  RIBERETTX
BEERTRAX 2 BREI -

PrEBHEN S HE B BEL R
TR AR AR R E R 2 RE[HE -

i B EBUE B SR 2 ATREME
R - SRR MG B SR
BRIFE BUEE A DR 2 AT R MR
K BREAEBAEEESREAXIAR
B BRF—RAZETHEEAT
TR TE AN SR B2 I 86 B A RO R 2R
EMRABRLTEREFHERTSZ
RBEEMEI B FIREEETNE
BREAIARE - EHEBEEER
gt Z AT REMERR I BRI



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESTBREIE#)
POLICIES (Continued)
3.18 RELATED PARTIES 3.18 BAEAL
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is @ MWMEALFETIUEHE - Z
related to the Group if that person: ATHZALTZERHRBR
HAREEBME
()  has control or joint control of the Group; () =l s R AR R
= ;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAEEEBEAFE
VA=
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of (i) BAEEIAREEER
the Group or of the Group’s parent. AINEEEEABE ZK
E\ o
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following () WUATEM—IEEGER -
conditions applies: ERANEAESEFRE :
()  the entity and the Group are members of the () ZERBEASEARR—
same group. EBZKEAR]
(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —HAEBRS —ER
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a RN = A N
member of a group of which the other entity is a ¥(X—HERBARS—
member). ERFBEEE CKER
A ERRIHEE D
%)
(i) both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MEEBAR—F=7
party. ZEEDE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-N\F+-_A=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. XESHBREIE#)
POLICIES (Continued)
3.18 RELATED PARTIES (Continued) 318 BEAL(£&)
(b) (Continued) L) (&)
(v) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy —HEBAREF=FEF
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. Braalhsx mMa—
ERAZE-HER
i l/NS I
(V)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for V) ZEBEUKRSEH
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an rEEERECERZ
@ entity related to the Group. EERX = A ZRIKE
z FMEHEl
o)
S
z (vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) ZEBRX@BATAL
'5 person identified in (a). PRI KRR o
=}
5 (vii a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vi) (@@)BEFTIA T EHZE
= influence over the entity or is a member of the RBEAEARTESN - ?
= key management personnel of the entity (or of a REZEB(RZERZ
) parent of the entity). RANZEEETREA
> BZKE °
g
= (vii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it (vii) ZEENEAEXNZE
% is a part, provides key management personnel B—HMOZEEKER
%‘ services to the Group or to the Group’s parent. ARAEENAEEL
N NARHETEEEAER
® R
Close family members of a person are those family members FRATZERRE R ZE
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, ZHBATHERETEENEER
that person in their dealings with the entity and include (a) ETEERAXZAATRE IR
that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; (o) EKE  BR@ZALTZFIR
children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and FefB sk [ /& #:1a : (b)sZ A T 2 B2
(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or BEEHEAEZTZ RlOZA
domestic partner. T AT ZEBXREHBEZF

BAe
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE—

4.

E-NF+A=+—HILEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS AND OTHER KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION OF UNCERTAINTY

The Group makes judgements, estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,
by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. In addition
to the critical accounting judgements and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period and assumptions that have a significant
risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:

() ECL OF FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT
AMORTISED COST

The measurement of the ECL allowance for financial assets
measured at amortised cost is an area that requires the use
of significant assumptions about future economic conditions
and credit behaviour (e.g. the likelihood of customers
defaulting and the resulting losses). A number of significant
judgments, including determining the criteria for significant
increase in credit risk, are also required in applying the
accounting requirements for measuring ECLs. Details about
the judgements and assumptions used in measuring ECLs
is set out in note 3.11(A) to these financial statements.
Changes to these estimates and assumptions can result in
significant changes to the timing and amount of ECLs to be
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-N\F+-_A=1+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. EBES#EFRAEBURMGETR
JUDGEMENTS AND OTHER KEY SOURCES OF BEM 2 HMEERIR#2)
ESTIMATION OF UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

() IMPAIRMENT OF TRADING RIGHTS AND GOODWILL (1) EEREREBZEZHE

Goodwill and trading rights with an indefinite useful life are AEREAFH mEREEREA
tested for impairment at least annually. At each reporting ZLEFETRERR - RERE
date, the Group also reviews internal and external sources HER - RNEE TR AINEEE K2R
of information to identify indications that any of these assets R BRI R E B REREZ
may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised ZEERME - HEAERZBERS
no longer exists or may have decreased. The sources utilised BTBEFEIRD - ARERRE
to identify indications of impairment are often subjective in PRZERBTEETEME - i
nature and the directors of the Company are required to use RRRESHZSEREAREZE
judgement in applying such information to its business. Their TSR EMAFIE - R EHZFER
interpretation of such information has a direct impact on LEREBEEYERTORIETHRER
whether an impairment assessment is performed as at any ST R (E ©

given reporting date.
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The impairment tests are further subjected to an exercise AEE®E— PRI ENRR AR
that requires the Group to estimate the recoverable amount. aJr,éfFZ—MﬁZIEI TR RIAEE
Depending on the assessment of the overall materiality of the fJ B EEEREZMZAERE
asset under review and complexity of deriving reasonable BT RE B EHENE - AE
estimates of the recoverable amount, the Group may EnJae e F A A &R EFEIND

z perform such assessment utilising internal resources or may FARHEIT AT o

)% engage external advisers in making this assessment.

>

§ Regardless of the resources utilised, the Group is required ERNAEERER  AEBR G

B to make many assumptions in this assessment, including K AEELERZRE - BREEWE

§ the utilisation of such asset, the cash flows to be generated, EZERER EEZRERE -
appropriate market discount rates and the projected %@%ﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁ@&?ﬁﬁﬁ%&%ﬁ%
market and regulatory conditions. Changes in any of these BN o ERFR L IR ERE
assumptions could result in a material change to future E‘%Qﬁﬁlﬁfﬁﬁﬁ%?ﬁ?T”&@
estimates of the recoverable amount of these assets. SR ZEFTHIRERES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS AND OTHER KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION OF UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(1) CURRENT TAX AND DEFERRED TAX

The Group is mainly subjected to income tax in Hong Kong.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision and the timing of payment. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
expense is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises taxes based on estimates of the likely
outcome with reference to current tax laws and practices.
Where the final outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were originally estimated, such differences
will impact the provision for income tax and deferred tax in
the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain deductible
temporary differences and tax losses will be recognised
when management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and income tax expense in the period in which such estimate
is changed.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components and
for their review of the performance of those components. The
business components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the Group’s
major service lines as follows:

(@) securities brokerage and financial services — provision of
discretionary and non-discretionary dealing services for
securities and futures contracts, securities placing and
underwriting services, margin financing and money lending
services, corporate finance advisory and general advisory
Services;

(b) asset management services — provision of fund management
and discretionary portfolio management and investment
advisory services;

(c) proprietary trading — investment holding and securities
trading; and

(d) trading business — trading of chemical products and energy
and minerals products.

No operating segments identified have been aggregated in arriving
at the reportable segments of the Group. Each of these operating
segments is managed separately as each of the service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing approaches.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. oHER &)
Securities
brokerage
and Asset
financial management Proprietary Trading
services services trading business Total
SRR EERE HEEE S et
2018 HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
—EB-N\E TERT TER TERT FTET TET
. _________________________________________________________________________________|
Reportable segment revenue AR5 2plEs
External customers INREP
— Fee and commission income - BRRASWA 1,604 30,095 - - 31,699
— Interest income — FBWA 2,447 - - - 2,447
4,051 30,095 - - 34,146
Inter-segment S - - - - -
4,051 30,095 - - 34,146
Fee and commissionincome  RENMREEZ
from external customers BRARASKA
- Timing of revenue recognition  — Wz 2 FfH
Point in time R TE R 1,604 - - - 1,604
Over time — R ] - 30,095 - - 30,095
1,604 30,095 - - 31,699
— Geographical region — WEUE
Hong Kong a8 1,604 29,954 - - 31,558
Mainland China FRE A - 141 - - 141
1,604 30,095 - - 31,699
Reportable segment result A RRDEREE (7,828) 2,778 (31,238) (349) (36,637)
Impairment losses on trading rights B B4 2 B2 3,322 - - - 3,322
Depreciation nE 56 72 15 - 143
Fair value loss on held for BEEER®IE
trading investments ZAVEEE - - 28,155 - 28,155
Finance costs BEMA 1 - - - 1
Reportable segment assets MBS HEE 54,665 37,181 6,955 56 98,857
Expenditures for additions to ANEIFME NS
non-current segment assets* BELHAX - 40 - - 40
Reportable segment liabilites FIH#{SFEE 47,130 1,351 1,306 49 49,836
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HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. DEHER#E)
Securities
brokerage
and Asset
financial  management Proprietary Trading
services services trading business Total
L TN BE
TR BIE MR REEE ECES st
2017 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“E—+F FET T THET THT FET
Reportable segment revenue R[5 2Pz

— Fee and commission income - EfARAEMA 14,983 45,437 - - 60,420
- Interest income — FEKA 2,827 - - - 2,827
17,810 45,437 — — 63,247
% Inter-segment 7 fE] - 247 - - 247
zZ
2 17,810 45,684 - - 63,494
C
>
= Fee and commission income  RENREF 2
o from external customers BRARAEKA
o - Timing of revenue recognition ~ — WaHER 2 FfH
5 Point in time TR 14,983 - - - 14,983
2 Over time —REfE - 45,437 - - 45,437
=
@ 14,983 45,437 - - 60,420
> - Geographical region — B E
z Hong Kong B8 14,983 44,486 - - 59,469
< Mainland China PRI - 951 - - 951
>
i 14,983 45,437 - - 60,420
o
ey
g Reportable segment result AR D HPESR 1,893 8,155 (30,848) (2,325) (23,125)
®
Impairment losses on trade B 5 YR
receivables FEEE - 637 - - 637
Decrease in third party interests S8k & 182
in collective investment schemes 5= #Ezam 4 - - 5,325 - 5,325
Depreciation e 127 74 15 51 267
Fair value loss on held for FIEEBERBIRE
trading investments 2N TEBE - - 33,394 - 33,394
Finance costs BERAR 2 - - - 2
Reportable segment assets AR PEE 264,652 35,732 39,967 59 340,410
Expenditures for additions to NEFREDH
non-current segment assets* BEZHRAX 119 18 2 - 139
Reportable segment liabilities ~ AR E & 239,002 1,838 313 53 241,206
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segment
results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in its
financial statements prepared under HKFRSs, except that other
income; equity-settled share-based payment expense, directors’
emoluments; interest expenses on convertible bonds and loans
from a substantial shareholder, a director of the Company and a
related company; loss on disposal of subsidiaries, provision for
settlement of convertible bonds (including any reversal), share
of results of and impairment loss on interests in an associate
accounted for using the equity method; income tax expense;
and corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating segment are
not included in arriving at the operating results of the operating
segments. Common expenditures are allocated between operating
segments based on proportion of segment revenue where
necessary. Inter-segment revenue are charged on the expenses
incurred by the relevant subsidiary plus certain percentage.

Segment assets include all assets but do not include interests in
an associate; current tax assets; deferred tax assets and bank
balances of the Group. In addition, corporate assets which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment are not allocated to a segment, which primarily applies to
the Group’s headquarters. Segment liabilities include all liabilities
but do not include borrowings, convertible bonds, provision
for settlement of convertible bonds and current tax liabilities. In
addition, corporate liabilities which are not directly attributable to
the business activities of any operating segment are not allocated
to a segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments are
reconciled to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in the

DEER (&)

AEBEREN 2R BBEAKE
KRB RE 252 £ B8R 2 iR

financial statements as follows: W
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Reportable segment revenue A R U ES 34,146 63,494
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 73 HB I 2 7 8 - (247)
Group’s revenue N SET 34,146 63,247
Reportable segment result AJERR D FPELE (36,637) (23,125)
Other income HUA 211 63
Equity-settled share-based payment IRAEEE RN KA
expense - (9,520)
Finance costs BLE R (28,276) (27,506)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR ZBE (2,919) —
Reversal of provision/(Provision) HEABMBRES 2
for settlement of convertible bonds BERE (B 4,394 (33,708)
Share of results of an associate o — L R RIFEE (1,723) (31,937)
Impairment loss on interests in R—EEE AR s
an associate ZBEEE - (40,791)
Corporate expenses** NG (15,374) (15,659)
Group’s loss before income tax NEBRFTSTRAIEE (80,324) (182,183)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. HEER#E)

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ExT THIT
Reportable segment assets A RO EPEE 98,857 340,410
Interests in an associate R—REEE R E 2 - 1,863
Deferred tax assets RIEFIAE = - 144
Current tax assets BNEATL B & = 938 =
Cash and cash equivalents e MRS ZERIEHR 47,262 87,556
Corporate assets NE)EE 2,605 2,847
Group’s assets REFHEE 149,662 432,820
Reportable segment liabilities AERHRHHEE 49,836 241,206
Borrowings == 80,421 -
Convertible bonds AR E S - 143,517

Provision for settlement of HEE AR ES 2 B
convertible bonds - 33,708
Current tax liabilities BNERfL B & (5 - 606
Corporate liabilities ~EAE 4,833 1,247
Group’s liabilities rEEEE 135,090 420,284

*k

mainly staff costs, including directors’ emoluments, minimum lease

payments under operating leases in respect of land and buildings

and other professional fees.

* IEBREINE BREEEH: L
WREFREHENKEEERIAL

REMERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. DEHER#E)
Reportable
segment total Unallocated Consolidated
AR D BERE ROE =E
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-N\F —T+F ZB-N\F —T+F ZB-N\F _T—LF
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
THERT FHET THERT FHETT THET FHETT
Other material items EttEZEEH
Depreciation e 143 267 94 151 237 418
Finance costs BMEKAR 1 2 28,276 27,506 28,277 27,508
Expenditures for NEIERB
additions to BECAX*
non-current assets* 40 139 23 243 63 382

The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of the Group’s revenue from external customers and
the Group’s non-current assets*. The geographical location
of customers is based on the location at which the subsidiary
operates. The geographical location of non-current assets* is
based on the physical location of the asset, in the case of property,
plant and equipment, the location of the operations to which they
are allocated, in the case of trading rights and goodwill, and the
location of the operations, in the case of interests in an associate.

TREIBAAKRERBINATE 2K
s MAREFRBEE ZHEVEER
£t o BN ETIRENB A RIER
FREEl D - FRBDEE WEMES
REBECER LN (NWBYE  BFE
K&tE) BEDBEXEBHMEL(NEER
BRENEE) MEBHAE (BN A
PGPSk



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-N\F+-_A=1+—HIEFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. HEER#E)
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets*
REIREE Z W= FREBEE

2018 2017 2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—+F —B-N\F T LF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET F&T THT
Hong Kong (domicile)* B (GEffe) # 34,005 62,296 7,343 10,831
Mainland China AR A HE 141 951 9 1,881
34,146 63,247 7,352 12,712

Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets and other assets.

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in
Bermuda where the Group does not have any activities. The Group
has the majority of its operations in Hong Kong, and therefore, Hong
Kong is considered as the Group’s place of domicile for the purpose

FRBEETBEEEHREERE
MEEE °

RRARR—HERBEREZMRILZEK
BERAQA $EIE’\§ELHEH
E $‘§lﬁﬁ|3 DEBUNEE

B ?ﬁ??’%ﬁﬁxiﬁif’iﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁ\%%

of disclosures as required by HKFRS 8, Operating Segments. DEFIRMECERBEMS - BBEERB
REE 2 G
The Group’s customers include the following with whom AEEZEFPBIETIRALZZBEAR
transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue: S8R 10% 2B F ¢
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET AT
Customer A (note i) 2P AR 18,669 17,813
Customer B (note ii) ZF B (FizEii) - 7,031
Notes: BisE -
Revenue from this customer is attributable to asset management i. REZBEZWRZTIBAREEEER

50 #BATER

services segment.

Revenue from this customer is attributable to securities brokerage
and financial services segment.

KAEZEPZWRTIHRNEFELR
ERARTS D #BFTER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

6. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME, INTEREST 6. EARABASWALURTEWA
INCOME
2018 2017
—E-)\F —ZT—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Fee and commission income BARAEKRA
Securities brokerage and financial BHEL RS RREDED -
services segment:
— Securities and futures brokerage — BEREERL 1,270 3,501
— Financial advisory — B - 18
@ — Underwriting and placing — EEEHNALE - 11,107
i ~ Others — Hfth 334 357
<
z 1,604 14,983
z Asset management services segment: BEEERBH -
c — Fund and portfolio management — EekiRBEHEEER
% and investment advisory LA K 4% & B S 30,095 45,407
o - Others — Hfth - 30
=
m
(o] 30,095 45,437
>
z 31,609 60,420
<
% Interest income FIE WA
;_%| — Margin financing and money lending — FREERER 2,447 2,827
2
* 2,447 2,827
Total P 34,146 63,247
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had entered BHE_Z-N\F+_HA=+—HILF
into financial advisory contracts with customers and upfront B AEERRFII VM BEBEGH -
payments of HK$450,000 were received under the contracts. A W AR R G AU BRI 15 5% 450,000 75 7T ©
contract liability was recognised as at 31 December 2018 until the NZE—N\F+_A=1T—HERED
services have been delivered to the customers. BEEERBRIN TR AL °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

6.

FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME, INTEREST 6.

INCOME (Continued)

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of
HKFRS 15 to its customer contracts relating to fund and portfolio
management and investment advisory services such that the
Group had not disclose information about revenue that the Group
will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining performance
obligations under the contracts that had an original expected
duration of one year or less and any estimated amounts of variable

consideration that are constrained.

ERARASZWRAURIEHWA
(%)

AEBCHEARES RIREHEEER
RIEEBEERBNEFENEATAY
BREEAFEISRE 121 BN ERET
* o MAERYEEERSEEREBITR
STBHESA—FRATHANRIGE
H)E (T B m] AU 25 K2 T ] S2BR A K
BT ENER -

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HitlhzmKREE
2018 2017
—E-)\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Changes in fair value of held for trading HIEEBREC AT EZEE
investments (28,155) (83,394)
Changes in third party interests in SREEEICFE =R
collective investment schemes B E) - 5,325
Impairment losses on trading rights B ERRERE (3,322) =
Impairment losses on trade receivables B S EWERF 2 BB - (637)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENE AR 2 EiE (2,919) =
Net foreign exchange gains HNGE WY 2 F RE 237 78
Net losses on disposals of property, HEME HEREZHEZ
plant and equipment B8 5% - @)
Others HAh 172 5
(33,987) (28,625)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

8. OTHER INCOME 8. HthlA
2018 2017
—B-\F —T+t%
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Interest income from banks and others SR1T R E AT B U A 211 27
Sundry income HEIEWA - 36
211 63
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. REMA
@ 2018 2017
= —g-NE T+ F
o HK$’000 HK$'000
z Tz T
T
o
2 Effective interest on liability component AR ESAESD 2
o of convertible bonds BERERFS 27,153 27,228
= Interest on bank and other borrowings IRITREMEEZFE 2 4
= Interest on loans from a substantial XE—REBRR
- shareholder, a director of the Company —BARBEER
and a related company —RIEE AR BRI E 1,122 276
28,277 27,508
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

10. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 10. BRATEHATESIE
2018 2017
2N\ —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ExT T
Loss before income tax is arrived Br TS AR A &S 18
at after charging: EHB/RTAIRIE :
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments 8 TAXA @ BIEEHHE
— Fees, salaries, allowances and bonuses — & ~ ¥4 - AL NIEAT 29,037 45,806
— Equity-settled share-based payments — RAEERD TR - 9,520
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions* — 3RURAE R 52 F - 487 822
29,524 56,148
Other expenses Hih & A
— Auditor’s remuneration — ZEETEN & 1,400 1,400
— Commission expense — feEA - 1,350
— Entertainment and gifts — IRERIE M 992 1,354
— Minimum lease payments under — T REFEE
operating leases in respect HEMxEBEEKIEA
of land and buildings 9,902 9,419
— Other professional fees — HhEXER 5,059 2,939
— System license and subscriptions — REFA RETH 1,162 2,269
— Others — HAth 6,812 7,627
25,327 26,358
& The amount included forfeited contributions of HK$572,000 (2017: * ZemeiEREREN B AEFIRERE
HK$525,000) in respect of employees who left employment prior to BT E] 2 3 BB BUE R B AT BRI 2
such contributions vesting fully in accordance with the rules of the W 7 30 572,0008 L (—F—+4F :

MPF Scheme. 525,000/87T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. FfEBiAX
On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed RZE-NF=ZA=_+—H8 FBLDZX

SRE( T —FHHK (B (B 75)
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The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”)
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the
following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the
first HK$2 million of profits of qualifying corporation are taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million are taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of corporation not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, Hong Kong profits tax
is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. For year ended 31 December 2017, Hong Kong profits tax
was provided at a flat rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits.

BROIEZR) ([ZIEFIER]) - SIAFIE
TR - ZIEHERR_ZT—NF=
A+ N\BEHEZELER URBHER
WTE - REBEANEHMAE - &EBE
1% 8.25% 2 %t % #t 4 F & 2,000,000
BT MTIE - WIK16.5% 2 i E &
452,000,000 7T A E3@ A 2 FiIE o
HENERMARHER 2 EEFEER
16.5% Z TR ANTHIA o

HE-_FT-N\F+=-ZA=+—8HL*F
B BEMNEBIREN G MR GIE
B - HE_T—tHF+-HA=+—HL
FE - BANEBIRGETERTUREN 2
16.5% TR EEHE o

2018 2017
—B-N\EF —EtF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Current tax - Hong Kong profits tax BEABiE — BBFEH
— Provision for current year — NEEEE 1,327 2,511
— Over provision in respect of prior years ~— — iBF FEBEEREE (141) (170)
1,186 2,341
Deferred tax EEBE
— Write-down of deferred tax assets — BIETEE EMUR 144 =
Total income tax expense FriS iz 858 1,330 2,341




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-N\F+-_A=1+—HIEFE

1. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 1. FSBiM (#)
Reconciliation between income tax expense and loss before SR ERSHAEBERERAR
income tax at applicable tax rate is as follows: Z?—\Z%ﬂt,ﬁﬁﬁﬂ—l— :
2018 2017
—E-)N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAET
Loss before income tax BRETIS TR ES 1B (80,324) (182,183)
Notional tax at Hong Kong profits BEENFHINE16.5%
tax rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) (ZZF—+tF : 16.5%)
HECAERE (13,253) (30,060)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ PAEM AIEAER &L 2
operating in other jurisdictions B RR TR E 2 72 135 (313)
Tax effect of concessionary tax rate BEMEZFRIEE (165) =
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for BERBMAZ RIS E
tax purpose (915) (1)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR AT RS2
for tax purpose 4,106 23,225
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERIEELERIBEE
recognised as deferred tax asset ZARBAIAEIE 2 RIF & 10,953 4,685
Tax effect of prior years’ unrecognised REEHAZBEFE
tax losses utilised this year RIEFERHIBEE RIS E (4) (319)
Tax effect of temporary differences not RERRERMERE G2
recognised 11 (7)
Tax effect of share of results of an associate 72— B & A 71 4E
2GR E 284 5,270
Over provision in respect of prior years BEFEREREEG (141) (170)
Write-down of deferred tax assets BT TR E E MR 144 —
Other differences Hith =8 175 31
Income tax expense i8> 1,330 2,341
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

12.

13.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was proposed or paid during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017, nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting period.

LOSS PER SHARE
BASIC LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$81,646,000 (2017: loss of approximately HK$184,507,000)
and the weighted average number of 3,575,243,574 (2017:
3,558,329,679) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE

The diluted loss per share is the same as the basic loss per
share because the calculation of the diluted loss per share does
not assume the exercise of the outstanding share options and
conversion rights attached to the convertible bonds since their
exercise would result in decrease in loss per share.

12.

13.

IRE

BHE_ZT-\FER_ZT—tF+=A
=+—HALFE  BEEZFRFEIRE
ERIARE - BREHMAE B LRI E
ERRETARE -

BREE

EREXNEE
ERREAREETIRIEANREAS A BN
E518 4981,646,000/8 L ( — T —+4F :
51847 184,507,000/87C) M EFEANE 31T

T8 M 2 N HE 15 8003,575,243,574 f%
(ZZT—+% : 3,553,329,679% )51 & o

BRBEEE

SR EEEESREANEERR
SAEEREEERY BERRITERR
1T 2 BE ARHE I Rl R IR B 25 P Bl 7 2 2
g - REASZEENZITE/ERS
R BRI D -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE 14. EER T BRaHFALTEHE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS EEME
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable to the ENRENAARESE M BEN
directors of the Company are as follows: I

Equity- Retirement

settled benefit
Salariesand  share-based scheme
Fees allowances payments  contributions Total
ek RAGEE RIKER
B =4 RO SRR st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TER TERT THERT TEx
(note (a)) B
(&t (a) E
=5
2018 = S -
!
Executive Directors HITES =
Mr. Qiu Bin ity e 200 1,560 - 18 1,778
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara ;2L t 200 1,600 - 102 1,902
Mr. Wu Siu Lam, Wiliam (note (b))~ #D &% (BizE (o) 82 789 - 48 919
Non-Executive Directors FOTES
Mr. Chen Zhong Min (note (c)) RERLAE (FE(C) 718 - - - 718
Mr. Chiu Hau Shun, Simon (note (o) #2485 4 (Kt (o)) - - - - -
Ms. Tang Lai Shan, Jo Jo (note (d)  BSEEM £ (K3 (0) - - - - -
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Fung Tze Wa (note (¢)) BFELE (FEE) 119 - - - 119
Dr. Huan Guocang EREEL 200 - - - 200
Mr. Lo Ka Wai ERELE 200 - - - 200
Mr. Wu Fred Fong (note (f) R (FEE () 82 - - - 82
1,801 3,949 - 168 5,918
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE 14. EERAEESFALHME @)
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) EEME 2
Equity- Retirement
settled benefit
Salaries and share-based scheme
Fees allowances payments contributions Total
Hek BA&ER RINTEA
ik 2A BIARR B b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FHL FET THT FHL
(note ()
< (P3E (a)
5 - s s s —
< 2017 —T+F
z
3 Executive Directors HTEE
g Mr. Qiu Bin (note (g) BB (B () 86 671 844 6 1,607
a Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara BR0t 200 1,609 1,013 102 2,924
% Mr. Wu Siu Lam, William HOREE 200 1,865 1,013 113 3,191
=
)

Independent Non-Executive BUEHTES

o Directors
g Dr. Huan Guocang EEEET 200 - 253 - 453
Z Mr. Lo Ka Wai BREXE 200 - 253 - 453
m Mr. Wu Fred Fong AR 200 - 253 - 453
3
S 1,086 4,145 3,629 221 9,081
©
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or MEEEI U - RESRERE
agreed to waive any emoluments in respect of the years ended BEZ—\Ek=ZZE—tF+=A4
31 December 2018 and 2017. No emolument was paid by the =t BIFEZEAME - AEEL
Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining BmRAZEEXAME - (ERRSIEEMA
the Group, nor as compensation for loss of office. AEEIRIMAREE R 2 RE)SIEA

166
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

These amounts represented the estimated value of share options
granted to the directors under the Company’s share option scheme.
The value of these share options is measured according to the
accounting policies for share-based payments as set out in note 3.15
to the financial statements.

Resigned as executive director with effect on 28 May 2018.

Appointed as non-executive director with effect on 2 January 2018.

Appointed as non-executive director with effect on 24 December
2018 and resigned on 22 March 2019 .

Appointed as independent non-executive director with effect on 28
May 2018.

Resigned as independent non-executive director with effect on 28
May 2018.

Appointed as executive director with effect on 27 July 2017.

14. EERLEBRESHFALTHE &)

P

@)

B

EEM= )

ZESBEREBEARBBEES SR
TEEZBBREZATEE - 258
Pt 2 BEREMERRMESA5M
BN REABRAE

RZZE-—NERA =+ N\BEHEHRT
H=o

RZZBE-—NE-AZBEZERIEHR
TES -

R-E-—NE+-_A-+HOBEEEE
BERATEERR_ZT—LE=A
—+ZHEHE -

RZE-NERA-TNBEZER
BYIFFHITES °

RZEBE-—NERAZTN\BEEE
FHITES °

RZEB—+E+ AT+ +REZER
HiTES -
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14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE 14. EERTREaHALTEHNE (&)

168

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)
EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year included two (2017: two) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
The emoluments payable to the remaining three (2017: three)
individuals during the year are as follows:

AEBRSHATHE
AEEAEE s AEREHFALEEMR
H2(ZE—EF - MREF HEZM
TR EXDITRIR - FRENBK T =%
(ZF—tF: ZR)ALZMEWT

emolument was paid by the Group to the above remaining three
(2017: three) individuals as compensation for loss of office.

2018 2017

—E-N\F —ET—+F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

@ FERT FAT
B

< Salaries and allowances e KoERL 6,490 8,395

= Discretionary bonuses IS TELT - 14,480

'5 Retirement benefit scheme contributions  EARAERFTEIE X 171 334
=

2 6,661 23,209
=

E During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no HE-FT-N\FE=ZF—+tF+=HA

=t HLSFE  AEEWEF R
T=R(ZF—tF: =8) ALNM

>
g BIERBEEE -
>
—
§ The emoluments of these remaining three (2017: three) highest BT (ZE—tF : ZR)REFHA
3 paid individuals fell within the following bands: TZMEN FTIEE -
N
9
= Number of individuals
A
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T — 1,500,000 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 77T — 2,000,000 % 7T 1 -
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T — 4,500,000 57T 1 -
HK$7,000,001 — HK$7,500,000 7,000,001 7T — 7,500,000 7T - 1
HK$8,000,001 — HK$8,500,000 8,000,001 % 7T — 8,500,000 57T - 2
3 3




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - MEKRR®E
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HE B
MERE KERRE "E #ct

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TR THTL TR

At 1 January 2017 R-Z—-t&—-A—H
Cost %N 1,615 4,000 1,185 6,800
Accumulated depreciation REtIE (1,610) (3,691) (924) (6,225)
Net carrying amount AREFE 5 309 261 575
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+t&

+-B=+—-HILEE
Opening net carrying amount FHEREFE 5 309 261 575
Additions B 81 301 - 382
Disposals HE - (15) - (15)
Depreciation e (35) (203) (180) 418)
Translation differences bE A% 1 - 2 3
Closing net carrying amount FREREFE 52 392 83 527
At 31 December 2017 R-EB—t&+=-A=1+-—H
Cost (DN 1,698 4,279 1,198 7,175
Accumulated depreciation ZEITE (1,646) (3,887) (1,115) (6,648)
Net carrying amount REFE 52 392 83 527
Year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE—ZT—N\&

+t-B=+—-HLEE
Opening net carrying amount FHRMFE 52 392 83 527
Additions NE - 63 - 63
Disposals HE - - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - ()] - 0]
Depreciation e (32) (129) (76) (237)
Translation differences bE =R - - - -
Closing net carrying amount FLARHEFE 20 325 7 352
At 31 December 2018 R=Z2-N\F+=-A=+—H
Cost (DN 1,698 4,324 1,189 7,211
Accumulated depreciation 2EiE (1,678) (3,999) (1,182) (6,859)
Net carrying amount AREFE 20 325 7 352
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16. TRADING RIGHTS 16. EEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT

Gross carrying amount IREAAE
At beginning and end of the year REVNRER 3,322 3,322

Accumulated impairment Z5EE
At beginning of the year REH) - =
Impairment loss recognised B R RIEEE 3,322 =
At end of the year RER 3,322 =

Net carrying amount BREFE
At beginning of the year REH] 3,322 3,322
At end of the year RER - 3,322

Trading rights represent the eligibility rights to trade on or through
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited and the Stock Exchange.
The trading rights have no foreseeable limit to the period over
which the Group can use to generate net cash flows. As a result,
the trading rights are considered by the management as having
an indefinite useful life. Trading rights will not be amortised until
its useful life is determined to be finite. Instead it will be tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that it
may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount of
trading rights is allocated to the CGU which engaged in the
securities brokerage and financial services.

EERENIEEEEHNERZMER
RENMMRFTETERZ BVEEN - B
ERVUAKEERELRSREFHRL
MY A AR ZRG - Hitt - EEE
RESEESEEREMRFHY - EER
BAeHiE EEEERAFHEERE
R MBk  EEFRNEREMIR
BURNE A RERERETTRERR °

SURERIEME - EEEZREED R
EREBHFRLELeRRBIREEL
B o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE—

16.

17.

E-NF+A=+—HILEFE

TRADING RIGHTS (Continueqd)

Recoverable amount for the CGU was determined based on
value-in-use calculation. The calculation use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a one-year period, and discount rate of 10% (2017: 22%). Cash
flows beyond the one-year period are extrapolated for four years
using a 0% growth rate. The growth rate is determined based
on management’s expectations for the market development and
is not expected to exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant industry. The discount rate used is pre-tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant business. Taking into
account of the deteriorating financial performance of the securities
brokerage business, the unfavourable change in the capital market
and the expectations for the market development, an impairment
loss of HK$3,322,000 (2017: Nil) was recognised in respect of the
trading rights.

GOODWILL

16.

17.

BEERE®)

REEABMN 2 A]RIRSETIIREER
BETEMET - ZTEERAUNEE
Btz —FHUBEER10%(=ZF
—tF 2% REAEER RS R
2T - BB —FHZRERER0%
BREEEHNF - BREXBBEBEETERE
HmigRRTEHET  BHTEBRAE
BITEZRAFHERE - FERZH
MEARER - WRBESEEKEE
ZREERR - ZREIBHFLLER I
BRAB BATHRZTHES R
MBBRRZEH  ARGEREEERE
R B E 183,322,000 (= — ¢
F |

ik
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx TATT

At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BRt+t=ZA=+—H
Gross and net carrying amount HARENMFE 7,000 7,000
For the purpose of annual impairment testing, goodwill is allocated REEREANRANS BEBEOIEERS

to the CGU which engaged in the asset management business.
Recoverable amount for the CGU was determined based on
value-in-use calculation. The calculation use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a one-year period, and discount rate of 33% (2017: 19%). Cash
flows beyond the one-year period are extrapolated for four years
using a 10% growth rate. The growth rate is determined based
on management’s expectations for the market development and
is not expected to exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant industry. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant business. Apart from the
considerations described in determining the value-in-use of the
CGU above, the Group’s management is not currently aware of
any other probable changes that would necessitate changes in its
key estimates.

EEEBERBCRTELBN - BHEE
Bz A BB IREEREES
BMEE - E%‘f‘kéﬁﬁﬁl%aﬁ'élﬁﬁtﬁz
—FHMBRERIBR (ZT—tF -
19%) TR X R EMHR Zfﬁi/mgfﬁ/ﬁu
BR—FHsReRERERE10%HE

BOE - REXSRBEEEEHMIHHE
RZEMETE  BHITBBBEMITELZ

REFIHERER - FERZTRERE
Al W RREBRITTERRIARE 2
ERR - B EXPlETR S EEEN
ZERBEMEEZEARI  AEEE
E%ﬁﬁi?%ﬂ?&ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂﬂ—[ﬁéﬁib
ENHEHTBME -

iR
H
=
a
il
$
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18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. R—RBE QAR 2%

2018 2017

—E-N\F —ZT—+F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FExT FET

Share of net assets NIGEEFE - 2,800

Goodwill Bk - 39,854

- 42,654

Provision for impairment AR - (40,791)

» - 1,863

I
m
§ On 28 June 2018, the Company had entered into an agreement to RZZE—NFANAZ+/N\B - KAAE]
S sell the entire issued share capital of a subsidiary, Joinbo Holdings V-EBERALENBARRESEES
= Limited, which indirectly owns 25%* of the equity interest in Xinhua PRARIZ2EHEBITRA - ZHEA A
g (Daging) Merchandise Exchange Company Limited* (“XHME”). MEREFE(KRBE)AnXZ2FBRA
g XHME is an entity incorporated in the PRC which is principally A ([FPEAT]) 2 25%* PXHE o $TRFT A
@ operating an electronic merchandise exchange platform for —XPAFEEMKL 2B - EE2RNF
S commodity goods trading in the PRC. Following the completion of EREEmmENES 2 EFRAMR ST
@ the disposal on 28 June 2018, the Company no longer held any B RZE—N\FESAZTNBHERE
of the interest in XHME and XHME ceased to be recognised as an B1& - RRBITNBRIEMFE T
associate of the Company. = RFEATBEERBARG 2HE
NS

>
z
Z
c
>
=
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o
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18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 18. R—EHE AR 2= (&)
The following tables illustrate the financial information of XHME TRIRES A EERRE W
up to the date of disposal as extracted from its management iR AR EH AR AR A S BT
accounts and adjusted to reflect adjustments made by the Group PECHENEBH BBER

when applying the equity method:

2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT T
Current assets MENEE 9,914 18,289
Non-current assets EMBEE 874 884
Current liabilities nEBE (6,262) (7,889)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - (33)
Net assets BEFE 4,526 11,251
Revenue Iz - 6,453
Expenses X (6,890) (134,266)
Loss from operations and REEKZEER
total comprehensive income ZHREREE (6,890) (127,813)
No dividend was received from XHME during the years ended 31 HE_ZT-N\FER_ZT—tF+=A
December 2018 and 2017. =+—HIFE - SIEKEETEAER

BB e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-N\F+-_A=1+—HIFE

18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 18.

Reconciliation of the above financial information of XHME to
the carrying amount recognised in the consolidated financial

R—EBERT s E)

bR TR RS B R AR A TS IR
R B {E SRR

statements:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET THT
Net assets of XHME B BEFE 4,526 11,251
Percentage of interests held by the Group* ZN& B FT#FiEm B oLk * 0% 25%
Group’s share of net assets in XHME REEDEFEEEFE - 2,800

i not audited by BDO Limited

* rounded to the nearest one percent

For the year ended 31 December 2017, a material line of business
operation of XHME was under suspension. The Group has
therefore carried out an impairment assessment of its interest in
XHME as of 31 December 2017 with assistance of an independent
valuer using fair value less costs of disposal under the income
approach. The key assumptions to which the fair value less costs
of disposal being most sensitive in assessing the recoverable
amount are as follows:

Discount for lack of marketability 14.80%
Discount for lack of control 22.24%

Based on the valuation, the recoverable amount of the Group’s
interests in XHME was determined to be approximately
HK$1,863,000 and accordingly, an impairment loss of
approximately HK$40,791,000 was recognised and included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. The fair value on which the recoverable amount being
based is categorised within Level 3 measurement. No additional
impairment loss was recognised for the interests in XHME for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

" AEEBIEEZSAMEBRAR
NAIEZ

——

PEERRLZAN Z—
BE_T—tF+-A=+t—HIF
B RN - BEIEXBEESE -
Bt - EBMAEERE BT - AEE
H_ZT—tF+-A=1T—"HERFEA
PT B 52 {8 AR MR EDE IR A FEURL H B K
A7 AT TIRERE - REFE K
Bl & 7R - AR &R AN & A R
MEZ R T

i = e 14.80%
TRZ I 2 3T 22.24%

BB - AEBPRFE RS2 TR
@ﬁ%ﬁﬁziiﬁtﬂ 863,000/ 7T + Eiit

REFE IR REME KSR AR
ST AREE1E4940,791,000/8 7T © 5 &
AlESEERNAFELIEAE=R
HE-HE-T-N\E+-_A=+—8
WEFE - BERRIER 2 R ERE
fRIEESNBEEIE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

19. OTHER ASSETS 19. Htt&EE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FAET
Admission fee paid to Hong Kong BEAPREZBRAF]
Securities Clearing Company (IBBEE] 2
Limited (“HKSCC?) ERMASER 50 50
Cash contribution to the Guarantee REBEERBES
Fund of HKSCC BafmR 50 50
Deposit with HKFE Clearing Corporation ~ REBHEZEBR A ]
Limited (‘HKCC”) (IBAHERE]) 21&e 1,500 1,500
Deposits with the Stock Exchange R T2 ®
— Compensation Fund — fHEES 50 50
— Fidelity Fund — BRES 50 50
— Stamp duty — ENTERL 30 30
1,730 1,730

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20.

B2 REMBEWRR AR AN

PREPAYMENTS b1 |
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FET
Trade receivables =Y G 36,716 64,260
Other receivables and prepayments H AW AR R TR 5RIE 3,429 5,221
40,145 69,481

7
S
=]
at
wa
5
Il
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-N\F+-_A=1+—HIFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20. EZRHEMEWERRARFAMNK
PREPAYMENTS (Continued) H(E)
The analysis of trade receivables is as follows: B IRWERR 2 AT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FAT
Arising from the business of dealing REEFRPEEHNEEFES
in securities and futures contracts
— HKSCC and HKCC — ABEENBBHELE 60 15,967
o — Margin clients — FREP - 1,309
z
2 Arising from asset management services R B & EE IR 29,415 26,539
g Arising from money lending services KEERRS 7,241 20,444
z Arising from proprietary trading REBEEE - 1
)
z 36,716 64,260
=
= The normal settlement terms of trade receivables arising from the KEBHBEEEKCEHRBERESR
o business of dealing in securities are one to two business days HATRERZAHE —ZmEE %
. after the respective trade dates. The normal settlement terms of ERIPY= Hﬂ‘bAﬁﬁggiﬁ“Zﬁ%EW
z trade receivables arising from the business of dealing in futures EREERRTEAER B G —EE
E contracts are one business day after the respective trade dates. % B - BWEBEERITREEFS IE;EI
2 The amounts due from HKSCC and margin clients are repayable REEBHRERERKER  WKBTH
§ on demand subsequent to the settlement date and bear interest at BEFNEMEEIE(ZE—LF:3
g Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate plus a spread of 3% (2017: 3%) per E)FtE - BRBEAHEEENIARE
® annum. The amounts due from HKCC are repayable on demand EXREE WHESHNEEMTFEZ
except for the required margin deposits for the trading of futures BRI ©
contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

21.

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The Group does not provide any credit term to clients for its
asset management services. Amount arising from money lending
services represents a term loan which is repayable within one
year from the end of reporting period and bears interest at a
fixed rate of 10% (2017: 10%) per annum and is secured by
marketable securities with fair value of HK$30,000,000 (2017:
HK$39,000,000) at 31 December 2018. Amount arising from
proprietary trading represents deposits placed with a securities
broker which is repayable on demand.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note
35(B) to these financial statements.

20.

B2 REMBERRRUARANK
5 (&)

AEBUYTERNEEEERREEFIE
HEMEEH - RZZ—N\F+=A
=+—R  REEFREZFEEEAES
HEBREEE AR —FRERER - RE
EFEMEAIOE(ZZT—CF : 10%) 7+
B & A & A 30,000,0008 T (= F
— 44 : 39,000,000787T) 2 BEEH
ERBZ EHER - REBEEBE 2K
HETHRRBEFRL TR BREX

i -

BRASEMERRSESBURRZ
FEERRIE— T EBENUHHRE
B +E 35(B) 5% -

HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS 21. FIEEERERE
2018 2017
—B-N\F —TtF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Listed equity securities TR ES 5,263 37,841
Unlisted investment funds (note) FELEMREES () 1,565 1,775
6,828 39,616

Note: BIEE

Pursuant to the subscription agreements, the Group’s interests in the
above investment funds are in the form of redeemable shares, which are
puttable at the holder’s option at any time, for an amount equal to the pro
rata share of the fund’s net assets and entitle the Group to a proportionate
stake in the respective funds’ net assets. These investment funds are
managed by the respective unrelated investment managers who are
empowered to manage their daily operations and apply various investment
strategies to accomplish their respective investment objectives.

RIERBE WD - AEER LARER S 2
SR ERRNER - JEERFEARE
BOREFRESEEFEGLZEE  BX
SEARRLMNBEESZEEFE - %
SREETHIAHEREEEERTEEER
RAZERERBAEHESB ZRERR
BB IRELIRER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

22.

23.

TRUST BANK BALANCES HELD ON BEHALF OF
CLIENTS

From the Group’s ordinary business of dealing in securities and
futures contracts, it receives and holds money deposited by
clients in the course of conducting its regulated activities. These
clients” monies are maintained in one or more segregated bank
accounts and earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates of 0.125% (2017: 0.100%) per annum. The Group
has recognised the corresponding trade payables to respective
clients.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

22.

23.

RERFFEHFR ZERRITARR

PREEERFREAHNCBEEY
F o REERENEZHAEEE M AERIL
BRERPHEN - 2ERP BTN —
Bk Z AR RITIRSE - WIRRESH
PITFERENKR0IBE(ZE—+F -
0.100 &) 5+ E 80 F B R R BREVA 2 o A<
SECHRENTSERZIEEE SR

=
e

RekBEeEREEREMERAE
REER

RERBEERER
2018 2017
—B-N\F e
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TAT

AMER R TFERE

Demand deposits and cash on hand

47,262 87,556

Demand deposits earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The prevailing market interest rates for
demand deposits in Hong Kong and in the PRC are 0.125% (2017:
0.100%) per annum and 0.350% (2017: 0.350%) per annum,
respectively.

Included in cash and cash equivalents of the Group is RMB
of HK$3,239,000 (2017: HK$2,119,000). RMB is not a freely
convertible currency. Under the Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement
and Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks that are authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

BT IR B EE B RITE R R E
HFENFRBRENF B - BB RFRZE
HERZBRITMISENED R A0.125
EB(-—ZT—+4:0100FE) }%0.350F
(ZF—+%F : 0.350[F) °

AARNEEREMASEREBEBEZS
¥ /3,289,000 ;w( = T — + F -
2,119,000 7T) 2 AR - ARKB
TRAIBEHRB2EE - REREAM 2
INEE IR RO RAEDE - EERMNIEE
BHRTE  ANEBEAALERERSE
INEEB 2 RITIARBHIGAEME
?ﬁg o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 23. B2 KR EEEEREMES

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) REER (&)

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION Hit RS REBER

The movement of liabilities arising from financing activities for the HE-_FT—+tF+-A=+—HL*HF
year ended 31 December 2017 is as follows: B BEEPELECBEEEPHUOT

Third party Loan from
interestsin  a substantial Liability Liability Liability
collective ~ shareholder componentof componentof component of
investment and a third 2014 SYFS 2014 SYHL 2017 SYHL
schemes party Bonds Bonds Bonds
KRRE RE-FIE —E2-mEF —E-RF “E-tF
stz BRRR—% SYFSfEx BRERESF BRERES
BZHEE HEZHZEX PA=1: V) ZAEH ZAEH

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 Ez“eb
FAL FAT FAL FAL i
(note 26) (note 26) =
(Fi:26) GEZOIN
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________| >
At1 January 2017 R-B-tE-B-F 60044 26,427 41,695 124,107 -
Changes from financing cash flows: BEBLHEZ £E
~ Proceeds received - BFEIE 2,000 5,000 - - 110,000
- Repayments/Redemption - B8/ ER (56,719 (31,040) - (135,000) =
Other changes: Hit &g -
~ Allocated to convertiole bond — DEETERR
equity reserve EFERHE - - - - (13,713)
- Changes in third party interests ~ — E= A #E@% (5,325) = = = =
— Effective interest recognised - BERRERFIR - 276 3,305 21,693 2,230
~ Interest paid - BFE - (663) - (10,800) -
At 31 December 2017 R-B—tF
+=A=+-H = - 45,000 - 98,517
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 23. & KR+ EEEEREMES

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) REER(#)

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) HihRSREE R (&)

The movement of liabilities arising from financing activities for the HE-_ZT-N\F+-A=+—HL*HF
year ended 31 December 2018 is as follows: B BEEYELECAEEFHUOT

Liability Liability Liability
component component component

of 2014 of 2017 of 2018
SYFS SYHL SYHL
Other loan Bonds Bonds Bonds

“E-mNFE —B-t§& ZEB-N\F

SYFSfE% BFERESR RRERES

HER 28EHs 28687 28685
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TER TEr TEr
(note 25) (note 26) (note 26) (note 26)
(Pit£25) (PitaE26) (Pita£26) (Bt 26)

(2]
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At 1 January 2018 R=-E-N\F—HA—H - 45,000 98,517 -
Changes from financing BMERSRELEE
cash flows:
> — Proceeds received — BWFTEFE 160,000 - - -
g — Repayments/Redemption — 88 /BnR (80,000) - (110,000) -
>
>
m Other changes: b
2 — Settlement of 2014 SYFS - REBEEREART
8 Bonds by way of issuing B \ERRERES
= 2018 SYHL Bonds under MAAEE-_S—HF
the deed of settlement SYFS &% - (45,000) - 83,581

- Allocated to convertible bond  — S ELE AR ES

equity reserve s - - - (9,267)
- Effective interest recognised ~ — EHERERFIS 1,122 - 20,283 6,870
— Interest paid - BAFE (701) - (8,800) -
- Exercise of conversion option ~ — T{f# - - - (77,575)
— Transfer (note) — R (PfsE) - - - (3,609)
At 31 December 2018 R=Z-NF+=A=+—-H 80,421 - - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

23.

24,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
Note:

The 2018 SYHL Bonds bore interest at 8% per annum and the Company
shall pay such interest every 6-month from the initial issue date. On
4 December 2018, the Company had entered into agreement with
the sole bondholder in which interest payable on 4 December 2018
of HK$3,609,000 can be settled within 3 months from the date of
the agreement. On 14 December 2018, the 2018 SYHL Bonds were
converted into ordinary shares of the Company and accordingly, the
unpaid interest of HK$3,609,000 was transferred to “Other payables and
accruals” (note 24) upon conversion. Such interest was settled on 22
January 2019.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

23.

24.

BeREBESESREAREMRS
REER @)

Hth RERBER (&)

g

B

—E - N\FRFRIERESIEF AN RSEL
B AQEZABEEETESRAEAEA
THEFME - R=ZFE—N\F+=_AWNA -
AAREE—FEHFFE A LG B
g AR =ZZE—N\F+_AMNAEEZF
5.3,609,000/8 Al B W% B HIRET =@ A
NEE RN_ZT—N\F+-_A+HAE =%
— \FRRERESEREARNNG) LR -
FE - % - 3,609,000 T A S8
BE [HEtEMER R EER | (HE24) °
ZERNBERN - E-—NE—FB-+_RAEE -

EZRHEMENRRUKRETE
A

2018 2017
—E-N\&F —E—+4F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHT FAET
Trade payables arising from the business  REZESLRHEANE ST EKS
of dealing in securities and futures 2B 5 MR
contracts
— Cash clients - ReEP 44,354 237,628
- Margin clients - FREF 1,134 460
45,488 238,088
Other payables and accruals Hi MR N EE 8,731 4,365
54,219 242,453

The normal settlement terms of trade payables arising from the
business of dealing in securities are one to two business days
after the respective trade dates. The normal settlement terms
of trade payables arising from the business of dealing in futures
contracts are one business day after the respective trade dates.
The amounts payable to cash and margin clients are repayable on
demand except for the required margin deposits for the trading of
futures contracts. No ageing analysis in respect of trade payables
is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, the ageing analysis
does not give additional value in view of the business nature.

KEEFEHFEEEB B HRMNERZ —
REZHREARH AR —EMEE
XH -REHEANEEXH LB HE
NERZ —REEM/ETERHBERZ
—EE%H - BENRERFREFP ZR
RARERER HHEAHNEEMS
ZHRREHRIN - EFRR - BERNEH
HEER REOM T EHREINA
g MAEBEER 5 ENER KK
#r o
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25. BORROWINGS 25. &

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Loan from a related company e AR BN

(note 33) (FF5E33)

— Principal amount NG 3 80,000 =
— Interest receivables — FEUFIE 421 —
80,421 -
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The loan is secured by a charge of the Company’s shares owned
by certain substantial shareholders of the Company, interest
bearing at 24% per annum and repayable within three months
from the end of the reporting period. The loan was settled on 22

p=1113

ZEFARNRBETEERRER 2K
REB D IREEER - REF K242
AEREEREHEEE BT =@
NEE - ZEFXER_FT-NALF=A

N

March 2019. —t+=H/EE-
26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND PROVISION 26. AR ESRIBE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
> HK$’000 HK$’000
2 TR FHT
'ZE
% Convertible bonds - ARRES —
:_C% Liability component =V
8 2014 SYFS Bonds —T—HESYFS &S - 45,000
= 2017 SYHL Bonds —E L ERRERES - 98,517
2018 SYHL Bonds B \ERRIERES - -
- 143,517
Provision BB
Settlement of 2014 SYFS Bonds e — B — PN SYFS &5 - 33,708
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26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND PROVISION (Continued) 26. TJ#REH & #1E (&)

2014 SYFS BONDS, PROVISION FOR SETTLEMENT OF 2014 SYFS
BONDS AND 2018 SYHL BONDS

Pursuant to a subscription agreement entered into by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, Sheng Yuan Financial Services
Group Limited (“SYFS”) on 9 April 2014, SYFS issued zero coupon
convertible bonds with principal amount of HK$45,000,000 on
16 June 2014 (“2014 SYFS Bonds”). The 2014 SYFS Bonds
entitled the holders to convert them into ordinary shares of SYFS
(“SYFS Conversion Shares”) at a conversion price of HK$10,000
with certain profit conditions of SYFS and its subsidiaries (“SYFS
Group”) as set out in the Company’s circular dated 16 May 2014.
Any unconverted 2014 SYFS Bonds had to be redeemed by SYFS
at 100% of its face value within 30 business days from the third
anniversary day.

Based on the terms of the subscription agreement, the 2014
SYFS Bonds contained two components, (i) the liability and
(ii) the equity conversion components. On 15 June 2017, the
Group received conversion notice from the sole bondholder in
respect of the exercise of the conversion rights attached to the
2014 SYFS Bonds in the aggregate amount of HK$45,000,000.
As the issuance of the SYFS Conversion Shares was subject to
the approval of a regulator, the 2014 SYFS Bonds had not been
converted into ordinary shares of SYFS. On 29 December 2017,
the Company, SYFS and the sole bondholder entered into a deed
of settlement. Subject to the permission from the Stock Exchange,
the Company would issue convertible bonds with a principal
amount of HK$90,000,000 for a term of 2 years as settlement and
release of the SYFS’s obligations under the 2014 SYFS Bonds.

—E—-NESYFSESH £E ==
—MESYFSEHXR T — \FR
TRIERRE S 2 B e

BIEAR QG 22 &M B2 FSheng
Yuan Financial Services Group Limited
([SYFS) R Z=ZZE—MFMANBEIAZ
ZREWE  SYFSR=ZZT—F XA
TN B EITAREF R 45,000,000 872
ZEAHRKRES ([T —WFESYFSE
1) —E—NFSYFSEFE THHE
AR - A 2 AR (B 10,000 BT K
HBRSYFS EBAR ([SYFSH#MRAR K 1)
WHABEETHEBSYFSKEKNB A A
(TSYFSE B ) 2 m M2 &t (F AR
AARZZE—NERA T+ BHEZRE
BK) o EfAIAREH Mz —F—M4F SYFS
BEHABSYFSHE = BAF H &30 M@=
FHNREEEZ 100% & -

BERBEHBEZBEKR T —TF
swm%%@%m% s () B 18 M (i) 4
T o, 3 cRZE—+HFENATH

=[ m%@u& IE—EERBANERS
¥ /45,000,000 TLRLITE = F — Y
FSYFSEH FTH A5 2 AR E S 2 1]
AR 38 A o EEEA%;E"SYFS?@H&H% B
EEEIE - T —MFSYFSEHFIL
fkmﬁﬁzswsjt e R=_F—+tF
+ZAZ+NH ' &XRAAF - SYFS KM
—EHFFE AN AEERE - FFESH
REAEra & - RQBHBITRFERAS
%4 90,000,000 8 702 AJRARES « A
4EE KRS SYFSR - —F SYFS &
HRER o
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26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND PROVISION (Continued) ~ 26.
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2014 SYFS BONDS, PROVISION FOR SETTLEMENT OF 2014 SYFS
BONDS AND 2018 SYHL BONDS (Continued)

The Group had made an application to the Stock Exchange on
29 December 2017 for the issuance of the convertible bonds
under the deed of settlement and the permission from the Stock
Exchange has not been granted at 31 December 2017. Given
the permission from the Stock Exchange was considered as
substantive, the directors of the Company believed that the
Group’s obligations arising from the 2014 SYFS Bonds remained
outstanding at 31 December 2017 and a provision was recognised
based on the best estimated settlement amount with reference to
the fair value of the convertible bonds to be issued under the deed
of settlement.

On 4 June 2018, convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$90,000,000 (“2018 SYHL Bonds”) were issued to the sole
bondholder after the approval from the Stock Exchange has been
granted. The 2018 SYHL Bonds entitled the holder to convert
them into ordinary shares of the Company at the conversion price
of HK$0.35 per share at any time before 24 months from the initial
issue date (“2018 SYHL Bonds Maturity Date”) and bore interest at
8% per annum. The Company shall have the right to, at any time
during the period from the initial issue date and up to the 2018
SYHL Bonds Maturity Date, to redeem the 2018 SYHL Bonds at
100% of the outstanding principal amount, together with accrued
interest, if any.

T AR T B ()
—E-MESFSHY  KH-F
—MESFSESR B — N\F&

RIZRE S 2 B8 (&)

AEBDRBEERIBRITRRRE
HR_T—tFF+AZTNAREX
PRI BMRXARN T —tFt+=
A=t —BIMARRLBREFA - EX0H
KA AR EEE R - NARE
ERRAEERE T —MESYFSES
EEZEEIR -_T—tHF+-A=1—
BIAREER AN EE2EEEZER
T T RITHARARES 2 A FEm
REEHtEESRRE -

R-ZT—N\FEXAMNB @ BXFAELH
g E—EERBAERTRSER
90,000,000 Lz A EH( =ZF
—NFRRIERES] - T — \F&
BIERESE TRHEAESN  JREE
BTAB—TIEARA([ZE—N\FER
ERREHEIEIE ) AT R E S 2 R A
BRESRIMD0.35B T LR ARAR Y
BRANFFERSEE - AARIHH#E
REEBTREE —T— \FERRIER
BEAFEE B AREARRE - ZR2HER
BEACREERENE (E)ER=
T \FRRIERES
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26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND PROVISION (Continued) 26. TJ#REH & #1E (&)

2014 SYFS BONDS, PROVISION FOR SETTLEMENT OF 2014 SYFS
BONDS AND 2018 SYHL BONDS (Continued)

Based on the terms of the deed of settlement, the 2018 SYHL
Bonds contain two components, (i) the liability and (i) the equity
conversion components. At the issue date, the fair value of the
2018 SYHL Bonds was determined using the Binomial Option
Pricing Model. The fair value of the liability component of 2018
SYHL Bonds upon issuance was calculated at the present value
of the estimated coupon interest payments and principal amount.
The discount rate used in the calculation is 20%, representing
the cost of debt applicable to the Company for a similar bond
without conversion option at the issue date. The equity conversion
component is determined by deducting the amount of the liability
component from the fair value of the 2018 SYHL Bonds. The key
inputs used in the Binomial Option Pricing Model were as follows:

—E-NESYFSER £E_-F
—mHESYFSEHR T —N\F
RIEERES 2 BE &)
REBEREEZE G —T—\FBR
TRESFBIEMSD - ((BEK()ER
HiagEks - RETHE —_F— N\F&
RIERES 2 A BT ERA B B
EEBEANEFE - R8T _Z— \FK
BIERESBESD 2 AFERGTE
EFSNRRASSERAENE - 5f
ERAZITRER20% AR TR
BITAMTMAE L REZ BUES 2 &
BN - RSB BEBE TN
FRRERES 2 AFEHNREBES D
ZEEETE o AT EEAE A
ZEEBHABLT

B A

Inputs 04/06/2018
W AR —ZE-N\FXxAMA
Stock price HK$0.255
IRIE 0.255% 7T
Exercise price HK$0.350
1TE(E 0.350 87T
Expected life 2 years
T8 B4 HA 2%
Expected volatility 47.01%
TE B 1

Expected dividend yield 0.00%
TEEAAR B &K

Risk-free interest rate 2.38%

R\ e ) 2
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26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND PROVISION (Continued) 26. TJ#REH & E1E (&)
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2014 SYFS BONDS, PROVISION FOR SETTLEMENT OF 2014 SYFS —E-NFESYFSESF - HLE_-F

BONDS AND 2018 SYHL BONDS (Continueqd) —ESYFSESFR - —\FRB
RIERES 286 (&)

On 14 December 2018, the 2018 SYHL Bonds were converted RZZE-N\FE+A+MA - == —)\

into ordinary shares of the Company. The movements of the
liability components of 2014 SYFS Bonds and 2018 SYHL Bonds
during the current and previous years are set out in note 23 to
these financial statements. The movement of the provision for
settlement of 2014 SYFS Bonds during the current year is as
follows:

E ﬁ&ﬂﬁﬁ%%&ﬂ@%$

c AFEMBAFE_S— mﬁsws
fa%#&:%—)\i RIERESFEEDD
DRVE B AT MK FE23 o ANF
ERE T NESYFSELH 2 BEE
BESIAT -

Pursuant to subscription agreements entered into by the Company
on 17 November 2017, the Company issued convertible bonds
with aggregate principal amount of HK$110,000,000 (“2017 SYHL
Bonds”) on 23 November 2017. The 2017 SYHL Bonds entitled
the holders to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company
at the conversion price of HK$0.35 per share at any time before
12 months from the initial issue date (“2017 SYHL Bonds Maturity
Date”) and bore interest at 8% per annum. Unless previously
redeemed, converted or cancelled, the Company had to redeem
each 2017 SYHL Bonds on the 2017 SYHL Bonds Maturity
Date at 100% of the outstanding principal amount, together with
accrued interest, if any.

wn
x HK$’000
z THIT
<
s
z At 1 January 2018 HN=—Z—N\F—H—8 33,708
© Decrease in provision BER (4,394)
% Utilised in the year EREFH (29,314)
wn
% At 31 December 2018 R=Z=—N\HF+=-H=+-—H -
_|
m
lw)
2017 SYHL BONDS —E - FERFRERES

@E$“ﬂﬁ:;ft¢+fﬂ+ta
RN 2 REBWHE - AR —F—+
F+— H4+:E%ﬂ$$wﬁﬁ
110,000,000 T 2 AI MR ESR ([ ZF
—tFRRERES]) c ZT—+tFH
BRIERERFE T8 AR ﬂ%%ﬁ
BTHHRE 12@A (2T —LF&
kﬁ#%U%EJMMEHMFW%Z&R
BESRRMD0.35 BT LR ARAG T
B RAFFIRSERTE o BRIELAT
BEE - R - AREHRZE
—tFRRIEREFDHRZE2EEAR
BREASFERETHNE (F)BRLOX
B ERRIERES -
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26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND PROVISION (Continued) 26. TJ#REH & #1E (&)

2017 SYHL BONDS (Continued)

Based on the terms of the subscription agreements, the 2017
SYHL Bonds contain two components, (i) the liability and (i) the
equity conversion components. Since the initial issue date, the
2017 SYHL Bonds has not been converted into ordinary shares
of the Company and were fully redeemed. The movement of the
liability component of 2017 SYHL Bonds during the current and
previous years are set out in note 23 to these financial statements.

2014 SYHL BONDS

Pursuant to subscription agreements entered into by the Company
on 5 November 2014 and 19 December 2014, the Company
issued convertible bonds with aggregate principal amount of
HK$135,000,000 (“2014 SYHL Bonds”) on 19 November 2014
and 30 December 2014. The 2014 SYHL Bonds entitled the
holders to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company at
the conversion price of HK$0.35 per share of the Company at
any time before the third anniversary date of the initial issue dates
(“2014 SYHL Bonds Maturity Date”). The 2014 SYHL Bonds bore
interests at 8% per annum except that during the second and third
anniversary period, no interest would be accrued to the holders
when the average closing price in respect of the Company’s share
for the last 30 consecutive trading days (“Current Market Price”)
before the second anniversary of the initial issue dates (“Second
Interest Payment Date”) and the 2014 SYHL Bonds Maturity Date
exceeded HK$0.50 and HK$0.55 per share of the Company,
respectively.

—E-LFRRERES (F)
RERBH R G T —FEIR
EREH D BMEI D ()& E R (i)
mEBES c BEEZRITHRE &
TELFRREREFERBRBARR
AT WERHE_ZE—\F+=
A=+T—BIEFERABEER - RAF
ERBAFE T —+FRRIERES
BEMBD 2 EBEH N A B REM T
23

“E-NERFRIZERES
BEARBNR-_Z—NFE+—AREHAK
ZE-NFT+ZATNBIIL ZRER
FARRRZ-ZZE—NMFE+—A+AN
BER-_Z—NFE+_-A=+HETA
% #4858 5 135,000,000 7 7T 2 ] A% &
HF(ZE—NFRRZERES]) - =F
—NFERRERESRE T A AER
REEBTRABCE=RAFERA([=
TN FERRIERESFIEA ) g
e 2 R R E R A A Bl () 0.35
BILABRBADNREBER - —T—F
BIRIERESFAFEFESEFE - R
F_REZRBAFHM - WAQFKRMHR
BERTANEAFEA (£
HBR]) RZTE—NFRRIERESE
HARREZEZIERS B 2 FHkH
B(EAME] 2REAESRARFMR
5 0.508 7L 0.55% 7T + AITEIFHE A
FTEFE -
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26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND PROVISION (Continued) 26. TJ#REH & E1E (&)
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2014 SYHL BONDS (Continued)

When the Current Market Price on the Second Interest Payment
Date exceeded HK$0.50 per share of the Company, the Company
would have the right to early redeem the 2014 SYHL Bonds (in
part or in whole), at the aggregate amount of the outstanding
principal and interest not later than 3 business days after the
Second Interest Payment Date. Unless previously redeemed,
converted or cancelled, the Company had to redeem each 2014
SYHL Bonds on the 2014 SYHL Bonds Maturity Date at 100% of
the outstanding principal amount, together with accrued interest, if
any.

Based on the terms of the subscription agreements, the 2014
SYHL Bonds were bifurcated into three components, (i) the
liability, (i) the derivative (i.e. early redemption option) and (i) the
equity conversion components. Since the initial issue date, the
2014 SYHL Bonds has not been converted into ordinary shares
of the Company and were fully redeemed during the year ended
31 December 2017. The movement of the liability component of
2014 SYHL Bonds during the previous year are set out in note 23
to these financial statements.

—E-NERRERES (&)

HRE —ENE R 2 ERmERBEER
AR 0.5078 T - BIARBEA#E
RE_ENERRNENELEXBZ
REEXSRME 2 BBERAMERN —F
—HFERRIERES (D REFE) © Bk
FEEAEED - HBRSEEH - ARAA
R-Z-NFRREREFIMBERE
MEAREEANSRERENE (W)
BROE —_T-NERRERES -

RIERBE RGN —T—OFRIR
EREHFSR=EHD : (()BE  iHIT
G THRBMEFRBERIEERE) K (i) 1# 5=
Higln - B EEZETHER  $iE—
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27. DEFERRED TAX

(A)

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS RECOGNISED

27. EIERE

(A)

CRRELEHAEE

Excess of
depreciation over
tax depreciation

allowances
e L HiE
WERE
HK$’000
TFET
At 1 January 2017, R—Z—+tF—HF—H"

31 December 2017 —E—t&t+=-HA=+—H
and 1 January 2018 E=—Z-—N\F—H—H 144
Charged to profit or loss FFABR (144)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZE—-N\F+=ZA=+—H -

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED B) KERZELEHEEE

The Group had estimated tax losses of HK$256,580,000
(2017: HK$196,347,000) to carry forward against future
taxable profits. Tax losses of HK$249,153,000 (2017:
HK$183,983,000) were related to certain subsidiaries
operating in Hong Kong and could be carried forward
indefinitely under the current tax legislation. In addition,
certain subsidiaries operating in the PRC had tax losses
of HK$7,427,000 (2017: HK$12,364,000) which were
subject to expiry period of five years from the year in
which the tax loss arose. No deferred tax asset had been
recognised in respect of the estimated tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams against which these
unused tax losses could be utilised.

rEBEBEMBABHESRE
256,580,000 JL( =& — + F -
196,347,0008 7T ) + DA A5 85 B R
Rz FERT A $8H o THIEEE
249,153,000 (=& — £ F :
183,983,000/t ) JHEE TR &/
BRE B ARERE - BRIRE
AT AR DI IR B4 o Jboh -
HETRPREENHBAREEN
TEE5187,427,0008 T ( — T —+
F 12,364,000 7T) * BREE
MIBEE 2 FERTAFEER °
B A AR SE R AR EE B 2 K
B F R A TEOR - B B
ST ERERELERIBEE °
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. Ig#&

Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.05 each Nominal value

SREEO0.05/8 T
ZEREE HE
HK$’ 000
FET
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2017, R=ZE—tF—H—H8"
31 December 2017, —ET—+F+=-A=+—H -
” 1 January 2018 and —T-\F—HA—HK
T 31 December 2018 —=—\F+=A=+—H 8,000,000,000 400,000
5
é Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR :
= At 1 January 2017 R-E—+F—A—8 3,542,562,556 177,128
o Issue of shares upon exercise PRI AR e A T T 2 AT AR AR
% of share options 20,000,000 1,000
wn
% At 31 December 2017 and RZE—tF+ZHA=1+—H8K
@ 1 January 2018 —F—-\F&—H—H 3,562,562,556 178,128
Issue of shares upon exercise E R E ST M EITRGD
z of convertible bonds 257,142,857 12,857
S
% At 31 December 2018 R_ZE-N\F+_A=+—H 3,819,705,413 190,985
o
o
E All issued shares rank pari passu in all respects including all rights FBEETROEMBE T EZEREE
2 as to dividends, voting and return of capital.  BREEEARE  BERENREZ

FREHER -
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(@)

Pursuant to the general meeting held on 24 September
2004, a share option scheme (“2004 Scheme”) was adopted
by the Company. The purpose of the 2004 Scheme is to
provide incentives or rewards to the eligible participants
(including but not limited to employees, directors, suppliers
and customers of the Group) (“Qualified Persons”) for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to
recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group.

Pursuant to this 10-year term 2004 Scheme, the Company
can grant share options to the Qualified Persons for a
consideration of HK$1.00 for each grant payable by the
Qualified Persons. The total number of the shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the share options granted
to each Qualified Person (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding share options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the shares then in issue. Pursuant
to a resolution passed on the annual general meeting of the
Company, dated 24 April 2014, the Company can grant
161,201,291 share options to the Qualified Persons.

The exercise price in relation to each share option pursuant
to the 2004 Scheme shall be not less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date on which
the share option is offered to a Qualified Person; or (ii) the
average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of offer; or (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company. There shall be no
minimum holding period for the vesting or exercise of the
share options under the 2004 Scheme but the share options
are exercisable within the option period as determined by the
board of directors of the Company.

29. BRI
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161,201,291 1 REARHE -
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Pursuant to a special general meeting held on 15 October
2014, a new share option scheme (“2014 Scheme”) was
approved by the shareholders of the Company in place
of the 2004 Scheme. The share options granted for the
2004 Scheme shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the 2004 Scheme.

The 2014 Scheme is also valid and effective for 10 years,
after which no further share options may be issued under the
2014 Scheme but any share options granted thereto shall
remain exercisable in accordance with the 2014 Scheme.
The purpose of the 2014 Scheme is to enable the Group to
grant share options to the Qualified Persons as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group.

The maximum number of shares which can be granted
under the 2014 Scheme may not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. Pursuant
to a resolution passed on the annual general meeting of
the Company, dated 15 October 2014, the Company can
grant 161,201,291 share options to the Qualified Persons,
until the next time of refreshment. The maximum number of
shares which can be granted under the 2004 Scheme and
the 2014 Scheme may not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time. The
total number of shares issuable under the 2004 Scheme
and the 2014 Scheme to each Qualified Persons within
any 12-month’s period shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company for the time being. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval. At 31 December 2018, the number
of shares in respect of which options has been granted and
remained outstanding under the 2004 Scheme and 2014
Scheme was 117,200,000 (2017: 97,200,000), representing
3.1% (2017: 2.5%) of the Company’s shares in issue at that
date.

29. R (&)

(b)

RER-_F-WFE+A+RRASET
ZBRFRIRE - AARRREH#
IR B ([ =T —mF
8D AR =TS - 5t
“TTEFEIRE 2 BRIERE
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T -NEGFEITR T FERBERM
BYN HEXTEBRE-F
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BHZEMEREDIERE-F
—PEEEHEIR] FATE - —F—MmF
AEIEEEAREREEBALE
HEERHE - ERRER/AEE L
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BIE =T — O FET 8RR 2 R D
HERZ T FBBAARTREE
TR AR 2 10% ° BIER AR 7%
RAFAE FRBAMA-ZZT N
F+ATHAZRZR - AARA
R TREFERER RS BB AL
161,201,291 (BB #E - RIE
—ETNFHEI R T —HFETE
BRI 2 RINEE &Z A6 HTEE
BADETEEETRANZ30% °
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HE— PR BRI R R 2 TR
REBLIREME - RZT—\F
+=—A=+—H0 BE_STNF
R R T —NFFEEER LA
M AR T 2 BERR B TS Ko 2 AR (08X
B %117,200,000 % ( —F—+4F :
97,200,0000%) ' AR A% A
BETRMNZ31% (ZF—+4F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or
to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the
date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any
12-month period, are subject to prior shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting.

The exercise price in relation to each share option pursuant
to the 2014 Scheme shall be not less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date on which
the share option is offered to a Qualified Person; or (i) the
average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of offer; or (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company. There shall be no
minimum holding period for the vesting or exercise of the
share options under the 2014 Scheme but the share options
are exercisable within the option period as determined by the
board of directors of the Company.

On 19 June 2014, the Company and Rotaland Limited
(the “Consultant”) entered into a consultancy agreement
(the “Consultancy Agreement”) pursuant to which the
Company engaged the Consultant to provide marketing
and introduction services advice and guidance to support
the Group’s business expansion and development (the
“Consultancy Services”) for a fixed term of three years.

As consideration for the Consultancy Services, the
Company had, upon signing of the Consultancy Agreement,
conditionally granted to the Consultant an option (the
“Option”), at a nominal consideration of HK$1.00, to
subscribe for 140,000,000 shares of HK$0.05 each in
the share capital of the Company (“Option Shares”) at an
exercise price of HK$0.25 per Option Share.

The Option was exercisable for 3 years from the date
of Consultancy Agreement. Vesting of the Option was
conditional upon the achievement of certain non-market
performance target by a subsidiary of the Company.

29. BRI (&)

(b)

(%)

A ER+ =@ A B AR A A R
TERRSIBLIERITEET R
F 2 EABEA L 2 TAER
BB AR BT R E BT
7 2.0.1% 8k 42 B (1R I5 A R B %
MRFRE BB KTHEE) BB
5,000,000/ 7T © BLRERKRE
RE Ltk -

BIE=T—OF:E - SHERE
ZITEBIBER()REEBRAL
RERHBRES BB EER
BRAYIZBOUTE  SHi)REB
BREFHAMANEARSABR
Fig B RERFF x5 FHYm
B (i) ANRRRNEE (xS
EBE) - B —T—NEHE
R AERER B S TR MA
BAZEEHR - HEREENA
NRAEESBE T BRERRATT
{5 o

RZZE—EWESA+TNA  AQF
£ Rotaland Limited ([ B&[ 1) 5732
—thERBE(BERBE] - &
It ARARZEBERIRETISHE
KE|BRBEZEMIES - LTEA
SEERERRERE([BEMR
%)) BEFHR=F -

EREBRERBZRE - NARINE
EREM RN AR HEEER
{B1.0078 T AR % L B AL #E ([ B8
A&#E |) - BI 52 8% 140,000,000 A& A
RARAHR FREE0.05E T2
i ([EERRIERR D D) @ 1THEEAE
ARRE AR 1D 0.25 T ©

FERCRE A e BT 1758 B BRERT =4F
HIR AT - BEEZRBEAR
BlZ B A RIERE T IFMSERA
BEREITAIEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

RGBSR (&)

BER TEE < BREERLERRE
RIRBREMBETESEA T - BEZ
T—tF+-_A=+—HIFE  ta
BRELEREM - FAREBE_TTONF
ek -GS A REARRE
R BB 2 BB S E R 1T

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 29.

None of the Option granted to the Consultant was exercised or
exercisable since granted because the performance target was
not met. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the above
Option was expired. Movements in share options to subscribe
for ordinary shares in the Company under the 2004 Scheme and
2014 Scheme during the year and their weighted average exercise

price are as follows: BT :
Number of Weighted average
share options exercise price
BREHE MREFI9ITEE
2018 2017 2018 2017

2 “B-\F —T-tF ZB-\F C—T-+t%
5 HK$ HKS
= BT BT
:E . ________________________________________________|
,5 Outstanding at 1 January R—A—BXRTE 97,200,000 | 53,200,000 0.240 0.246
g Exercised B17E - | (20,000,000)| N/A TR 0.245
9 Forfeited B35 (15,000,000) | (32,000,000) 0.240 0.245
% Granted R 35,000,000 | 96,000,000 0.240 0.240
-

Outstanding at 31 December R+=A=+—B*E 117,200,000 | 97,200,000 0.240 0.240
2
)% Exercisable at 31 December R+ZA=+—HAF17£| 82,200,000 | 97,200,000 0.240 0.240
2 ]
:_C‘% Notes: e
§ )  The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares () BHEZZE—EtF+-A=1+—HLF

B ERBRERETEEHANARXG
Bdn < hniE 9 8 4 0.256 BT °

immediately before the dates on which the share options were
exercised during the year ended 31 December 2017 is HK$0.255.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

The exercise prices and exercisable period of share options under
the 2004 Scheme and 2014 Scheme outstanding at the reporting

date are as follows:

Exercisable period

RRAD SR (42)

MIeE « (4&)

29.

(i)

Number of share
options outstanding
as at 31 December

R#wE B MERITE 2 —FFTOFL
BT NFEA T RREL
TTEERITERMT -

Exercise price

R+=A=+—H
1T1EEA i ARITE 2 BRERE TEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\FE —ZT—+F —E-NF ZZT—+F
Notes HK$ HK$
Bi=E BT BT
. _____________________________________________________________|
07/09/2017 — 07/09/2020 81,000,000 | 96,000,000 (@) 0.240 0.240
—E—tFNALRE=ZT_TFNALH
01/04/2019 — 25/03/2021 35,000,000 - (b) 0.240 N/A i A
—E-NFNA—RE_ZT-_—F=-A-+AH
25/08/2011 — 25/08/2021 480,000 480,000 (@) 0.280 0.280
—2—FN\A=Z+HBAZE
—ZT_—F)\A=+AH
25/08/2011 — 25/08/2021 720,000 720,000 (c) 0.280 0.280
—2—FN\A=Z+HBAZE
—ZT_—F)\A=+AH
117,200,000 | 97,200,000
(@  These share options were immediately vest on the date of (@ ZEBERENKLABRAES
grant. B
()  These share options will be vested on 1 April 2019 when the ) WMREE=F—-—NF+=A
audited profit after tax (excluding bonus to management and =+ —HIEFE ' SYFS K Eff
employees) of SYFS and its subsidiaries for the year ended B AR 2 B ZBREBE R (1
31 December 2018 is not less than HK$15 million. BIEEIERE RiEELA) MER
16BEB T ZEFBEREFR
“E-NFOA—HEB -
(€)  These share options were vested one year from the date of ) ZEERESRERD AR
grant. —FEHE
(d)  The weighted average remaining contractual life of share @ R=ZZE-—NF+=—A=+—80"

options outstanding at 31 December 2018 is 1.7 years (2017:

2.7 years).

W ARSI TR REARAE 2 INAE TR T
BHHRAB1IT7TE(ZZE—H5F
274F) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-N\F+-_A=1+—HIFE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
granted share options that, subject to certain non-market vesting
conditions, entitled the Qualified Persons to subscribe for an
aggregate 35,000,000 (2017: 96,000,000) new shares of HK$0.05
each in the share capital of the Company.

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is based on the fair value of the share options granted of
HK$3,505,000 (2017: HK$9,520,000), measured using Binomial
Option Pricing Model. The following inputs were used in the
measurement of the fair value at grant date:

29. RIS (42)

HE-_ZT-\F+=-ZA=+—8HL*F
B ARARREHNBREGRTSETIE
MiZHBIRMT) JEEERALTHER
i & 35,000,000 ( = F — £ F:
96,000,000 % ) A2 R A+ FREE
0.05 B TTHIFTAR (7 ©

DA H B8 P 1 7 B 3t P WO ER AR 7% 2
NRFEDEREEBRE 2 2 FE
3,505,000/ 7L (=ZF—+4F : 9,520,000
AT R R EERYGE -
THBEAEDRRFERRERRAZA
FE:

Inputs 26/03/2018 07/09/2017
—E-N\F —E—4F
AR =B=+7H NLALH
Grant date share price HK$0.234 HK$0.233
i B AR (E 0.234 & T 0.233/87C
Exercise price HK$0.240 HK$0.240
1TIE(E 0.240 % T 0.240% 7T
Expected life 3 years 3 years
TEHERFHA 3F 3F
Expected volatility 71.59% 81.26%
TE B R
Expected dividend yield 0.00% 0.00%
TEHARR B
Risk-free interest rate 1.67% 0.84%
I B A 2

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the Company’s share price over the previous three years. The
expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, no equity-settled share-
based payment expense was recognised in respect of the share
options granted during the year as the vesting conditions had
not been met. The Group recognised equity-settled share-
based payment expense of HK$9,520,000 for the year ended 31
December 2017 under staff costs.

FEHR R IE R AR R SR =FRETT
BKREVBERIBET - BAMA 2 AMF
%E*EF%@Z?%H% A
% TERSINTREARMER T E
T”LAEH*E“

Bz \F+-_A=+—HLHF
B BREBGEREEN  BIENRF
R A B R A T R AR A A AR 15 1+ 3K
Y -#Zz—ZFT—+F+=-A=+—H
IHFE - REBRE TRATHERRA
HER DX 9,520,000 7T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE—

30.

E-NF+A=+—HILEFE

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 28 June 2018, the Company entered into an agreement to sell n=
the entire issued share capital of a subsidiary, Joinbo Holdings
Limited, for a cash consideration of HK$4,000,000. The net assets
disposed of, the resulting loss on disposal and the net cash inflow
in respect of the above transaction were as follows:

HEMRBE AR

KEERARZE
X 8 /34,000,000 7T °

T N\EXA-+N\B  AATE
— 5tz

% AHE—BMBARSKE
MEBITERA B
B R RS

ZEHERERE HEELZEERR

FRERALT :
2018
—E-N\EF
HK$°000
FER
Net assets disposed of: EHEEEFRE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - B REE 1
Interests in an associate S )N W 193
Other receivables and prepayments H AW R R TR RE 169
Cash and cash equivalents fﬁi&f +EFIEHE 18
Other payables and accruals HMENERRETER (1)
380
Loss on disposal: HERE
Consideration received BURE 4,000
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE (380)
Non-controlling interests derecognised Wﬂzfrﬁw#? PR A (11)
Cumulative currency translation reserve R ERBESENDBEAER
in respect of the subsidiaries ZBBEELERB AR KEE AR
and associate disposed of reclassified 2 BETEEIRE
from equity to profit or loss on disposal (6,528)
(2,919)**
Net cash inflow: BEHERA -
Total consideration KRBT 4,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of B EREReRRSERIER (18)
3,982

**included in “Other gains and losses” in profit or loss

*K

AR

2 [Efbes &R A
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31. RESERVES 31. &
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SHARE PREMIUM

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the funds in the
share premium account of the Company may be credited to a
contributed surplus account of the Company. Such contributed
surplus, may be distributed when the Company is able to settle its
liabilities when they fall due after such payment.

SHAREHOLDER’S CONTRIBUTION

Shareholder’s contribution represents the amount of borrowing
due by the Company which was waived by a former shareholder
during the year ended 30 April 2008.

CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE

Capital redemption reserve was arising from the repurchase and
cancelled of 47,720,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each during
the year ended 30 April 2001.

CONVERTIBLE BOND EQUITY RESERVE

Convertible bond equity reserve represented the equity component
of the convertible bonds issued by the Company which had not
been converted into ordinary shares of the Company. The amount
attributable to 2014 SYHL Bonds was transferred to accumulated
losses in the previous year as the conversion option of the
relevant amount of convertible bonds remained unexercised at
the 2014 SYHL Bonds Maturity Date. The amount attributable to
2017 SYHL Bonds was transferred to accumulated losses in the
current year as the conversion option of the relevant amount of
convertible bonds remained unexercised at the 2017 SYHL Bonds
Maturity Date. The amount attributable to 2018 SYHL Bonds was
transferred to share capital and share premium in the current year
upon exercise of the conversion option.

SHARE OPTION RESERVE

Share option reserve represents the portion of the grant date fair
value of the unexercised share options of the Company.

CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE

Currency translation reserve represents all the foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements
and goodwill through acquisition of foreign operations from their
functional currencies to the Group’s presentation currency.

MR A7 E
RE-NN—FAREQFE A7
B m B E S AR ARRBBAR
BRER © AR BN X MRE B B2 M
BREERE  AZBARSKA THIK o

REEE

BREEERARRBR EEHE - &%
ERERNBE_ZTT\FOA=THIt
FRERBIREAR -

% 7= BB 5] % 8

AR EBREREE 2T —F A
=tBELEEBQOLTHEHNEREE
0.017#7T,2 47,720,000 A E3@ A% o

AR AR 2 R
AMBESEmEEE AN AR RTZA
BERES BBy REABRERES
RMABBRASARRRZERBE - —T—M0
FRREREFBIGEENBEFEE
BREZFEE RERAHEIBRRES
BB BBRER T MOFRRIERE
FRMBADNARETE - —F—LFHIR
ERESFEEERBREAFTERAE
B REASABARRESBE IR
BR Tt FRRIERESZIHAD
RETE - — T \FRIREBESE
HBER LR EETRREBREAFE
PR N B A 42 (B o

BRERE

B RIEARRARETERBRER
B AHERS -

ENBRE e
ERBRERBESTINEBIEERR M
FERBBELE A ERENEEERE

RASEEINEEELE ZMAIINEE
B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

32. COMMITMENTS
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the reporting date, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases, in respect of land and
buildings, are payable as follows:

32.

i
REEENRE

RiE B AEBRENAT AL
HAOM T R EFAARERRKEEE
SIRARERINT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FERT FAT

Within one year —FNA 5,905 10,544
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFEFRIF(BEEEMT) - 5,902
5,905 16,446

The Group leases a number of properties under operating leases.
The leases run for an initial period of 1 to 3 years (2017: 1 to 3
years). None of the leases include contingent rentals.

OTHER COMMITMENTS

At the reporting date, the total future minimum service fee
payments under non-cancellable service agreements are payable

AEBRELZHOBEZEY X - H
WINBEER R —ZE=F(ZF—+F:
—E=%F) - EENEBEIAEL -

H e

RiE B A - N BEARE A A B RS
R R AR 2 R AR ARTS B A AR RR 40

as follows: T
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHT FAT
Within one year —FR 630 720
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EEFERF (BEEEMT) - 630

630 1,350

199



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 3. AEALIRFREEARS &
DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN BFHRENP2ERER
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS
In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in BRZEMBHRRAMM A FR RS R
these financial statements, the Group had the following material REERON - AREBNF A ELREE A T LT
transactions with related parties during the year: LEARSGHT :

2018 2017
—B-\F T t%
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FAT
z
5 A director of the Company AAFES
é Mr. Chen Zhong Min RERLE
s — Interest paid (note (a)) — BRFE (M3 @) 8,701 —
o
= An entity has significant influence HEAQNBEEAFENZER
& over the Company
2 Wah Lun International Development Limited % BIFR 2 & AR A 7]
@ — Interest expense (note (b)) — BRI (MIEE (D) 421 —
> A substantial shareholder ERREERR
)% of the Company
- King Lion Group Limited King Lion Group Limited
g — Interest income (note (c)) — FBHA (FFFE () - 277
E — Interest expense (note (d)) — FIERX (M3E () - 276
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Mr. Chen Zhong Min was appointed as a director of the Company
on 2 January 2018. Interest of HK$8,701,000 paid was in
connection with 2017 SYHL Bonds held by and loan advanced from
him. The 2017 SYHL Bonds and the loan have a principal amount
of HK$100,000,000 and HK$80,000,000, respectively and were
fully redeemed/repaid in the current year.

Interest expense of HK$421,000 was in connection with loan
advanced from this entity. The loan has a principal amount of
HK$80,000,000 and was included under “Borrowings” (note 25) at
31 December 2018.

Interest income of HK$277,000 was in connection with loans
advanced to this entity. The loans had a principal amount of
HK$1,000,000 to HK$5,000,000 and were fully settled in the
previous year.

Interest expense of HK$276,000 was in connection with loans
advanced from this entity. The loans had a principal amount of
HK$2,000,000 to HK$10,000,000 and were fully repaid in the
previous year.

33. BEAEIRZIREERARS &
ERENP2ERER (2)

BMEREENR-_ZFT—NF—HA=H
BZEAARAIEE BFFE
8,701 ooo;‘%fcéﬁiﬁﬁﬁh—?—ti
BREREFRBNERBA -
—tFRRERESREE $$§E/\
71l /100,000,000 7t & 80,000,000
B ERAFEREER,MEE -

F B 5 421,000 JT 82 7% B B
NZzERE@M- uz%‘@xz}s@%ﬁ;
80,000,000 Tt -
F+—A=+— Elzrf%
25) o

FEUA 277,0008 TTEZ BRI 2
BERBH - Z2ERA £ 541,000,000
BITZE 5,000,000 - ER EFEE
HEIE o

FER 276,0008 TEZ BRI 2
BERBH - Z2ERAE % 42,000,000
7 702 10,000,000 T ER EEE
EHEE -

201



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 3. AEALIRFREEARS &
DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN BRENR2ERERS (&)
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS (Continued)

Except as disclosed above, no other transactions, arrangements PR EXFTIREEEIN - RITEFEERNHR
or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to MHREFEAER  HEEAREEER
which the Company was a party and in which a director of the (KRRIBEFR—FH)BMB  BEAREE
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, EREFEERNEEEEEARR CH
subsisted during or at the end of the financial year. X5 BHHKEBREL o
COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL FEEHEEAS SN
» 2018 2017
E —E-N\F —E—+F
2 HK$’000 HK$'000
g FHER FAT
S
5 Short-term employee benefits o HE SR A 5,750 5,231
z Share-based payment expense IR A - 3,629
2 Post-employment benefits ERRTER 168 221
;
o 5,918 9,081

>
z
Z
c
>
—
by}
m
o
o
by
_|
N
o
=
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34. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 34. EflEIszemEEREEH
LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY =
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities AEBRFEHHERCEREERS
as recognised at the reporting dates are categorised as follows: BERAESEOT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Financial assets EHMEE
Fair value through profit or loss BAFEF ABE
— Held for trading investments — FEEERGRE 6,828 39,616
6,828 39,616
Amortised cost B SER R
— Other assets — HitwEE 1,730 1,730
— Trade receivables — B S RIERK 36,716 64,260
— Other receivables — HEfbREUBRER 2,710 4,212
— Trust bank balances held on - REEFEHEEZ
behalf of clients EFLIRTA R 45,407 221,581
— Cash and cash equivalents — Be MRE&ERIER 47,262 87,556
133,825 379,339
140,653 418,955
Financial liabilities A= N=N
Amortised cost BSERN
— Trade and other payables and accruals — &5 K EER BRI
AR FESHE A 54,219 242,453
— Borrowings — B8 80,421 -
— Convertible bonds — AR ES - 143,517
134,640 385,970
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments are disclosed in note
34. The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these risks to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

(A) MARKET RISK

U]

CURRENCY RISK

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through receivables from and payables to clients from
the provision of services and cash balances that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are RMB
and US$.

To manage the currency risk, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level,
by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates
where necessary to address short-term imbalances.
The Group may also uses foreign exchange forward
contracts to minimise its currency risk exposure, except
for those transactions denominated in US$ which are,
or are expected to be, entered into by operations with
a functional currency of HK$. No foreign exchange
forward contracts are entered for these transactions as
the Group considers the risk of changes in exchange
rates between HK$ and US$ to be insignificant.

35.

MHEREEEERBE

AEBTZCRMITARBENRITESS - &
FeRMTAEZRBRRLEBRIEZS
Bz BRHANR T - BEBEERE
KRZFRRE - EERER KA B REE

=Ry

A) TEERER
() ErEE
AEEERZEERRER
2K 8 B e A AR M RE U e
NEPFRIBANAR 5185
B ERENINEEE
LB RER  EXIRERZ
BEERARENRET -

REBERRER  AEEZ
BRBEERREGEREA
SE L ETHRE BT 2HME -
ERRBRFREREAIER
IR o REHE TR & A HMNE
EMENBEEREER (AE
TAHEZR BRI - ZFR
HRRBHRA/NEER BB
TLZEBEL) » REERR
BTHEITEXZESHEARE
R MAEREEFERXHETL
SNEZRHAGH
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. I EKREEBFERBXK &)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(A) MARKET RISK (Continued) (A TIEREBSE)
() CURRENCY RISK (Continued) () E¥mEkEE)
The following table details the Group’s financial assets T&RFINRNEER RS EME
and liabilities denominated in currencies, other than the HERANHEEREEY
functional currency of the entities to which they relate, PONEBTE EREER
at the end of the reporting period: TRAE
Expressed in HK$
UBTE5
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Us$ RMB Us$ RMB
£n AE% ES N
$'000 $/000 $'000 $000 [
Fi Fi Fr Fr |-
=
Trade and other B 5 &AM YRR z,
receivables 24,823 250 18,937 134
Trust bank balances RERFEFHZ
held on behalf EFEIRTTAEER
of clients 707 - 814 -
Cash and cash RekBEEFRIER
equivalents 14,258 24 31,365 124
Trade and other B 5 REMER IR
payables and K ERTER
accruals (707) - (814) -
Borrowings BE - - - -
Net exposure R\ B FEE 39,081 274 50,292 258
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-N\F+-_A=1+—HIFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(A) MARKET RISK (Continued)

)

(1

CURRENCY RISK (Continued)

The Group does not expect any significant changes
in US$/HK$ exchange rates as US$ is pegged to
HK$. No sensitivity analysis in respect of RMB/HK$
exchange rates is disclosed as in the opinion of the
directors, such sensitivity analysis does not give
additional value in view of insignificant balances that
are denominated in RMB at the reporting date.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to amounts arising from money lending
services (note 20), borrowings (note 25) and convertible
bonds (note 26) issued at fixed rates. The Group is
also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate financial assets of amounts due from
margin clients (note 20) and bank balances (notes 22
and 23).

To manage the interest rate risk, the Group may use
interest rate swaps to achieve an appropriate mix of
fixed and floating rate exposure consistent with the
Group’s policy. At 31 December 2018 and 2017,
the Group did not have any outstanding interest rate
swaps.

BREEMREEEEREE &)
(A TIEREBSE)
() E#EEE)

)

AEEFEY AETEBT
e tET B TEERD
SEEAERED -EER
B ERRBEEHUAAR
BEtE<EBLTEKR - A
R/ BrLTEEZHRES
e mREIMEE - B
EINBEBRBREDN

FIET]

A g B R 82K B B RS
ZHRIE(M5E20) ~ EE (M
i25) RIREE R ERHIT L
TTWQE??(MT%E%MHE%Z

DFEFEER - AEE IR
[ e BRI TR E P A
(P &E20) LA K2 R 1T 44 &5 (Ff

a£22&23)2/;5$@$éf§
Z IR & A 2 b

REBNERR  NEEA
ERFRERETFEEE
K@M ERBRAS A
Gl $Elﬂzﬁ N
—NERZT—+F+_H

=-t—[5 - $%l1ﬁ&ﬂ
HARBA 2 FI R H -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

35. BIKEREEEERBE &)

(A) MARKET RISK (Continued) A TiEEBEE)
() INTEREST RATE RISK (Continued) () FEEE(E)

At 31 December 2018, if interest rates had increased
by 2% (2017: 2%) while all other variables were
held constant, the loss for the year would decrease
by approximately HK$1,844,000 (2017: decrease
in loss by approximately HK$6,195,000) and there
would be a corresponding change in accumulated
losses. If interest rates had decreased by 2% (2017:
2%) while all other variables were held constant, the
loss for the year would increase by approximately
HK$1,844,000 (2017: increase in loss by approximately
HK$6,195,000) and there would be a corresponding
change in accumulated losses. Other components of
the consolidated equity would remain unchanged.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined by
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period. In
respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments
held by the Group at the end of the reporting period,
the analysis is prepared by assuming these financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. In the
management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
exposure at the end of the reporting period does not
reflect the exposure during the year.

RZE—NEFE+ZA=1+—
H EFEEMESHRFT
BHBERT - WHEER2%
—E—+F :2%) BIER
&5 18 1 T % 491,844,000 %
T(ZE—tF : BERLY
6,195,000/ 7T ) * M R 5T E
EASEEES - B EMm
BERFTENBRT M
FMETER2%B(ZZE—LF:
2%)  AIFAEBERKIERLD
1,844,000 (=T — &
F ¢ F 1B K 46,195,000
BIT) - mRFTEEKAEREE
B A EMI o B4

ZERRIE DT T ER R RN
HEHEAER BB EE
HmEEr BEERARE
M BAKERBEZZES
AEERBESHHEEERE
B FEMNEERANESE T
B o giAKE R & HE A
BEFBEZEBMEIITE
TRELAZHRES R EER
mE - BEASMIDERRE
ZERNBEHEEE B RAR
BEZEMIARBRESFE
BRER - EBERR
ARBEHEEEBNER
I N RRF AR - 8
HREST AL TRKREFH
RER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-N\F+-_A=1+—HIFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(A) MARKET RISK (Continued)
() EQUITY PRICE RISK

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities and investment funds
classified as held for trading investments (note 21).
The Group’s equity securities are listed on the Stock
Exchange while investment funds invest primarily in
companies listed in Hong Kong. Decisions to buy and
sell are based on daily monitoring of the performance
of individual securities and investment funds as well as
the liquidity needs.

At 31 December 2018, if relevant equity prices
had increased by 10% (2017: 10%) while all other
variables were held constant, the loss for the year
would decrease by approximately HK$683,000 (2017:
decrease in loss by approximately HK$3,962,000)
and there would be a corresponding change in
accumulated losses. If relevant equity prices had
decreased by 10% (2017: 10%) while all other variables
were held constant, the loss for the year would increase
by approximately HK$683,000 (2017: increase in loss
by approximately HK$3,962,000) and there would be
a corresponding change in accumulated losses. Other
components of the consolidated equity would remain
unchanged.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined by
assuming that the changes in equity price had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and has been applied
to those instruments which expose the Group to equity
price risk at that date. In the management’s opinion,
the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent equity price risk as the exposure at the end
of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

MHEREEEERBE#)

(A)

migEE (E)
() BRAEEERE

AREBERDBERFEES
RERE (faE21) 2B E
FIRERREESARBA
BRRER - AEEZRAFE
FRERAT LT - MIREE
%I%&ﬁﬁ&%%iﬁz
~AEl - BELRHERENE
RERERBELFZRREES
REZHAEEEUANRBE
EHRKMIEH

RZE—N\F+=ZA=+—
H - EMEEMESHIFT
BOERAT - HMEAREKE
RERI0%(ZT—LF:
10%) @ Al F NEIE 15 T B&
#47683,000 L( = F — &
& BB T k& 43,962,000
BIT) - MR EEKEESZ
B  EFMEEMEEHEFTT
BHERT - MEARAKE
B D10% (=& — ’ti
10%) - B A &5 18 5 ¢

#1683,000%8 L ( = & — t
F: F 18 1% K 493,962,000
BIT) - MRFTEEKAEREE
B A EMI o B

LR E T DERRER
HEMEAE B HIRRAE
REPHmMEE  ACEAR
ZESAEEN % B MK
AEBARNIA - BEE
R BREIMATKE
Bl RAERRER - TIAR
HEMEAE R 2 Eg I A
BERBRF AR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-\F+-A=1+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations
in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

(B)

)

TRADE RECEIVABLES

In order to minimise the credit risk on trade receivables,
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
The management closely monitors the subsequent
settlement of the debts and does not grant long credit
period to new customers. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
on trade receivables is significantly reduced.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each counterparty
rather than the geographical area or industry and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual counterparties. At 31 December 2018,
the Group had concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables as 97% of the balance was due from five
largest debtors (2017: 88% was due from five largest
debtors).

MHEREEEERBE#)
B) FEREE

S F T REBITEE @ HIAKHE
T *EﬁlJEﬁﬁ%%Zéénﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁ
RAEERR R MBI RA
%WEZ%&EZEE@{E :

() EZERER

SEEREE S REERE
ERk - AEEEEEEZ
KEEEREREEERFER
B EEfmkEAMmEER
B AEEREREURETEIR
ElEER - EEETYE
2EHZERBERR A
TreaRTHErPREEN-
ARBEEFRR WEAKX
ERIEAREZ B 5 R R
FIEERE -

AEBES  EERRE
X EHF I 2 BRI EEET
8 MIEXMBEAMNE K
%%wa EHit - AEE

iki¢ﬁgﬂ B &

ERRIEFH 2 EXRRRET

EEx -R-_T-NF+ZAH

=+—HB BARIT%ERE

R ARBEBAZRE(ZE

—tF :88% BEKRAKNE

BAZHIE)  HASEE S

EUR S ERE R EERR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. BIEKREEBFERBXK &)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(B) CREDIT RISK (Continued) (B) EERB#Z)
() TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) () EZEKERN(E)
At 31 December 2018, amount due from HKSCC RZFE-—NFTZA=+—
represents unsettled trade transacted on the last two H - BUWEBSEEZREER
business days prior to the end of the reporting period WMEMREE BRI &ERER
and amount due from HKCC represents undrawn SBZREERZEEREW
deposits at the end of the reporting period. None of BEAPEAERBERNRS
the amounts arising from money lending services are HEZEERRBAGFERK B
past due at the reporting date. The following table HE BB EKRE ERRG
provides information about the exposure to credit risk ZFRIBmE - TRIEHKRAR
% for amounts arising from asset management services: BEEEERY < FIBMEER
8 ZIEERBER
S
% 2018 2017
Q —E-N\F —T—tF
g HK$’000 HK$’000
& T8 FHT
=
@ Not yet past due i 7K 260 5 8,903 =
0 — 30 days past due HHEI0ZE 30 H - 3,496
P 31 — 60 days past due #HAI31 =60 H - 2,803
§ 61 — 90 days past due #HI61 E90 H 4,705 2,917
- 91 - 180 days past due B E 180 B 7,530 8,256
g 181 — 365 days past due #HI181 =365 H 8,151 6,638
E Over 365 days past due #wHARAR B 365 B 126 2,429
5
29,415 26,539
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(B) CREDIT RISK (Continued)

)

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Since 1 January 2018, the Group measures loss
allowance for amounts arising from asset management
services at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. In
measuring the ECLs, these receivables have been
assessed on a collective basis when they possess
shared credit risk characteristics. They have been
grouped based on the days past due and also
according to the geographical location of customers.
Based on the payment profile over the past 36 months
before 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018,
respectively, the corresponding historical credit losses,
the fact that assets managed by the Group on behalf of
those clients worth multiples of any outstanding fees as
well as current and forwarding looking macroeconomic
factors affecting the customer’s ability to settle
the amount outstanding, no loss allowance was
recognised as the amount of ECL for these receivables
is insignificant.

35. BIKEREEEERBE &)

(B) EERB#Z)
() EZEKFE(E)

BE-ZE—-N\F—A—A"
AEBBKRBEEETERRS
2B FBHEERX
ZHHR& A2 BAREE -
RETEEHEEBRRE - B
ZERBERABEREER
R AT A - IR EE?Y
TG - Z SRR R
BHXERTBERE 2t
BAMEDMHE - BRESBIR=
TZ-NF+_A=1+—"HK
—E-NF-—H—HABE
361M& A 25165 - HHE A
FREEEX AEERERHE
REEREEZEEARE
MEALNBREZHEZE
ERVERPHEEMAIM
RIBRENZERIRAREE
KERZ  ARZEEKE
RZEHEEBRSEHAT
BEX - RBBRERIBR BN -

\Q(EU

i
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HE-Z-N\F+-_A=1+—HIFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(B) CREDIT RISK (Continued)

)

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

For amounts due from HKSCC and HKCC, these
receivables are considered to have low credit risk
based their historical trading records. Amounts due
from margin clients and arising from money lending
services have been grouped based on the shortfall of
loan balances over the respective collateral amounts
and average default rates are adopted in determining
the ECLs. At 31 December 2018, the Group did not
have any amounts due from margin clients and amount
arising from money lending services of HK$7,241,000
is secured by marketable securities with fair value of
HK$30,000,000. At 1 January 2018, amounts due
from margin clients of HK$1,309,000 and amounts
arising from money lending services of HK$20,444,000
were secured by marketable securities with fair value
of HK$6,098,000 and HK$39,000,000, respectively.
The fair value of marketable securities of each
individual receivable is higher than the corresponding
outstanding balance and the Group is permitted to
sell these collaterals if that client defaults in payments.
Accordingly, loss allowance for these receivables is
measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECL. No
loss allowance was recognised as the amount of ECL
for these receivables is insignificant.

MR EREERE

(B)

ERBUR (40)

=ERR#E)

)

B S BRI (&)

HEMEBEERBEHRE
ﬁxﬁﬁﬁm’%%F%$

FBREEBARZ DR
w%ﬁgﬂ R A IE o EULFT
BREFRRBEEFRE 2K
BHIRBEERSREHEGRHER
SEMERELNEEESE
EEBRTRANTIELD
RETHE - R —\F
+-A=+—8 A&EEYT
ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@@ﬁﬁ
BEERREERRB 2K
7,241,000 7T A & J?TE?%
30,000,000/ 7t 2 B EE FH
Ve - R_ZE—\FE—A
—B EBRFREFP ZFIE
1,309,000 % 7T & 5K B B AR
& 2 3R IE 20,444,000 7% 7T J5
2 BILAAF{E A 6,098,000 7
7t }%.39,000,0008 7T 2 B B
*%Wﬁﬁ = 1 51 8 Uk BR
RZEBBHFCAFERR
m%hﬁiﬁm%vﬂﬁz
PZAREN  BIAEEE
HEHEZEEAR - Bt
ZERWREER ZIBRBED
Z12@ABEEBLRZA
FlISETE - HRZERIK
R TEHEERLASEHF
FEK WBEERERE
1o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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HE-T-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(B) CREDIT RISK (Continued)

35. BIKEREEEERBE &)

(B) EERB &)

() TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) () EZEUKR(E)
Prior to 1 January 2018, impairment loss was RZZE—-—NF—H—H8# "
recognised only when there was objective evidence of EEEREBRESERE
impairment. At 31 December 2017, the amounts due B REEBEAS 2 TINUNE
from HKSCC and margin clients and amounts arising ReRZE—LF+H
from money lending services and proprietary trading =+—H BREBHZEER
were neither past due nor impaired. Based on past FREFZZRERKBER
experience, management believed that no impairment R RkBEEEE 2 RIEAR
allowance was necessary due to their track record with BEATNARE - BRIBBALK
the Group and the balances were fully recoverable. B BEEERAE AREHE
Amounts arising from asset management services have NEEFETERBRERE
not been provided for impairment loss as there has not e - BB EE T IRER
been a significant change in their credit quality. #H-REEEERRB 22
REN RFHIR R BB R -
THRAEEEERTEEX
() OTHER ASSETS AND RECEIVABLES (1) EfEERENFR
The balances are considered to have low credit risk HREFHENRBRRER
as the counterparties have a low risk of default and WE A B RE - WA
does not have any past due amounts. Loss allowance BRAABEREERR - Z
for these balances is measured at an amount equal to Stz ERBEEIZ12E
12-month ECL. No loss allowance was recognised as RAEBMEERLAZHRSHE
the amount of ECL for these balances is insignificant. FTE - HRREHEMR AR
BEEBXEEHTEXN &
HAMERIB AR
() TRUST BANK BALANCES HELD ON BEHALF OF () RFxEFIFEZRITIETH

CLIENTS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The balances are mainly held with banks which are
rated at BBB+ to A+, based on international credit
ratings agencies. Loss allowance for these balances is
measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECL. No
loss allowance was recognised as the amount of ECL
for these balances is insignificant.

BURREZRELEEE

B E B A BIRE R AR
BT E ”BBB+ EA+ R Z IR
THE - ZFEBHB2BRE
wIhR12EARBEERLX
ZHEFREBETE - ARZF
R RREEBERSEIN
TEX  BWHAERBERE
e
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HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. BIEKREEBFERBXK &)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(C) LIQUIDITY RISK C) "BE£EB
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty mBEcRRIEAEEETRBRBIN
in meeting obligations associated with its financial liabilities RegHhemEELE SRAER
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets. B EERGEENE R - RNEE
The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and EVAREEERRBEARNAEE
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to LEMBReRBEFREEKTE - I
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of EERERENEBRBITE
fluctuations in cash flows.
The following table details the remaining contractual TREAJBEITAESRABBIHRT AL
maturities for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table BB c ZRIERAEE e EkY
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows Nrz&FRRBeRABEIRITRRERN
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the ERE - KURBERBEMNERLS
Group can be required to pay. The undiscounted cash flows N
include both interest and principal payments:
Total
contractual  On demand
Carrying undiscounted  or less than 6 months 2to5
amount cash flows 6 months to 1 year years
BHRER RERH
BEE HReReE HSRAER AERE-F WMERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT FAT FAEL THEL
. _________________________________________________________________________|
At 31 December 2018 R=ZE-N\f
+ZA=1+—H
Trade and other payables &5 R EMEMEER
and accruals IRt ER 54,219 54,219 54,219 - -
Borrowings B 80,421 85,246 85,246 - -
134,640 139,465 139,465 - -
At 31 December 2017 R=-ZE—+f
t=A=t-H
Trade and other payables & 5 R E i ERERR
and accruals IRt ER 242,453 242,453 242,453 - -
Convertible bonds gk ES 143,517 163,800 45,000 118,800 -
385,970 406,253 287,453 118,800 -
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36. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

The following table presents the Group’s financial instruments
measured at fair value on a recurring basis in the consolidated
statement of financial position according to the fair value hierarchy.
The hierarchy groups financial instruments into three levels based
on the relative reliability of significant inputs used in measuring the
fair value of these financial instruments. The fair value hierarchy
has the following levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the assets or liabilities, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

36.

AF{ENE
BRAVENEZSMIA
TREJAKERBERFEFEHER
ARE BMFHIR R AR B B N FER
BZERMTH - ZFRHEREZFTE
BMTAZAFEFEMRBZEZBA
BzHHAANELE $SERIAD /=
B REESREESRWT

F—: HRBEEXRENERMISZ
HE CREAE)

F - BEXBBEE (AER) XHE
& (AMERITE) AR ZBmA
B F—REEZHRERI
P54

F=: BEEKABYIFREAIBED
BB ANE(T A BN
ANE)FE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T—\F+-A=+—HLEE

36. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 36. AT{EFTE#®E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (Continued) BAFEFEZEMIA(Z)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— E_R E= Mt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THT AT AT AT
(note (a)) (note (b))
(EE@)  (PHEE (D))
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=+-H
Financial assets at fair value BATEGIABGZEREE
through profit or loss
— Listed equity securities — FilRAES 5,263 - - 5,263
— Unlisted investment funds - FLEMEREES - 1,565 - 1,565
5,263 1,565 - 6,828
At 31 December 2017 R-E—tE+ZA=+-H
Financial assets at fair value BATEGIABGZEREE
through profit or loss
— Listed equity securities — ERAES 37,841 - - 37,841
— Unlisted investment funds — FEMREES - 1,775 = 1,775
37,841 1,775 - 39,616

The levels in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial
instruments are categorised in its entirety are based on the lowest
level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 or transfers into
or out of level 3 in the reporting periods. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy at the
date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the

transfer.

(A) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN LEVEL 1

The fair value of the listed equity securities is based on the
quoted market prices at the reporting date. The quoted
market price used for the listed equity securities held by the
Group is the current bid price.

RNHEZRHE D R TIERE R FEF
EMEBEENRAEBNRKEREX  Z%
DR M T AETERIE - RBE
HiA - F—REE K7 BN EES
F=-RNWEEAREL - REENK
RERBEEBNEHRBERELER
R FER 2 EER -

(A) FE—RFHLHTA
EHRAFES 2 X ETDEREES
BHzmSRERFL - AEERFE
Z ETAE SRR 2 5 RE
RBITHZEAE -
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36.

37.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (Continued)
(B) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN LEVEL 2

The fair value was determined with reference to the reported
net asset value of the investment funds.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT AMORTISED COST

The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities at
amortised cost under current assets and current liabilities,
respectively, is not materially different from their carrying amount
as they are all short term in nature.

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
Continuous Net Settlement (“CNS”) money obligations receivables
and payables with HKSCC and it intends to settle on a net basis
as trade receivables from or trade payables to HKSCC. For the
net amounts of money obligations receivables or payables (i.e.
after set-off) and other receivables and payables (such as deposits
included under other assets), they do not meet the criteria for
offsetting in the consolidated financial statements since the right
to set-off of the recognised amount is only enforceable following
an event of default and the Group does not intended to settle the
balance on a net basis.

In addition, under the agreements signed between the Group
and the clients for its dealing in securities and futures contracts,
money obligations receivables and payables with the same client
are settled on the net basis. The Group therefore has a legally
enforceable right to set off the trade receivables and payables and
the Group intended to settle these balances on a net basis.

36.

37.

DR ETE(H)
BAFEFEZEMIAE(Z)
(B) BRHFHLHTA

RNHEDNRBEZEERIKREES
ZEERMEERE °

BRBENATECEMTA
MEBVBENMRB A EIR MZEHKANA
FeeREERTRABA/EDR ¥
HAVEREREREEYEERE
Gl

HETHEEREMERE

AEEBAABEERBIATHEN
AR EBEECH 2 HBEFER
W (T 5 48 B M ) e i e e A+ B AR
ZARIEASE - BRIRFRAEEERE
BREE B RIERNEE B RN
B o LR R R AR B R
R (BN $H1R ) LA B H fth 8 e e FE A< R SR
(WEMEER N 2RE) 2 FRIAFREF
BME AREHCHERSEERED
FHFBERT ABHIHT - AAKER
BRIFRELEE AR WARSUAY
TEAEREAVBRREHFRE -

BAN - RIBARBEEFHESF KRS
BHEBER 2hE  BR—FFPZE
WAT R 35K % R A Bl R 2 SR TR A HE T DA B
BH - Wit AEBHEABRHIITEE
HE ZRUSRAR R ENERR - BAKE
BAFRGEELTER
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37. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 37. ifiemiEERERMBE &)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

The tables below set out the financial assets and liabilities subject W R - TABIITE BT R
to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangement and similar BUZHZeREERBBHIRNT
arrangements: *®

Amounts due from HKSCC,
cash clients and
margin clients

BWEBEE -
REEFRFFREFRIE
2018 2017
o —E-N\F e
i HK$°000 HK$’000
© FExT FET
S
g Financial assets TREE
g Gross amount of recognised BN EERR
g financial assets 279 18,580
cé Gross amount of recognised RERE AR RIS
= financial liabilities offset in the ZEHER TR B AR
O consolidated statement of
financial position (228) (1,304)
2
E Net amounts of financial assets included s A%R& B FSARINE
3 in the consolidated statement of Z B RE R
§ financial position 51 17,276
g Related amount not set off in the RINERE FSAR R R 85
® consolidated statement of Z HEAFIE
financial position
— financial instruments — &@MTA - -
— financial collaterals — e m - (1,309)
Net amounts HER 51 15,967
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37. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 37. KfiemiEERERMBE &)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

Amounts due to HKSCC,
cash clients and margin clients

EBAEBEE -
ReEFRFREFRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FA&T
Financial liabilities Az a=Ni
Gross amount of recognised EERTHE EERE
financial liabilities 45,707 239,392
Gross amount of recognised RERE B FSAR R 8H
financial assets offset in the ZEEREMEERTE
consolidated statement of
financial position (228) (1,304)
Net amounts of financial liabilities included 5+ A%R& BAFEAR KR
in the consolidated statement of ZERBETE
financial position 45,479 238,088
Related amount not set off in the RIERE IISAR R R 5
consolidated statement of Z NEEERIR
financial position
— financial instruments — &ftTA - —
— financial collaterals — EE R - -
Net amounts FRE 45,479 238,088
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37. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 37. ifiemiEERERMBE &)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

The table below reconciles the “Net amounts of financial assets TREY EX[5FAZREREMRARZ
and financial liabilities included in the consolidated statement of TREERCMBETRE] B
financial position” as set out above to line items in the consolidated RERFTFITE B 2 $0R -

statement of financial position:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FAT
@ Trade and other receivables and &5 REMEWERR
é prepayments DR AR RE
2 Net amounts of financial assets included & A%RA& M AR K
g in the consolidated statement of 2 EREETRE
z financial position 51 17,276
5 Amount not within the scope of I TR B N RIR
g offsetting disclosure 40,094 52,205
=
= Trade and other receivables and e MBARRKREZS
S prepayments presented in the 2B 5 K H A EUER K
consolidated statement of VAR FEA- 51008
= financial position 40,145 69,481
g
% Trade and other payables and accruals £ 5 & Hitt lE{fBR=X
o UK FESTER
g Net amounts of financial liabilities included 5+ A%R4& BT LK
® in the consolidated statement of ZERBEFE
financial position 45,479 238,088
Amount not within the scope of S Y BE 0 [E YN FRIR
offsetting disclosure 8,740 4,365
Trade and other payables and accruals e MBARRRES
presented in the consolidated 2B 5 KEA AR
statement of financial position LA K fEETE A 54,219 242,453
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38.

E-NF+A=+—HILEFE

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which mainly
includes borrowings and convertible bonds as disclosed in notes
25 and 26 respectively and total assets of the Group.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
continuous basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the issuance of new shares and
the addition of new borrowings.

Certain group entities are regulated by the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Commission and are required to comply with the
financial resources requirements according to the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R”).
The Group’s regulated entities are subject to minimum paid-up
share capital requirements and liquid capital requirements under
the SF(FR)R. Management closely monitors, on a daily basis,
the liquid capital level of these entities to ensure compliance
with the minimum liquid capital requirements under the SF(FR)R.
The Group’s regulated entities have complied with the capital
requirements imposed by the SF(FR)R throughout the year.

38. EXEH

LB HARTEIE - SRR
B 6 S AT RS BB LR
B REBRAN - & E—FF
AR B HE -

AEBEAEBRER(FTEREREE
Ma#iRES - DRI ERH 25 &
26) RAEBEEERRBMEK -

ARAEERERLEARE B
T EREEEARKANIAKLE AR
o ERNESFRLZEREZZ  A5E
KB BT SIE I E B FEEE
BEARE -

ETREEERXBAES LM EEHE
REEQEET  ARBEEZFLHE
(M BER) R ESRHE (MBE
R)RAN) BFHBEIRRTE - XEH
XEEERAETES LR (MHRE
TR) A TR ERARE KRS
BARRE - EEEEBATYEGEEZEE
BZRBEARNKYF - LERTEESFK
HE (FHER) RAE NHERBE R
%EE AEEXEEERNEEAFERE
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38. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group monitors its capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total debts divided by total assets. The Group aims to maintain
the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The gearing ratio at the
reporting dates is as follows:

38. EXEE (&)

AEBERBERENBBLRERESR
Ko BAABHRREGREREER
B AREEEREARBLRGRHE
BIEKF - RIERHcERABL X
LI

2018 2017

—B-N\EF —TtF

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ExT THIT

Borrowings BE 80,421 -~
Convertible bonds AR E S - 143,517
Total debts B85 80,421 143,517
Total non-current assets BN E EBEE 9,082 14,686
Total current assets MENEELRE 140,580 418,234
Total assets BERTE 149,662 432,820
Gearing ratio BERBELE 54% 33%
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39. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 39. EEAARMBEMRARER
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
2018 2017
—B-\F T t%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment b E Y & 27 23
Interests in subsidiaries A NEINCI P T 108,138 114,731
108,165 114,754
Current assets REEE
Other receivables and prepayments Eh R BRI TR 5k I8 1,994 2,024
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREZEREE - 20,570
1,994 22,594
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals Hib AR R BB A 4,729 1,148
Borrowings BE 80,421 =
Amount due to a subsidiary FEAH— RSB B A R FIA 25,057 =
Convertible bonds ARRES - 98,517
Provision B - 33,708
110,207 188,378
Net current liabilities REBEEFEE (108,213) (110,779)
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfE) EERE (48) 3,975
EQUITY s
Share capital f&Zs 190,985 178,128
Reserves (note) FACIES) (191,033) (174,153)
(Capital deficiency)/Total equity (BAREH) i (48) 3,975

On behalf of the Board

REEFE

Qiu Bin Cheng Kit Sum, Clara
EB3E =15 9
Director Director
FE =
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39. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 39. EBAARMBEMRRARER &)
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
Note: BRE -
Capital ~ Convertible Share
Share  Shareholder's ~ redemption  bond equity option  Accumulated
premium ~ contribution reserve reserve reserve losses Total
AERER
RiAEE BREE RABERE Eakh  ERERE ZiEE 5t

HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
TiEL TR T TiEL T T TiEL

o At1 January 2017 RZE-tE-F-A 241,062 7834 477 34,408 4,001 (385,589) (97,817)
I

m

= Equity-Settled share-based payments BREERHAR - - - - 9520 - 9520
< Issue of convertible bonds HTARES - - - 13,713 - - 13713
z Issue of shares upon exercise of share options ~ REERRIEETEMETRI 5333 - - - (1433) - 3900
5

g Transactions with owners RERAZRS 5333 - - 18713 8,087 - 27133
2

C,f Loss for the year ENER - - - - - (103,469) (103,469)
= Other comprehensive income A2 EkE - - - - - - -
=

m

o Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FAZERELE - - - - - (103,469) (103,469)
Z > G

= Transferted to accumulated losses on RoF-IERRRRES

g 2014 SYHL Bonds Maturity Date HEEES e Sy - - - (34,408 - 34,408 -
T Forfeiture of share options R E - - - - (2,365) 2365 -
5

3 At31 December 2017 W-B-t§+-Az1-8 246,385 7834 4 13713 o8 W) (741
N

o

oo
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39. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 39. BEAXATMBRRARER (&)
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
Note: (Continued) BisE : (&)
Capital  Convertible Share
Share Shareholder's  redemption  bond equity option  Accumulated
premium  contribution reserve reserve reserve losses Total
TRRES

RHEE  RRER BAREDRE  BaEE  BRERR  2ER &t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

TEn TiEn TEn TEn TiEn TR TEn

. _____________________________________________________________________________________|
At January 2018 H=B-NE-F-8 246,385 7,834 an 13713 0728 (52285  (174/159)
Shares issted upon exercise of convertible bonds BRI EHE T EME RN 73,985 - - (9,267) - - 64,718
Transactions with owners EREAZR A 73,985 - - (9,267) - - 64,718
Loss for the year ENER - - - - - (81,599) (81,598)
Other comprehensive income Eh2EhE - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ ERA2HUELE - - - - - (81,599) (81,598)
Settlement of 2014 SYFS Bonds by way FRREEELERN

ofissuing 2018 SYHL Bonds under the deed ~ —F—\EREARERZ

of settlement AAEEZE-MESYFSES - - - 9,267 - (9,267) -
Transferred to accumulated losses on RS- tFERLR

2017 SYHL Bonds Maturity Date EFHRERZE 2B - - - (13,713) - 13,713 -
Forfeiture of share options R RE - - - - (1,266) 1,66 -
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=1-A 320,370 7,834 4n - 8,457 (528,171) (191,033)
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. XA GIMEARFE
COMPANY
The following table lists the particulars of the subsidiaries of the TRIJEEFRAERN_ZE—LF+=A
Company as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 =+—BEk=ZF—-NFE+=HA=+—H
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the HAEEXEIEEXABENETEY
results or the assets or liabilities of the Group. To give details of BRRRAMNBRRBFE -EERE
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in REEMMBARFBEESRBEBANTT
particulars of excessive length. o
Country/Place Particulars of Proportion of Principal
of incorporation issued/ nominal value of issued/ activities and
Name or registration paid-up capital paid-up capital/interests place of operations
R B&f1/ BRI/ BRERE/
8 BRER/HE BRRAE BREELS TEXBREELE

Held by the Held by the
Company subsidiaries

ARARE  WEAAEE

(2]
ac
m
=z
o
<
(=
>
=z
ag
©)
=
=
=z
9]
(2]
=
=
-
m
O

Kingwell Management Limited" Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% = Provision of administrative
HK$1,000,000 services to group entities
in Hong Kong
ENERARAR" BE 1,000,000/ 7T Z1#Ak REBREER
AT TH R
% Sheng Yuan Asset Management Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 100% Provision of investment
S Limited" HK$20,000,000 management and
- advisory services
g in Hong Kong
3 BREEEEERAR" &E 20,000,000 B 7T & @K RERRMRAEER
= BRRE
Sheng Yuan Finance Limited" Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 - 100% Provision of money lending
services in Hong Kong
BRVBAERAR" A 1ETERR REBREE RS
Sheng Yuan Financial Holdings Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 = 100% Proprigtary trading
(HK) Limited" in Hong Kong
EREAR(FR)BRAA" Bl 1AL ERKR REBETLERS
Sheng Yuan Financial Services British Virgin Islands Ordinary shares of 100% - Proprietary trading
Group Limited US$5,500 in Hong Kong
EERIHS 5,500 €T & @k REBETLERS
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. A2 G B A S &)

COMPANY (Continued)
Country/Place Particulars of Proportion of Principal
of incorporation issued/ nominal value of issued/ activities and
Name or registration paid-up capital paid-up capital/interests place of operations
AL BT/ BT/ BRRE/
8 ERER/HE BRRAGHE EREELA IEERREELY

Held by the Held by the
Company subsidiaries

ARARE  MWEAAEE

Sheng Yuan Securities Limited" Hong Kong Ordinary shares of = 100%  Securities and futures
HK$65,000,000 dealing, margin
financing, securities
placing and underwriting

and investment advisory
services in Hong Kong

BREFBRAR &k 65,000,000 57T & i@ REBETERR
HERH  HRAE -
BARERABRER
REERRS

Sheng Yuan Services Limited" Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 100% - Provision of administrative
services to group entities
in Hong Kong

BREEERAR" i 1B ERR MEBSEERRM
THR

" audited by BDO Limited . HEBIEERSMEEMERA
AlEZ
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MR

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1+—BLFE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—E—OFE —ZE—HF E—RF ET—+tF ZZEB-N\E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T BT FHIT FAT FERT
RESULTS £
Revenue Wz 414,588 405,678 69,475 63,247 34,146
Loss before taxation  Fr7%i Al &5 18 (2,650) (31,730) (15,028) (182,183) (80,324)
Taxation FRIE (2,379) (2,668) (1,879) (2,341) (1,330)
Loss for the year FAEE (5,029) (34,398) (16,907) (184,524) (81,654)
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—AH

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—T—OF —ZE—HF ZE—RF ET—+tF ZZEB-N\E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T FHIT FAT FERT

ASSETS AND EEREE

LIABILITIES

Total assets BERE 528,401 671,161 778,251 432,820 149,662
Total liabilities BfERHE (314,175) (492,873) 611,812) (420,284) (135,090)
214,226 178,288 166,439 12,536 14,572




BRREZERABRAI

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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